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Over the last 10 years, Banco Security has 
posted average annual growth of 11.7%.
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OUR BANK01
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CONSOLIdATEd FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
BANCO SECURITY
(Figures in millions of Chilean pesos of each year)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2005 2006

Gross Operating Income (Gross Margin) 61,395 65,047

Management Expenses 30,566 36,099

Net Operating Income (Net Margin) 30,830 28,948

Profit for the Year 20,014 20,498

RATIOS 2005 2006

Return on Equity 13.3% 13.4%

Return on Total Assets 1.0% 1.0%

Interest-Earning Assets / Total Assets 87.0% 90.4%

Basel Index 12.26 11.59

YEAR-ENd BALANCES 2005 2006

Loans (1) 1,354,331 1,610,864

Financial Investments 388,625 317,441

Interest-Earning Assets 1,742,956 1,928,305

PP&E and Investments in Subsidiaries 23,042 23,445

Total Assets 2,003,297 2,134,186

Current Accounts and Other Demand Deposits 104,331 108,224

Savings Accounts and Time Deposits 1,067,659 1,210,311

Foreign Liabilities 192,116 112,615

Provisions for At-Risk Assets 19,512 16,437

Capital and Reserves (2) 130,259 132,546

Equity 150,273 153,044

STAFF HEAdCOUNT

TOTAL 2016

1,230

LOANS • 2016

4,462,332
IN MILLIONS OF NOMINAL CHILEAN PESOS

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2016

50,606
IN MILLIONS OF NOMINAL CHILEAN PESOS
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2007 (3) 2008 (3) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Gross Operating Income (Gross Margin) 85,234 77,397 78,515 99,085 107,953 131,693 128,583 169,925 163,694 238,753

Management Expenses 45,255 50,191 50,885 60,343 67,283 89,848 89,354 105,383 106,622 21,100

Net Operating Income (Net Margin) 39,979 27,206 27,630 38,742 40,670 41,845 39,229 64,542 57,072 217,653

Profit for the Year 27,250 14,332 23,039 33,710 35,020 35,229 32,801 55,908 47,429 50,606

YEAR-ENd BALANCES 2007 (3) 2008 (3) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Loans (1) 1,735,299 2,084,693 2,189,085 1,988,633 2,614,571 3,021,457 3,340,912 3,656,920 4,056,096 4,462,332

Financial Investments 600,702 796,434 946,676 729,465 791,479 706,586 579,000 716,401 749,103 977,669

Interest-Earning Assets 2,336,001 2,881,127 3,135,761 2,718,098 3,406,050 3,728,044 3,919,912 4,373,321 4,805,199 5,440,001

PP&E and Investments in Subsidiaries 25,720 28,837 23,112 23,316 24,215 25,131 25,646 25,683 28,649 29,211

Total Assets 2,615,515 3,238,938 3,452,372 3,123,518 3,911,365 4,179,893 4,395,535 5,010,707 5,584,680 6,090,826

Current Accounts and Other Demand Deposits 184,270 221,397 255,777 285,464 353,615 395,301 425,450 512,242 583,856 570,018

Savings Accounts and Time Deposits 1,466,375 1,720,452 1,651,418 1,696,711 2,038,762 2,306,100 2,298,991 2,541,909 2,717,668 3,051,820

Foreign Liabilities 160,623 292,091 132,120 155,982 289,277 232,399 193,206 146,429 228,156 158,757

Provisions for At-Risk Assets 18,969 22,730 31,218 37,904 35,858 41,815 46,087 59,044 74,300 80,651

Capital and Reserves (2) 140,083 170,459 174,750 172,737 232,443 248,364 275,562 323,143 360,912 411,175

Equity 167,400 184,865 197,854 206,447 267,463 283,593 308,362 379,051 408,340 461,783

RATIOS 2007 (3) 2008 (3) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Return on Equity 16.3% 7.8% 11.6% 16.3% 13.1% 12.4% 10.6% 14.7% 11.6% 11.0%

Return on Total Assets 1.0% 0.4% 0.7% 1.1% 0.9% 0.8% 0.7% 1.1% 0.8% 0.8%

Interest-Earning Assets / Total Assets 89.3% 89.0% 90.8% 87.0% 87.1% 89.2% 89.2% 87.3% 86.0% 89.3%

Basel Index 10.84 11.48 12.56 12.45 12.03 11.92 12.19 12.47 12.10 13.22

NOTES:
(1)  INCLuDES LOANS AND ADvANCES TO BANkS. CONTINGENCY LOANS ARE NOT INCLuDED FROM 2007.  ACCORDING TO ThE NEw RuLES ThEY DO NOT FORM PART OF LOANS. 
(2)  INCLuDES OThER EquITY ACCOuNTS.
(3)  FROM JANuARY 2008 ThE BALANCE ShEET INFORMATION AND INCOME STATEMENTS wERE ADAPTED TO ThE IFRS FORMAT DEFINED BY ThE SBIF IN ThE COMPENDIuM OF ACCOuNTING STANDARDS ISSuED uNDER CIRCuLAR NO. 3,410.  ThEREFORE, 

FIGuRES FROM 2007 ONwARDS ARE NOT COMPARABLE wITh PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION. ThE FIGuRES REPORTED FOR 2007 AND 2008 INCORPORATE SuBSEquENT ADJuSTMENTS TO ALIGN ThEM wITh ChANGES IN STANDARDS, AND 

MAkE ThEM MORE COMPARABLE. SINCE JANuARY 2009 ADJuSTMENTS FOR INFLATION hAvE BEEN ELIMINATED.



pAGE

06

OUR BANK01
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CONSOLIdATEd FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
BANCO SECURITY
(Figures in millions of Chilean pesos of each year)
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OUR BANK01

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

dEAR SHAREHOLdERS:

It is once again my pleasure to present Banco Security’s annual 

report for 2016.

Regrettably, the year 2016 was marked by weak economic growth, 

falling investment levels and alarming advances in the legislative 

agenda, with a clear ideological bias towards strengthening the 

government’s role to the detriment of the private sector.

Furthermore, political tension and a lack of leadership involving 

the public agenda were a constant throughout the year. 

Congressional approval of the Labor Reform and continuous 

setbacks with the Educational Reform did nothing more than 

generate uncertainty, frustration and public rejection of these 

badly designed and poorly implemented initiatives. we hope that 

voices emerge that can provide coherent, rational solutions to 

the country’s problems.

In this challenging environment, Banco Security continued 

doing business, providing financial products and services with 

the quality for which it has always been known and for which 

it is widely recognized by the market. Proof of this lies in the 

Bank’s repeat win of the National Customer Satisfaction Award, 

which recognizes it as the company in Chile with the best 

service quality in the category of customers under contract. we 

are very proud of this award, which encourages us to continue 

to strive to be the best.

In 2016, Banco Security and Grupo Security proudly celebrated 

25 years in business. Ours is a relatively brief history, but one that 

is full of successes and constant growth. This is the product of a 

strategic vision and steadfast effort to achieve the objectives we 

have set along the way.

In terms of earnings, last year Banco Security posted consolidated 

profit of Ch$50,606 million, up 6.7% over the prior year, which 

compares favorably with the 10.1% decrease seen in the Chilean 

banking industry as a whole. As of year-end, the Bank had total 

loans of Ch$4,462 billion, an increase of 10.0% over December 

2015, while the industry expanded only 5.3%. The Bank had 

total equity of Ch$461,687 million and a Basel Index of 13.22%, 

which is a clear indication of its solvency. The Bank’s subsidiaries 

(valores Security Corredores de Bolsa and Administradora General 

de Fondos Security) reported profit for the year of Ch$1,233 

million and Ch$6,939 million, respectively.

One of the year’s most significant accomplishments was the 

successful implementation of a comprehensive new operating 

system, which will generate greater efficiencies and operational 

security for the Bank. I cannot neglect to recognize and extend 

my thanks for the considerable effort and commitment of the 

Bank’s entire staff, particularly the team that worked directly on 

the project.

Another distinctive quality of Banco Security and Grupo Security 

has been their ability to maintain optimum employee relations, 

strengthening each team member’s professional development 

with policies designed to make work compatible with family 

commitments. In 2017, we were recognized for the sixteenth 

year in a row as a Great Place to work in Chile, placing eighth on 

this year’s ranking.

Once more, I would like to thank our shareholders for their 

support over the years, which has ensured that we have resources 

to finance the Bank’s continued growth and to generate attractive 

returns for them.  As a result, Grupo Security’s stock has increased 
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TwENTY-FIvE YEARS IN BuSINESS in value 13.6% (annual average) since its IPO more than 20 years 

ago, while the Chilean selective stock index (IPSA) has grown 

merely 6.5% per year in the same period.

In closing, I would like to express my concern for the situation 

our country is experiencing. Leading into the final period of the 

current administration, it is evident that the Chilean populace is 

deeply disappointed by the many campaign promises that have 

been broken. This is demonstrated by the systematic rejection of 

the government by an overwhelming majority of Chileans, as is 

reflected in public opinion polls.

unfortunately, no one is addressing this dire situation or the 

dismal growth levels achieved in 2016, which does not even 

exceed Chile’s rate of natural increase, and directly impacts 

society’s most vulnerable sectors. In short, our country is not 

growing and, along with this, inequality is persistently increasing, 

as reported by broad political sectors.

we must not settle for these results and instead continue with 

our quest to achieve growth, which is the only thing that will 

allow us to make our country a developed nation and give all 

Chileans access to the kind of benefits such status can provide.

FRANCISCO SILvA SILvA

Chairman

Banco Security 

“The Bank received the National Customer Satisfaction Award, 
which recognizes it as the company in Chile with the best service 

quality in the category of customers under contract.”

STAFF HEAdCOUNT

2016

1991

144

1,230

PROFIT

YEAR 1991

YEAR 2016

uS$ 7,608 MILLION

uS$ 75,554 MILLION
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OUR BANK01

1981

2001

2011

1987

2003

2012

1990

2004

2013

In August 1981, Banco urquijo de Chile 
was created, as a subsidiary of Spain’s 
Banco urquijo.

The subsidiary Leasing Security was 
incorporated into Banco Security as a 
business unit in April 2001.

A new plan to grow and expand the 
branch network began, with the opening 
of three new branches: Presidente 
Riesco in Santiago, and La Serena and 
Rancagua outside of Santiago.

In 1987, Security Pacific Corporation, a 
subsidiary of Security Pacific National 
Bank in Los Angeles, California, acquired 
100% of the shares of Banco urquijo of 
Chile, renaming the Bank Banco Security 
Pacific.
Security Pacific National Bank created 
a securities agency and stock brokerage 
firm in the same year. It is currently a 
Bank subsidiary called valores Security, 
Corredores de Bolsa.

The subsidiary Administradora de 
Fondos Mutuos Security S.A. extended 
its business scope and changed its name 
to Administradora General de Fondos 
Security S.A. in September 2003.

Three new branches were inaugurated: 
La Reina, Moneda and Talca. Retail 
Banking reached 50,000 current 
accounts, and Commercial Banking 
exceeded Ch$2 billion in loans.

Leasing Security was created in 1990 
as a subsidiary of Banco Security to 
provide lease finance.

In June 2004, Grupo Security acquired 
a 99.67% stake in Dresdner Bank 
Lateinamerika, Chile, and on October 1, 
2004, it merged with Banco Security.
Also in June 2004, the Bank exceeded 1 
billion pesos in loans.

A new branch was opened in Copiapó 
in December 2013, and Retail Banking 
exceeded Ch$ 1 billion in loans.
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OUR HISTORY

1991

2006

2014

1992

2007

2015

1994

2008

2016

Security Pacific Overseas Corporation 
sold their 60% shareholding in Banco 
Security to Grupo Security in June 1991, 
changing the Bank’s name to Banco 
Security.

The Retail Banking project led to the 
launch of four new branches in 2006: 
Plaza Constitución, Alcántara and Estoril 
in the Metropolitan Region and viña del 
Mar in the 5th Region.

Our first Representative Office abroad 
was opened in hong kong in June 
2014, making us the only Chilean bank 
with an office in that city.
AGF Security merged with 
Administradora General de Fondos 
Cruz del Sur in December 2014, to 
command a strong market position in 
this industry.

The asset management subsidiary, 
Administradora de Fondos Mutuos 
Security, was created as a subsidiary of 
Banco Security in 1992.

Two new branches were opened in 
2007: Chicureo and Los Cobres in the 
Metropolitan Region.

valores Security merged with the Cruz 
del Sur brokerage subsidiary in March 
2015, and in July an agreement was 
reached with Banco Penta to acquire 
their asset management and stock 
brokerage subsidiaries.

Bank of America, the successor of 
Security Pacific National Bank, sold the 
remaining 40% shareholding in Banco 
Security to Grupo Security in 1994.

The branch network continued to 
expand and branches were opened at 
Santa Maria and Los Trapenses in 2008.

The respective mergers of Penta 
Administradora General de Fondos S.A 
with Administradora General de Fondos 
Security S.A., and Penta Corredores de 
Bolsa S.A. with valores Security S.A. 
Corredores de Bolsa were completed in 
February.
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OUR BANK01

	
  

	
  

GREAT PLACE TO WORK 

For the sixteenth year in a row,  Banco security and several other 

companies From Grupo security were distinGuished amonG the Best 

companies to work For in chile, earninG eiGhth place in the Great place to 

work rankinG. in addition to BeinG cause For Great pride, this recoGnition 

motivates us to continue strenGtheninG the security culture, the 

company’s distinctive hallmark.

Praxis xPerience index honored Banco security with the service exPerience 

award, a measurement Based on the customer exPerience with a Product 

or service that evaluates three comPonents: functional, oPerational and 

emotional. these comPonents are used to determine whether a service is 

effective, easy and satisfactory. 

nearly 100 Brands from service comPanies in chile were evaluated Between 

July 2015 and June 2016, including Banks, health insurance Providers 

(isaPres), educational estaBlishments, Pension fund administrators (afPs), 

moBile telePhony and internet service Providers, etc.

PROCALIDAD AWARD 
FOR SERVICE QUALITY EXCELLENCE 2016  

As A reflection of the BAnk’s commitment to its core vAlue of providing 

customers with the Best service, BAnco security once AgAin eArned first 

plAce in the nAtionAl customer sAtisfAction AwArd in the cAtegory of 

customers under contrAct,  An AccolAde it Also won in 2013 And 2014. 

this AwArd, which is given By procAlidAd in conjunction with universidAd 

Adolfo iBáñez, recognizes the no. 1 compAny in service quAlity in chile. 

the survey meAsures customers’ sAtisfAction with compAnies in the AreAs 

of customer service model, price-service sAtisfAction And complAint rAtes.

CUSTOMER SERvICE 
EXPERIENCE 

AWARd

RECOgNITION
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SALMON AWARDS 2016  ·  MutuAL FuNDS 

In AprIl 2016, AdmInIstrAdorA GenerAl de Fondos securIty wAs recoGnIzed 

wIth A sAlmon AwArd, GIven by the FInAncIAl newspAper dIArIo FInAncIero 

And the chIleAn mutuAl Fund AssocIAtIon.

the Fund “securIty IndeX Fund us” receIved the AwArd In the us equItIes 

cAteGory.

In november, several funds were awarded aPv salmon awards (for 

voluntary PensIon savIngs funds): “seCurIty IndeX fund us” In tHe us 

eQuItIes Category;  “seCurIty global mutual fund” In tHe develoPed eQuItIes 

Category; and “seCurIty gold mutual fund” In tHe domestIC debt In uf 

over 365 days under tHree years Category.

SALMON AWARdS 
2016  ·  APv

The SecuriTy Gold B SerieS MuTual Fund waS recoGnized By MorninGSTar aS 

The BeST clP MediuM TerM Bond Fund.

The aiM oF TheSe awardS iS To reward ThoSe FundS ThaT have conTriBuTed 

MoST value To inveSTorS over The PaST Three yearS. ThereFore, The 

conSiSTency oF Fund PerForMance over The lonG TerM iS eSSenTial To 

winninG ThiS recoGniTion.

MORNINgSTAR 
AWARd



CHAPTER

CORPORATE gOvERNANCE

02
The Bank is always concerned with 
incorporating best practices. 





pAGE

16

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE02
BOARd ANd MANAgEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 CHAIRMAN
 Francisco Silva S.

 DIRECTORS

 hernán Felipe Errázuriz C.

 Jorge Marín C.

 Gustavo Pavez R.

 Renato Peñafiel M.

 horacio Pavez G. 

 Ramón Eluchans O.

 Mario weiffenbach O. (Alternate director)

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

 CHIEF ExECuTIvE OFFICER
 Bonifacio Bilbao h.

 CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER 
 Enrique Menchaca O.

 CHIEF ECONOMIST 

 Felipe Jaque S.

 CHIEF PLANNING AND OPERATIONS OFFICER
 Manuel widow L.

 CHIEF CuLTuRE OFFICER
 karin Becker S.

 CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER
 Alfonso verdugo R.

 CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER
 Mauricio Parra L.

SuPPORT AREAS

 RISk DIvISION MANAGER  
 José Miguel Bulnes Z.

 RISk MANAGEMENT MANAGER  
 Alejandro Pinto P.

 LOAN RESTRuCTuRING MANAGER  
 René Melo B.

 COMMERCIAL LOAN APPROvAL MANAGER
 Alejandro vivanco F.

 RETAIL LOAN APPROvAL MANAGER
 Jorge herrera P.

 FINANCIAL RISk MANAGER  
 Antonio Alonso M.

 OPERATIONS AND IT DIvISION MANAGER 

 Gonzalo Ferrer A.

 IT AND PROCESSES MANAGER
 Raúl Levi S.

 CENTRAL AND BRANCH OPERATIONAL
  PROCESSES MANAGER
 Jorge Oñate G.

BuSINESS AREAS

COMMERCIAL dIvISION

 COMMERCIAL BANkING DIvISION MANAGER
 Christian Sinclair M.

 BuSINESS DEvELOPMENT 
 AND PRODuCT MANAGER
 Sergio Cavagnaro R.
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LARgE COMPANIES ANd REAL ESTATE

 LARGE COMPANIES AND REAL ESTATE MANAGER 
 Alejandro Arteaga I.

 LARGE COMPANIES MANAGER 
 Alberto Apel O.

 LARGE COMPANIES MANAGER 

 Felipe Oliva L.

 STRuCTuRED FINANCE MANAGER
 José Antonio Delgado A.

 PROjECT FINANCE MANAGER
 Juan Lago h.

 BuSINESS MANAGER 

 José M. Costas F.

 BuSINESS MANAGER 

 Sebastián Laso R.

COMPANIES BANKINg ANd REgIONAL 
BRANCHES

 COMPANIES BANkING AND REGIONAL BRANCH 
 AFFAIRS MANAGER
 hernán Buzzoni G.

 COMPANIES BANkING MANAGER
 Francisco Cardemil k.

SPECIALIzEd PROdUCTS ANd SERvICES
 SPECIALIzED PRODuCTS 

 AND BuSINESS MANAGER 
 Andrés Fabregat F.

REPRESENTATIvE OFFICE IN HONg KONg
 CHIEF REPRESENTATIvE OFFICER 

 IN HONG kONG 

 Mario Artaza L.

 REPRESENTATIvE/DIRECTOR 
 Ewald Doerner C.

RETAIL BANKINg dIvISION

 RETAIL BANkING DIvISION MANAGER
 hitoshi kamada 

 BuSINESS DEvELOPMENT 
 AND PRODuCT MANAGER 

 Ramón Bustamante F.

 BRANCH AFFAIRS MANAGER
 Rodrigo Reyes M.

FINANCE dIvISION 
ANd FINANCIAL BANKINg

 FINANCE DIvISION 
 AND FINANCIAL BANkING MANAGER 

 Nicolás ugarte B.

TRAdE dESK
 ASSET & LIABILITy AND LIquIDITy MANAGER 

 Sergio Bonilla S.

 DISTRIBuTION 
 AND FINANCIAL BANkING MANAGER 

 Ricardo Santa Cruz R-T

 TRADING AND INvESTMENT MANAGER 

 Ricardo Turner O.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE02
CORPORATE gOvERNANCE

CORPORATE GOvERNANCE
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SHAREHOLDERS’ 
MEETINGS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS A. B.

Shareholders’ meetings are the highest level of corporate 

governance according to the Corporations Law. Their main 

functions are to elect the Board of Directors; appoint external 

auditors and risk rating agencies; approve the annual report, 

financial statements, profit distributions and capital increases 

and set fees for the Board of Directors and the Director’s 

Committee.

This is the main level of corporate governance. The Board 

plays a key role in the organization, which includes managing 

the Company; establishing, approving and overseeing 

implementation of institutional values and strategic 

guidelines; and establishing internal control mechanisms 

and policies to ensure compliance with internal and external 

regulations to guide the Company’s actions.

The Board of Directors of Banco Security is composed of seven 

directors and one alternate. All directors are elected every 

three years. The last election took place on March 22, 2016, 

when shareholders re-elected all current directors for a new 

term. According to the law and our by-laws, ordinary Board 

meetings must be held at least once a month. Extraordinary 

meetings may be called by the Chairman of the Board or at 

the request of one or more directors. Currently, the Board has 

16 ordinary meetings per year.

 

The Board is regularly informed about progress and compliance 

with strategic plans, financial results, compliance with the 

comprehensive risk management policy, audit compliance 

and the status of customer complaints, among other matters.



pAGE

20

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE02

BOARD CREDIT 
COMMITTEE

ExECuTIvE CREDIT
COMMITTEEC.1 C.2

This committee analyzes, evaluates and approves or rejects 

the most important loan applications, submitted directly by 

sales areas. This committee examines all Commercial Banking 

lines of credit greater than approximately uF 30,000 and uF 

40,000, depending on guarantees, and Retail Banking lines of 

credit greater than approximately uF 25,000 and uF 27,000.

The members of this committee are:

 Francisco Silva S.                                

 Chairman

 Ramón Eluchans O.                            

 Director

 Mario weiffenbach O. 

 Alternate Director

 Bonifacio Bilbao h.  

 CEO

 José Miguel Bulnes Z.  

 Risk Division Manager

This committee complements the functions of the Board 

Credit Committee, and analyzes, evaluates and approves or 

rejects smaller loan applications, which are also submitted 

directly by sales areas.

The members of this committee are:

 José Miguel Bulnes Z.  

 Risk Division Manager

The remaining members depend on the area to which the 

customer belongs, and these are:

COMMERCIAL BANKINg

 Christian Sinclair M.  

 Commercial Banking Division Manager

 hernán Buzzoni G. 

 Companies Banking and Regional Branch Affairs Manager

 Alejandro vivanco F. 

 Commercial Loan Approval Manager

RETAIL BANKINg

 hitoshi kamada

 Retail Banking Division Manager

 Jorge herrera P. 

 Retail Loan Approval Manager

Additionally, managers, deputy managers, agents or executives 

who present credit requests on behalf of their customers may 

attend.
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ASSET AND LIABILITy 
COMMITTEE (ALCO) 

FINANCE
COMMITTEE C.4C.3

This committee is responsible for managing and controlling 

the Bank’s

(1) structural matching by maturity and currency within the 

balance sheet, 

(2) liquidity, and 

(3) financial margin to ensure that it remains stable.

The standing members of this committee are:

 Francisco Silva S.                             

 Chairman

 Renato Peñafiel M.                         

 Director

 Ramón Eluchans O.                         

 Director

 Bonifacio Bilbao h.

 CEO

 Nicolás ugarte B.                             

 Finance Division and Financial Banking Manager

 José Miguel Bulnes Z. 

 Risk Division Manager

 Manuel widow L.

 Chief Planning and Operations Officer

 Antonio Alonso M.                         

 Financial Risk Manager

 Sergio Bonilla S.

 Asset & Liability and Liquidity Manager

 Ricardo Turner O. 

 Trading and Investment Manager

 Christian Sinclair M.                       

 Commercial Banking Division Manager

 hitoshi kamada

 Retail Banking Division Manager

The objective of this committee is to jointly evaluate the 

financial instrument positions and market risks taken by 

Banco Security and its subsidiaries, defining strategies and 

ensuring that these are fulfilled.

Its main functions include reporting on the status of each 

business unit in relation to profits and margins compared 

to budget, aligning strategies and escalating investment or 

disinvestment decisions.

The Finance Committee is also charged with proposing 

policies and methodologies for managing financial assets to 

the Board and ensuring compliance with market risk limits set 

by the Board and regulators.

The members of this committee are:

 Francisco Silva S.                                

 Chairman

 Renato Peñafiel M.                           

  Director

 Ramón Eluchans O.                            

 Director

 Felipe Jaque S.  

 Chief Economist

 Bonifacio Bilbao h.  

 CEO 

 Nicolás ugarte B.                                

 Finance Division and Financial Banking Manager

 Sergio Bonilla S.  

 Asset & Liability and Liquidity Manager

 Ricardo Turner O.   

 Trading and Investment Manager

 Manuel widow L.  

 Chief Planning and Operations Officer

 José Miguel Bulnes Z.  

 Risk Division Manager

 Antonio Alonso M.                         

 Financial Risk Manager

 Andrés Pérez L.  

 Chief Financial Officer, valores Security
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OUR BANK01

This committee’s main objectives are to ensure that the 

internal controls of the Bank and its subsidiaries are applied, 

operated and maintained; to monitor that standards and 

procedures governing their practice are complied with; to 

support the internal audit function and its independence 

from management; and to coordinate external and internal 

audit functions, liaising between them and the boards of the 

Bank and its subsidiaries.

The standing members of this committee are:

 Hernán Felipe Errázuriz C.   

 Director and Committee Chairman

 Jorge Marín C.    

 Director

 Horacio Pavez G   

 Director

Permanent ParticiPants
 Bonifacio Bilbao H.    

 CEO

 Alfonso Verdugo R.    

 Controller

 Enrique Menchaca O.  

 Chief Legal Officer

Additionally, special participants may be invited to review 

particular issues.

The committee’s roles and responsibilities are:

a) To propose to the Director’s Committee, or in its absence 

to the Board, a short-list of external auditors.

b) To establish a business relationship with the external 

audit firm selected, and clarify the audit terms and 

scope before it begins. Any discrepancy or difference in 

interpretation with respect to the audit terms should be 

resolved as soon as possible.

c) To propose to the Director’s Committee, or in its absence 

to the Board, a short-list of risk rating firms.

d) To understand and analyze the results of audits and 

internal reviews.

e) To co-ordinate the work of the internal auditors with the 

external auditors’ reviews.

f) To analyze the interim financial statements and the 

annual accounts and report to the Board.

g) To analyze the external auditors’ reports, and the content, 

procedures and scope of their reviews. Also, these auditors 

should be granted access to the committee meeting 

minutes to provide them with the details of situations 

that might be relevant for audit purposes.

h) To analyze the external risk assessor reports and the 

procedures they applied.

i) To assess the effectiveness and reliability of internal 

control systems and procedures. Therefore, the committee 

should be familiar with the risk management methods 

and systems used by the Bank and its subsidiaries.

j) To analyze the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of 

information systems, and their value to decision making.

k) To ensure that Company policies adhere to the laws, 

regulations, and internal standards that the organization 

must abide by.

l) To understand and resolve conflicts of interest and to 

investigate fraud and suspicious behavior.

m) To analyze instructions and presentations from regulators 

and analyze inspection visit reports.

n) To understand, analyze and verify compliance with the 

annual internal audit program.

o) To request a report every six months from the Chief 

Compliance Officer to understand the structure, planning, 

results and management of that area.

p) To inform the Board of any changes in accounting policy 

and their effects.

C.5 AuDIT 
COMMITTEE
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q) To understand the court cases and any other legal 

contingencies that may affect the Bank.

r) To understand, analyze and resolve any other issues that 

one or more members may submit. 

s) To evaluate the controller of the Banks and subsidiaries on 

an annual basis and report the results of this evaluation 

to the Chairman.

t) To escalate to the Board any important or material 

matters that the committee believes should be resolved 

by the Board.

The committee met on nine occasions during 2016, eight 

were scheduled meetings plus an additional meeting, where 

the following issues were addressed:

a) Received reports on internal audits of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries, and other associated revisions.

b) Coordinated the work of the Controller with reviews by 

the external auditors.

c) Received a letter from the SBIF reporting on the results of 

the 2016 visit.

d) Analyzed the financial statements for 2015, with the 

assistance of the external audit partner.

e) Analyzed the external auditor’s letters regarding internal 

controls and adequacy of provisions.

f) Analyzed the reports, contents, procedures and scope of 

the external auditor’s reviews, and the action plans to 

resolve the issues identified.

g) Prepared a Board proposal on external auditors and risk 

rating agencies.

h) Analyzed the reports and procedures issued by the 

external risk rating agencies.

i) Analyzed the interim financial statements.

j) Reviewed the changes in standards that affect the Bank 

and its subsidiaries, and discussed the implications. The 

same applies for management letters copied to the 

Controller.

k) Reviewed the court cases and other legal contingencies 

affecting the Bank.

l) Monitored the annual audit plan for the Bank and its 

subsidiaries. In December 2016, the Audit Committee 

reviewed the proposed audit plan for 2017, which was 

submitted to the Board.

m) Reviewed the internal audit reports.

n) Analyzed progress on the action plan for the Bank and its 

subsidiaries arising from internal regulatory audit reports, 

specifically the very high and high priority plans linked to 

high risks.

o) Reviewed and monitored operational risk losses.

p) Reviewed and analyzed the Management and Solvency 

Self-Assessment for 2016 RAN Chap. 1-13, at an 

additional committee meeting.

q) Reviewed personnel movements within the Office of the 

Controller.

r) Reviewed claims by reporting source and product/service.

s) Heard a presentation on the implementation of the new 

IBS technology platform.

t) Reviewed relevant incidents and measures taken by 

management.

u) Heard a presentation on the organization, operation and 

risks within the Accounting, Compliance and Operational 

Risk, Finance, Planning and Operations, Risk, Commercial 

Banking and Retail Banking divisions.

v) Analyzed insurance coverage taken out by the Bank and 

subsidiaries.

w) Reviewed the action plan reprogramming and risk 

acceptance approved by the Operational Risk Committee.

x) Regularly monitored commitments related to SBIF 

Letters following annual inspection visits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE02

DEFINE STRATEGIC GuIDELINES, RISk APPETITE AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT.STRATEGy

REvIEw COMPLIANCE wITH BuDGET, DEvIATIONS AND MITIGATIONS, AND 
PROGRESS ON SALES INITIATIvES.

COMMERCIAL / RETAIL
SALES MANAGEMENT

MONITOR, ANALyzE, EvALuATE AND COORDINATE PROGRESS ON 
TECHNOLOGICAL PROjECTS.

REvIEw GENERAL MATTERS, PLAN AND MONITOR OPERATIONAL ISSuES.

STRATEGIC 
PROjECTS 

(OPERATIONS AND IT)

ANALyzE COMPREHENSIvE MANAGEMENT OF OPERATIONAL RISkS.

DISSEMINATE AND MONITOR OPERATIONAL RISk POLICIES.
OPERATIONAL RISk 

PuBLISH, IMPLEMENT AND MONITOR POLICIES THAT PREvENT ASSET 
LAuNDERING.

ANALyzE CASES.

ANTI-MONEy
LAuNDERING

REvIEw AND APPROvE THE ANNuAL INvESTMENT BuDGET.

REvIEw AND APPROvE INDIvIDuAL PROjECTS, AND MONITOR PROGRESS.

INvESTMENTS 
IN PP&E AND 

TECHNOLOGy

REvIEw GENERAL RISk STRATEGIES AND BEHAvIOR wITHIN THE BANk.RISk

OTHER COMMITTEES OBjECTIvESC.6
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REvIEw HIGHER-RISk LOANS, MONITOR THEIR STATuS AND TAkE ACTION.wATCH

REvIEw THE DETAILS OF CuSTOMERS LIkELy TO BE RECLASSIFIED BASED ON THE 
LATEST AvAILABLE INFORMATION, DISCuSS AND DECIDE ON RECLASSIFICATION 
IN EACH CASE.

RECLASSIFICATION

REPORT AND ANALyzE THE COMPREHENSIvE MANAGEMENT OF PHySICAL 
SECuRITy AT THE BANk,  ADOPT MEASuRES THAT ARE RELEvANT,  AND 
DISSEMINATE AND MONITOR SECuRITy POLICIES, REGuLATIONS AND 
PROCEDuRES.

PHySICAL 
SECuRITy

REvIEw AND MONITOR ExISTING MODELS uSED FOR CREDIT RISk MANAGEMENT. 

SuBMIT NEw MODELS FOR APPROvAL AND MONITOR PROGRESS.
MODELING

SuBMIT PROPOSALS FOR NEw PRODuCTS TO DIvISION MANAGEMENT, THE CHIEF 
ExECuTIvE OFFICER AND GROuP DIRECTORS. PROPOSALS SHOuLD INCLuDE AN 
ASSESSMENT OF THE COMMERCIAL, OPERATIONAL, CREDIT, LEGAL, ACCOuNTING, 
TECHNOLOGICAL AND SECuRITy ISSuES, TOGETHER wITH AN EvALuATION OF 
OvERALL INCOME AND ExPENDITuRES, FOR APPROvAL AND IMPLEMENTATION.

NEw 
PRODuCTS

ANALyzE THE MANAGEMENT OF THE LOAN RESTRuCTuRING DEPARTMENT 
RELATING TO RECOvERIES, uNCOLLECTABLES, REvENuE, CREDIT COMMITTEE 
SuBMISSIONS, AMONG OTHERS. ALSO, IDENTIFy CASES THAT SHOuLD BE 
SuBMITTED TO THE RECLASSIFICATION COMMITTEE.

LOAN
RESTRuCTuRING

OTHER COMMITTEES OBjECTIvESC.6



CHAPTER

STRATEgY ANd MANAgEMENT

03
The Bank has made great strides 
in diversifying revenue. 
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03
BuSINESS STRATEGy

Banco Security’s strategy is aligned with the guidelines issued by Grupo Security, which aims to position itself as a comprehensive provider 

of financial services across its various business areas.

The Bank’s mission is to meet the financial needs of large and medium-sized companies and high-income individuals, by delivering 

exceptional service in order to build long-term relationships. To accomplish this, the Bank has an exceptional team of professional 

relationship managers who provide a broad range of products and services, supported by the latest technology in all areas and the backing 

of Grupo Security, to ensure that our customers are fully satisfied.

In an increasingly competitive and regulated market, Banco Security is strengthening its position as a niche bank, exploring and developing 

new specializations, which will reinforce its differentiating feature of service excellence, and improve its flexibility and agility to respond 

to the particular needs of each customer.

The pillars of our business strategy are:

This is the Bank’s distinguishing feature, which is recognized and appreciated by 

customers and the market, and reflects the Bank’s constant concern to ensure that it 

complies with the service quality standards that characterize the Security brand.

SERvICE 
ExCELLENCE 

we have always been concerned with keeping our products and services up to date 

with respect to other banks.  we differentiate ourselves by our ability to adapt each 

one to the specific requirements of each customer, and by the comprehensive package 

that we offer together with other companies within Grupo Security.

BROAD RANGE 
OF PRODuCTS
AND SERvICES

Banco Security has been able to grow while maintaining its focus on its target segments 

in commercial and retail banking. This has been fundamentally important, to avoid 

compromising service quality.

FOCuS ON TARGET 
SEGMENT

The sales team continually encourages customers to expand the range of products and 

services they use at the Bank and at other companies within Grupo Security, building 

on the premium quality services provided by the Bank.

CuSTOMER 
LOyALTy

One of the Bank’s strategic objectives is to maintain the flexibility inherent in a small 

bank, while always aiming to achieve the efficiency of larger banks. Therefore, we are 

constantly searching for new ways to be more efficient.
EFFICIENT uSE 
OF RESOuRCES
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The entire Bank, and particularly the sales areas, has defined specific strategic objectives and the most appropriate structure to implement 

them, while ensuring that these are aligned with the Bank’s mission and overall strategy.

COMMERCIAL 
BANkING

  LARgE COMPANIES ANd
 REAL ESTATE

  COMPANIES BANKINg 
 ANd REgIONAL 
 BRANCHES

  FINANCIAL BANKINg

  FOREIgN TRAdE ANd 
 INTERNATIONAL SERvICES

  LEASINg dIvISION

RETAIL 
BANkING

 PRIvATE BANKINg ANd 
 PREMIER BANKINg

  PREFERENTIAL BANKINg

  ENTREPRENEUR BANKINg

TRADE
 DESk

  dISTRIBUTION SERvICES

 TRAdINg SERvICES

  ASSET MANAgEMENT 
 SERvICES

  ASSET & LIABILITY ANd 
 LIQUIdITY SERvICES 

ASSET 
MANAGEMENT

  AdMINISTRAdORA 
 gENERAL dE FONdOS 
 SECURITY (AgF), 

  vALORES SECURITY S.A.
 CORREdORES dE BOLSA 

COMMERCIAL BANKINg

“We want to be the bank for business in Chile and the bank our customers prefer”

Three models of customer service have been identified to address the profiles of our customers in our target commercial banking segment, 

with an emphasis on the value proposition that each sub-segment considers most important:

 LARgE COMPANIES ANd REAL ESTATE
 This model targets companies that are looking for a bank that acts as an advisor and understands their business as well as they do, and 

consequentially understands their financial needs and the best way to meet them. This customer service model divides customers into 

the following three sub-segments by size and two specialized areas:

  REAL ESTATE AREA: 

  This area has extensive experience in the market, and provides custom financing to real estate projects.

  FINANCIAL AdvISORY ANd STRUCTUREd FINANCE AREA: 

  This area has highly trained professionals and provides advice and financing for project finance, 

  restructuring liabilities, syndicated loans, and corporate acquisitions, among other transactions.

 COMPANIES BANKINg ANd REgIONAL BRANCHES
 This model targets companies looking for the best overall service for their financial needs. This service is improved by dividing customers 

into two sub-segments by size and an additional sub-segment serving regional customers.
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03
 FINANCIAL BANKINg

 This model targets corporate and institutional customers, who require highly sophisticated products and services. They are very 

demanding in terms of speed and cost, but are not willing to sacrifice service quality. These three aspects need to be combined 

seamlessly, so this area was incorporated into the Finance Division and its executives work closely with our Trade Desk.

These are complemented by areas providing specialized products such as:

 FOREIgN TRAdE ANd INTERNATIONAL SERvICES
 Banco Security has made this a strategic area in the value proposition for our customers, and for this reason our proximity to customers 

and the effectiveness of our processes and products, particularly the electronic platform E-Comex, are strengths that are widely 

recognized in the market. These services were strengthened when Banco Security opened a representative office in hong kong in June 

2014, making us the only Chilean bank with a presence in this important global financial center and a trade bridge with China.

 LEASINg dIvISION 
 This area is fundamental within the value-added services provided to the Bank’s business customers, because it provides financing for 

companies to enable them to continue growing and improve their competitiveness, either through asset or real estate leases or lease-

back.

The portfolio of products and services offered by the Bank to business customers includes a complete range of credit products in local 

and foreign currencies, financial advice, structured finance, mortgage financing, leasing, current accounts in local and foreign currencies, 

foreign trade, purchase and sale of foreign currencies, payment options, payment services, derivatives (exchange rate hedges, inflation 

hedges, swaps), deposits, investments and others.

RETAIL BANKINg

“We want to provide our customers with preferential, personalized and transparent service, that 
differentiates us from our competition”

The target segment for retail banking at Banco Security is high-income individuals (socioeconomic sector ABC1). The customer service model 

has been separated to match customer profiles in each target segment, as well as to maximize specialization and customer satisfaction:

 PRIvATE BANKINg ANd PREMIER BANKINg
 This model targets high-income and high net-worth customers, who require specialized investment care, extensive advice from their 

relationship manager executive and a range of products and services tailored to satisfy their requirements.

 PREFERENTIAL BANKINg
 This model targets customers who require traditional financial products and services, and expect first-class personalized attention.

 ENTREPRENEUR BANKINg
 This model targets entrepreneurs that need both retail and commercial banking services, with annual revenues under uF 35,000, and 

access to specialized financial products and services provided with Banco Security’s hallmark service quality.
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The Bank is always focused on providing our customers comprehensive service. It offers a wide variety of products and services for these 

segments, which includes current accounts in local and foreign currencies, a wide variety of credit products, mortgage financing, purchase 

and sale of foreign currencies, payment options (credit and debit cards), payment services, insurance, investment instruments and others.

Banco Security has implemented cutting-edge technologies that provide quick and easy access for customers to their products and 

services through various online channels.

TRAdE dESK

The Trade Desk has always been considered an essential complement of our traditional banking business. This area focuses on institutional 

customers, and provides them with a wide range of financial products along with advice whenever needed, and manages their investment 

portfolios. In addition, this area is responsible for managing matching and liquidity at the Bank, according to guidelines from the ALCO. 

Therefore, the area is composed of:

 dISTRIBUTION SERvICES
 All the financial products managed by the Trade Desk are offered to customers, such as: trading foreign currency, time deposits, foreign 

exchange and inflation hedges, swaps and other financial derivatives, and combinations of these products structured according to each 

customer’s specific requirements.

 TRAdINg SERvICES
 Management of a portfolio of short-term investments.

 ASSET MANAgEMENT SERvICES
 Management of a portfolio of medium and long-term investments

 ASSET & LIABILITY ANd LIQUIdITY SERvICES  
 This area is in charge of managing interest rate risk and currency and liquidity gaps generated by structural mismatches in the balance 

sheet, following guidelines provided by the ALCO.

ASSET MANAgEMENT

This area offers a broad range of products and services that efficiently meet the savings and investment needs of individuals, companies 

and institutional investors. Inversiones Security has acquired growing importance in the market, with complete solutions for stock broking, 

advisory services and third-party asset management.

Administradora General de Fondos Security (AGF Security), with over 15 years’ experience and a prestigious market reputation, serves 

diverse customer segments, including mid-sized investors, high-net-worth individuals, companies and institutional investors in need of 

specialized, professional asset management services.

valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa works to understand its customers’ needs and proactively assist them in selecting from among 

the different investment alternatives available in the market. It accomplishes this through its international business platform and a team 

of highly trained professionals, which make global investing straightforward and transparent. valores Security is a major player in domestic 

debt trading for the institutional market.
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03
BANCO SECuRITy AND ITS ENvIRONMENT

ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL CONTExT

The year 2016 marked the beginning of a new global economic 

cycle influenced by a renewal in political trends, especially in the 

developed world. 

It was the start of a more positive period for emerging markets, 

favored by a more stable dollar. Although this currency began 

2016 at near 10-year maximum levels, it then entered a phase 

of greater stability and even depreciation (multilateral) in the 

margin. 

however, the u.S. presidential election in November caused strong 

shocks to outlooks and assets and left behind high uncertainty 

in the aftermath. The dollar once again gained strength, and 

emerging markets were the most affected.  

gLOBAL gROWTH

In these circumstances, global GDB expanded 2.9% in 2016, 

falling slightly over 2015 (3.2%). In fact, after several years 

of divergence between developed and emerging economies, 

where the former had an advantage, the u.S. economy slowed 

in 2016 along with countries in the euro zone, while emerging 

markets maintained their growth pace at around 4%. There were 

differences between emerging nations. Latin America was the 

hardest hit region with a fall of -1% in its GDP, affected mainly 

by the strong 3.5% deterioration in Brazil.  

In the united States, GDP expanded 1.6% as compared to 2.6% 

the prior year, largely affected by drops in investment levels, 

down 2.2%, as opposed to average growth of 5% in 2015. These 

dEPRECIATION OF POUNd STERLINg 2016

-15%

dECREASE IN AvERAgE COPPER PRICE

-12%

gdP gROWTH

GLOBAL · 2016

GLOBAL · 2015

3.0%

3.2%

UNITED STATES · 2016

UNITED STATES · 2015

1.6%

2.6%

EURO ZONE · 2016

EURO ZONE · 2015

1.7%

2.1%

LATIN AMERICA· 2016

LATIN AMERICA · 2015

-0.1%

-1.0%
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conditions arose amidst strong consumption and labor markets, 

which are the main drivers of the u.S. economy.

The dollar’s stability helped raw material prices recover. Copper 

rose 22% throughout the year, although it averaged uS$ 2.2/

pound, 12% less than 2015. Likewise, the price of wTI crude oil 

rose from uS$ 31 per barrel to uS$ 52, even though the average 

dropped 11% (uS$ 43 vs uS$ 49 per barrel).

EUROPE

Although GDP growth slowed in the euro zone as compared 

to 2015 (1.7% vs. 2.1%), broken down by country, the most 

important nations (Germany, France, Spain and Italy) almost 

maintained their growth pace, and even accelerated from 0.6% 

to 1%. In June, the Brexit victory largely surprised the consensus 

and, although the outcome initially brought volatility, it was 

quickly reversed thanks to liquidity provided by central banks 

and the fact that the united kingdom’s exit was seen as less 

beneficial for the country itself than for others, as reflected in 

the depreciation of the pound sterling (-15%). The repercussions 

were definitely more political than economic in nature. however, 

beyond the one-time fact that the outcome of the Brexit vote 

was unexpected, it serves as one more sign of a growing political 

movement that approaches populist and protectionist ideas. 

These political trends represent one of the main risks today 

within the euro zone as they limit new reforms that support the 

growth of the region as a whole.  

In this context, the European Central Bank continued to provide 

monetary stimulus, although it has been demonstrating 

greater willingness to moderate stimulus packages as inflation 

expectations have begun to recover. 

CHINA

China, in turn, has continued to internalize its reduced growth 

after reorienting its economy from external trade to internal 

consumption with major support from economic policies 

(monetary and fiscal). This has translated to a gradual slowing of 

GDP growth from 7.7% in 2013 to 7.3% in 2014, 6.8% in 2015 

and 6.7% in 2016. 

EQUITY ANd dEBT MARKETS

A more stable dollar for most of the year led investors to take more 

risks and, consequently, global stock markets posted a 5.6% rise in 

dollars (measured by the MSCI index). Emerging countries reported 

an increase of 8.6% and developed economies a rise of 5.3%. 

Among emerging nations, Latin America showed a 28% recovery, 

driven by a rise of over 60% in Brazil, while China fell by -1.4%. 

In the second group, u.S. equity markets grew 10%, while their 

Japanese counterparts expanded 2.5%. In contrast, the euro zone 

slowed 5.3% during the year. 

This greater appetite for risk was also reflected in bond market 

performances: u.S. bonds with higher risk (high yield) grew 19% 

and the most secure (high grade) expanded 5.9%. Likewise, both 

sovereign bonds (EMBI) and corporate bonds (CEMBI) in emerging 

countries rose by over 10%.
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03
CHILE: DOMESTIC CONTExT

This year was a period of prolonged domestic weakness for Chile. 

In the first quarter, the scene was slightly more positive, backed 

by more favorable financial conditions due mainly to a somewhat 

weaker dollar. This led to a recovery in commodities prices, 

improvements in terms of exchange for exporting countries, 

capital inflows to emerging economies, etc. however, the second, 

third and fourth quarters confirmed that the local economy’s 

sustained weakness had extended into 2016. In figures, the year 

ended with GDP growth of 1.5% over 2015.

SPENdINg

From a spending perspective, deceleration was mostly in response 

to investment, while private and government consumption 

reported slight growth. Therefore, the gross formation of fixed 

capital has been declining from its peak at the end of 2012, 

ending 2016 at practically the same level as 2015. The reasons 

for this meager performance include a mature mining investment 

cycle and continued weak business expectations.

gROWTH BY INdUSTRY

Broken down by industry, the fishing sector boasted an increase of 

5.7%, following a reduction of 3% in 2015. The transport industry 

also performed well, up 4%, while the utilities and agriculture and 

livestock sectors grew 3.2% and 3.1%, respectively. In contrast, 

with respect to the tradable sector, manufacturing and mining 

industries contracted -3% and -1.5%, respectively. 

This weak economic performance translated into a gradual 

deterioration in the labor market. Job creation grew by 1.2%, 

although in part supported by public sector recruitment. The 

workforce expanded by 1.5% over the entire year, with the 

average unemployment rate increasing from 6.2% to 6.5%.

FOREIgN TRAdE

Exports totaled uS$ 60 billion, equivalent to a decrease of -3.7% 

compared to 2015. This comprises falls of -7% in mining exports 

(copper -9%) and -2.3% in industrial exports, partially offset by 

an 11% rise in agricultural exports. however, export volumes 

expanded 2% since the -3% contraction in copper volumes was 

offset by an increase of 6% in other exports.

Imports declined in value (13%) reaching only uS$55 billion, 

arising from an abrupt fall in oil imports (-21%), other fuels 

(-11%) and consumer goods (-1%), and no change in capital 

goods. The volume of imported goods fell by 2%. with that, the 

year-end balance of trade was a positive uS$ 4,600 million.

After the slightly negative GDP balance in 2015 of -2.2%, the 

fiscal result for the year closed with a greater deficit of -3.2% of 

GDP, as a result of the slowdown in economic activity and the fall 

in copper prices, which reduced tax revenue.

PRICE INdEXES

The CPI was up 2.7% by the end of the year measured over 

the prior twelve months. A large part of this behavior was in 

response to the deceleration of the tradable component (given 

the appreciation of the Chilean peso), in a context of slight 

moderation of the non-tradable segment (deceleration in 

salaries, rising unemployment). The underlying indicators CPIX 

(standard CPI excluding fuel, fresh fruits and vegetables), CPIX-1 

(CPIX excluding other volatile prices), and IPCSAE (CPI excluding 

food and energy) closed at 2.9%, 2.5% and 2.8%, respectively. 

REFERENCE INTEREST RATES

Although the Chilean Central Bank did not modify its reference 

interest rate (MPR) in 2016, the context of prolonged economic 

weakness—growing below potential once again—together with 

swiftly decelerating inflation, led the institution to shift from a 

restrictive bias early in the year to a neutral bias mid-year and an 

expansionary bias towards the end.

EXCHANgE RATES

During 2016, the Chilean peso exchange rate—with some ups 

and downs—followed the downward trend exhibited by the 

dollar at the global level. At the beginning of 2016 the Chilean 

peso exchange rate was around Ch$720 per uSD, and it finished 

the year around Ch$670, thus appreciating by 7%.
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MAIN ECONOMIC INDICATORS
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 (P) 2016 (P)

GDP (MuS$) 172 218 251 265 277 259 241 245
GDP per Capita (uS$) 10,180 12,726 14,542 15,240 15,781 14,608 13,480 13,601

GDP (% change) -1.0 5.8 5.8 5.4 4.1 1.8 2.3 1.5

Domestic Spending (% change) -5.7 13.5 9.4 7.3 3.6 -0.3 2.0 1.2
   Private Consumption -0.8 10.8 8.9 6.1 5.5 2.4 1.9 2.1
   Fixed Capital Investment -12.1 11.6 15.0 11.6 2.2 -4.2 -1.5 0.1
Exports (% change, in real terms) -4.5 2.3 5.5 0.1 3.3 1.1 -1.9 2.2
Imports (% change, in real terms) -16.2 25.5 16.0 4.8 2.1 -5.7 -2.8 -3.0

Global Growth PPP (%) 0.0 5.4 4.1 3.4 3.3 3.5 3.2 2.9
Terms of Trade (2008 = 100) 105.1 123.3 123.0 117.3 113.9 111.9 106.9 104.2
Copper Price (average uS$ /pound, in cents) 234 342 400 361 332 311 250 221
wTI Oil Price (average uS$/per barrel) 62 79 95 94 98 93 49 43
Federal Funds Rate (Y/E, %) 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.8

180-day LIBOR Rate (Y/E, %) 0.4 0.5 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.8 1.4

10-year u.S. Treasury Bonds (Y/E, %) 3.8 3.3 1.9 1.8 2.9 2.2 2.2 2.5

Euro (Y/E, uS$) 1.43 1.34 1.30 1.32 1.37 1.21 1.09 1.05

Yen (Y/E, ¥/uS$) 93.0 81.1 76.9 86.8 105.3 119.8 121.7 116.0

Balance of Trade (MuS$) 15.4 15.9 11.0 2.3 1.7 6.3 3.5 4.6

   Exports (MuS$) 55.5 71.1 81.4 77.8 76.4 74.9 62.2 59.9

   Imports (MuS$) 40.1 55.2 70.4 75.5 74.7 68.6 58.7 55.4

Current Account (MuS$) 3.5 3.8 -3.1 -9.4 -10.3 -3.3 -4.8 -4.4

Current Account (% of GDP) 2.0 1.7 -1.2 -3.5 -3.7 -1.3 -2.0 -1.8

Total Savings (Domestic + External), % of GDP 20.3 22.3 23.7 25.5 24.4 22.2 22.4 22.4

     Gross Domestic Savings 22.5 24.3 22.9 22.4 21.1 21.3 20.7 20.4

          Central Government -2.4 1.4 3.2 2.5 1.0 0.1 -0.3 -2.0

          Private Sector 24.9 22.9 19.7 19.9 20.1 21.1 21.0 22.4

     External Savings (Current Account Deficit) -2.2 -2.0 0.8 3.2 3.3 0.9 1.6 2.0

Central Government Balance (% of GDP) -4.2 -0.4 1.3 0.6 -0.6 -1.6 -2.2 -3.2

CPI Dec-Dec (%) -1.4 3.0 4.4 1.5 3.0 4.6 4.4 2.7
underlying CPI (CPIXfn) Dec-Dec (%) -1.8 2.5 3.3 1.3 2.4 5.1 4.7 2.9

Inflationary Trend (CPIX1fn) Dec-Dec (%) -1.1 0.0 2.5 1.8 2.5 4.6 4.7 2.5

Chilean Central Bank International Inflation (% 
average)

-7.2 6.0 9.9 -0.2 0.4 -1.1 -9.8 -2.7

Monetary Policy Rate, TPM (Y/E, %, in Ch$) 0.5 3.3 5.3 5.0 4.5 3.0 3.5 3.5
BCP-10 365d Bonds (Y/E, % in Ch$) 6.4 6.1 5.3 5.6 5.2 4.4 4.7 4.5

BCu-10 365d Bonds (Y/E, % in uF) 3.3 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.2 1.5 1.6 1.5

Official Exchange Rate (Y/E Ch$/uS$) 506 468 521 479 524 607 707 667
Official Exchange Rate (avg, Ch$/uS$) 560 510 484 486 495 570 654 677

Job Growth (%) 0.1 7.4 5.0 1.9 2.1 1.5 1.6 1.2
Labor Force Growth (%) 1.9 4.2 3.8 1.1 1.6 2.0 1.4 1.5
unemployment Rate (average %) 10.8 8.1 7.1 6.4 5.9 6.4 6.2 6.5

Salary Growth in Real Terms (average %) 3.8 2.2 2.6 3.4 3.9 2.2 1.8 1.5

External Debt (% of GDP) 19.6 14.3 13.8 15.3 13.5 14.0 18.3 22.6

Total Net External Debt (MuS$) 22.6 29.6 31.7 43.9 39.2 38.4 43.2 47.5
Total Net External Debt (% of GDP) 13.1 13.6 12.6 16.5 14.2 14.8 17.9 19.4

Total Net External Debt (% of Exports) 35.3 36.0 33.5 48.6 44.2 44.7 59.9 68.5
Net International Reserves (MuS$) 25.4 27.9 42.0 41.6 41.1 40.4 38.6 40.5

gdP gROWTH

1.5%
dROP IN EXPORTS

-3.7%
CURRENCY APPRECIATION 

(CLP/USd)

7%
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03
THE BANkING INDuSTRy

LOANS  

Total industry loans reached Ch$149,556,407 million at the close of 2016 (Ch$140,932,918 million excluding foreign subsidiaries of 

local banks), which represents growth of 5.34% compared to 2015 (5.27% excluding foreign subsidiaries of local banks). This is below the 

growth seen in 2015 (12.8%), which is explained by economic deceleration, falling exchange rates and Scotiabank’s purchase of a loan 

portfolio in 2015, among other factors.

Broken down by type of loan, this growth can be explained by increases of 9.4% in mortgage loans, 6.1% in consumer loans and 3.4% in 

commercial loans (excluding foreign subsidiaries of local banks these percentages are: 9.5%, 6.7% and 3.0%, respectively).

The distribution of total loans (excluding foreign subsidiaries of local banks) as of year-end 2016 is illustrated in the following figure:

28.3%
58.2%

MORTGAGE
LOANS

COMMERCIAL 
LOANS

13.5%
CONSUMER

LOANS

LOAN PORTFOLIO 
EXCLUDING FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES OF LOCAL BANKS

TOTAL INDUSTRY LOAN GROWTH
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Source: SBIF 
Note: excludeS loaNS aNd advaNceS to BaNkS aNd ForeIgN SuBSIdIarIeS oF local BaNkS. alSo, coNtINgeNt loaNS were excluded From hIStorIcal loaNS, aS theSe muSt Be excluded 
wIth eFFect From JaNuary 2008, IN accordaNce wIth New StaNdardS.
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MARKET SHARE 
DECEMBER 2016  ·  EXCLUDING FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES OF LOCAL BANKS
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The three largest banks by market share are: Banco de Chile, Santander and BCI, which account for 51.84% of total industry loans 

(excluding foreign subsidiaries of local banks), up from their combined market share of 50.12% in 2015. As of December 2016, Banco 

Security had a market share of 3.17%, excluding loans and advances to banks and foreign subsidiaries of local banks, reflecting an increase 

of 3.03% over the prior year.

RESULTS    

The banking industry posted profit for the year ended December 31, 2016, of Ch$ 1,964,924 million (approximately uS$ 2.9 billion), 

which represents a nominal contraction of 10.1% over 2015. This negative change in results can be explained primarily by increased 

operating expenses (5.4%) and practically no variation in the net interest margin (0.9%). Likewise, the gross operating margin fell 0.6%, 

explained by a decrease in net financial operating income (-60.6%) and an increase in other operating expenses (42.8%, basically due to 

an increase in contingency provisions), which were only partially offset by an increase in net foreign exchange transactions.

Total equity grew by 15.5% in the year, reaching Ch$17,803 billion, giving a return on equity of 11.04%, which is less than the 14.18% 

recorded last year. Meanwhile, return on total assets was 0.93% (1.07% for the previous year). These indicators were negatively affected 

by the merger of Itaú and Corpbanca (April 2016), which resulted in a decrease in system profit and an increase in its capital base. A group 

of banks reported losses for the year 2016 totaling MCh$45,179. 

Source: SBIF
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03

PROFIT AND RETURN ON EQUITY FOR THE CHILEAN BANKING INDUSTRY
(BCH$)
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EFFICIENCY RATIO
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OPERATINg EXPENSES

Expenses for 2016 increased by 5.4% over 2015, explained mainly by increases in depreciation expenses (20.2%), payroll and personnel 

expenses (6.0%), and, to a lesser extent, administrative expenses (1.8%). This growth in expenses, combined with the fall in gross operating 

income (-0.6%), resulted in a deterioration in the efficiency ratio for the financial sector (measured as operating expenses divided by total 

gross operating income), which rose from 47.9% in 2015 to 50.4% in 2016. 

Source: SBIF 

Source: SBIF 

The following graph illustrates profit for the year and return on equity for the industry.



pAGE

39

Banco Santander remained the most efficient among the large and mid-sized banks, with a ratio of 39.9%, up from the previous year of 

40.5%, followed by Banco de Chile with an efficiency ratio of 44.6% (42.7% for the previous year). Among the mid-sized banks, Bice stood 

out with 48.7%, followed by Scotiabank with 50.5% and BBvA with 55.9% (Banco Security had 59.3%). 

RISK  

The risk ratio for the financial sector was 2.50% of loans at the end of December 2016, a deterioration in relation to 2015 when it was 

2.38%. Provisions as a percentage of commercial loans were 2.42%, while mortgage and consumer loan provisions reached 0.94% and 

6.19%, respectively. 

The ratio of nonperforming loans to total loans has steadily declined since December 2011. The ratio for the financial sector (total 

portfolio) reached 1.85% as of year-end 2016 (1.86% in 2015). Broken down by type of loan, this figure was 2.00% for consumer loans 

(2.08% in 2015), 2.71% for mortgage loans (2.69% in 2015) and 1.46% for commercial loans (1.47% in 2015).

CREdIT RISK RATIOS dEC-12 dEC-13 dEC-14 dEC-15 dEC-16

LOAN LOSS PROvISIONS / TOTAL LOANS 2.27% 2.39% 2.42% 2.38% 2.50%

NONPERFORMING LOANS(1) / TOTAL LOANS EXCLuDING LOANS AND ADvANCES TO 
BANkS

2.20% 2.13% 2.10% 1.86% 1.85%

COMMERCIAL LLP / COMMERCIAL LOANS 2.00% 2.20% 2.36% 2.38% 2.42%

RETAIL LLP / RETAIL LOANS 2.77% 2.78% 2.59% 2.44% 2.67%

        MORTGAGE LLP / MORTGAGE LOANS 0.79% 0.75% 0.70% 0.70% 0.94%

        CONSuMER LLP / CONSuMER LOANS 6.36% 6.31% 6.11% 5.84% 6.19%

RISK RATIO FOR CHILEAN BANKING INDUSTRY
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Source: SBIF 
(1) NoNperFormINg loaNS: a StreSSed meaSuremeNt oF the Former paSt-due portFolIo INdIcator. INcludeS the total amouNt oF the NoNperFormINg loaN (> 90 dayS paSt due) eveN 
wheN oNly oNe or Some loaN INStallmeNtS (prINcIpal aNd/or INtereSt) are delINqueNt. they are alSo part oF the ImpaIred portFolIo aNd puBlIShed BegINNINg JaNuary 2009.

Source: SBIF



pAGE

40

STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03

BANCO SECURITY LOAN GROWTH
(BCH$)
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MARKET SHARE (EXCLUDING FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES OF LOCAL BANKS)

LOANS
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3.0% 3.0%

2.8%
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2.9%
3.0% 3.1% 3.1% 3.0%
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BANCO SECuRITy MANAGEMENT RESuLTS  

LOANS 

Banco Security has reported consistent growth in loans in recent years, boasting an accumulated growth rate above the industry. In other 

words, in the last five years, Banco Security’s loan portfolio expanded 11.5%, while the industry grew 9.5% (excluding foreign subsidiaries 

of local banks).

As of year-end 2016, the Bank had total loans of Ch$4,462 billion (excluding loans and advances to banks), ranking eighth among Chilean 

banks (industry figures exclude loans and advances to banks and foreign subsidiaries of local banks), with 10.0% growth during the year 

while the industry as a whole expanded 5.3%.

The Bank’s market share has gradually increased, posting 3.17% in 2016 (3.07% in 2015), excluding foreign subsidiaries of local banks. 

Loan growth can be explained by increases of 11.8% in commercial loans, 5.8% in consumer loans and 2.9% in mortgage loans.

Source: SBIF
Note: coNtINgeNt loaNS were excluded From hIStorIcal loaNS, aS theSe muSt Be excluded wIth eFFect From JaNuary 2008, IN accordaNce wIth New StaNdardS. alSo excludeS loaNS 
aNd advaNceS to BaNkS.
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Source: SBIF

Source: SBIF
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The loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016, was similar to the portfolio as of December 31, 2015, and is illustrated in the following 

figure:

RESULTS

Profit for the year 2016 for Banco Security and its subsidiaries amounted to Ch$50,606 million, up 6.7% from last year. Profit by business 
segment is disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. There is a greater contribution from the Commercial Banking Division of 
MCh$22,621, explained by a 76.9% drop in loan losses. This was partially offset by reduced contributions from the Retail Banking Division 
of MCh$3,705 (-5.6%), the Financial Banking Division of MCh$770 and the Bank’s subsidiaries of MCh$2,285 (-21.8%). 

Our operating expenses rose by 31.6% (compared to an industry average of 5.4%), due mainly to technological development expenses 
and greater depreciation because of an adjustment in accounting policies, as well as an increase in transaction volumes.

In addition, gross operating income was affected by significant impairment of intangible assets, which explains how the efficiency ratio 
reached 59.3%. Excluding these effects, the efficiency ratio would have been 46.5%.

The Bank’s return on equity was 11.0% (compared to 11.6% in 2015), ranking us ninth in the industry.
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STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT03
SUBSIdIARIES

The subsidiaries consolidated by Banco Security—valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa (99.88%) and AGF Security S.A. (99.99%)—

contributed profit of Ch$8,170 million in 2016, a decrease of 21.8% over last year.

The process of integrating and merging the Banco Penta subsidiaries (Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A and Penta Corredores de 

Bolsa S.A.) with Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A., and valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa was successfully completed 

in 2016.

AGF Security posted profit of Ch$6,939 million and a market share of 6.0% at the close of 2016, which was very similar to the 5.9% at the 

close of 2015. valores Security achieved a market share of 5.7% by trading value, ranking it sixth by share trading value on the Santiago 

and Electronic Stock Exchanges, and reported profit of Ch$1,233 million at the close of 2016.

RISK

Among other duties, Banco Security’s management is responsible for properly managing the different risks inherent to the business (credit, 

market, liquidity and operational risk) in order to optimize its risk-return ratio. This is achieved by establishing clear policies and a defined 

structure, with risk being controlled by individuals independent of those who manage it. Over the past few years, the Bank has been 

developing new risk models to accurately calculate and manage credit, market and operational risks, and it has designed and implemented 

various mechanisms to promptly manage risks as they arise. 

Therefore, these models, together with a conservative risk management policy and coordination with sales departments, have enabled the 

Bank to manage the loan origination process, for both the commercial and retail loan portfolios. This has resulted in credit risk indicators 

that continue to compare favorably with the industry.

As of December 31, 2016, the risk ratio for Banco Security was 1.81%, which is lower than year-end 2015 (1.83%). This is explained by 

a decrease in the ratio for commercial loans (from 1.99% to 1.88%), which offsets the increase in customer risk in the Retail Banking 

Division, up 1.28% in 2015 to 1.53% as of year-end 2016 (mainly because of greater risk in consumer loans). Despite this, the rate remains 

below the average for the industry at 2.50%. Likewise, the Bank’s non-performing portfolio indicators for its 90-day non-performing 

loans was 1.43% compared to 1.85% for the industry, and for its impaired portfolio was 4.35% compared to 5.10% for the industry, both 

outperforming the financial sector. 



pAGE

43

Source: SBIF

RISK RATIO: BANCO SECURITY VS. CHILEAN BANKING INDUSTRY
%
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CAPITALIzATION

The Bank aims to continually achieve a ratio of regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets higher than 10%, and to remain at or above 

12% most of the time. Successive capital contributions (Ch$87,000 million between August 2011 and November 2014 and Ch$10,000 

in March 2016) and the capitalization of earnings each year reflect the shareholders’ continued commitment and support, which has 

strengthened the Bank’s capital base in order to position it to better address the challenges associated with loan and asset growth, and to 

gradually adopt the stricter basic capital requirements under the Basel III rules.

As of December 2016, the Bank’s Basel Index was 13.22%, somewhat below the industry average of 13.78% as of the same date.
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gENERAL INFORMATION

04
Banco Security grew from 144 employees 
in 1991 to 1,230 as of year-end 2016.
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GENERAL INFORMATION04
ANTECEDENTES GENERALES

COMPANY INFORMATION 

 LEgAL NAME                                        
 BANCO SECuRITY

 TYPE OF COMPANY                          
 Banking corporation

 SECURITIES REgISTRATION             
 Banco Security is not listed on the Securities Registry

 CORPORATE PURPOSE                    
 To engage in the business, contracts, transactions and operations permitted for a commercial bank in accordance with current legislation.

 CHILEAN TAX Id                                
 97.053.000-2

 AddRESS 

 Av. Apoquindo 3150, Floor 15, Las Condes, Santiago, Chile

 TELEPHONE 

 (56-2) 2584 4000

 FAX 

 (56-2) 2584 4001

 EMAIL 

 banco@security.cl

 WEB
 www.security.cl

 INCORPORATION 

 The Company was formed by public instrument on August 26, 1981, before the Public Notary Mr. Enrique Morgan Torres. The respective 

extract of the articles of incorporation was published in the Official Gazette on September 23, 1981. 
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grupo SecurIty

BaNco 
SecurIty

capItal
S.a

INmoBIlIarIa 
SecurIty S.a.

INverSIoNeS 
SeguroS 

SecurIty ltda.

SecurItIzadora 
SecurIty S.a.

FactorINg 
S.a.

aSeSorÍaS 
SecurIty S.a.

SecurIty 
INterNacIoNal 

S.a.

99.97270% 99.98530% 99.99950% 99.9980% 99.9990% 99.9600% 99.7818% 100.0000%

agF
SecurIty

99.9904%

gloBal aSSet
advISorS

99.0000%

vIda
SecurIty

97.82117%

repSe

99.00%

corredora 
SeguroS 
SecurIty

99.998%

hIpotecarIa 
SecurIty - 
prINcIpal

51%

gloBal 
SecurIty 
geStIóN y 
ServIcIoS

99.77%

INmoBIlIarIa 
caSaNueStra 

S.a.

99.99867%

valoreS
SecurIty

99.8758%

vIaJeS
SecurIty 

(perÚ)

99.99998%

europ 
aSSIStaNce 

49%

INverSIoNeS 
SecurIty 

(perÚ)

99.999%

protecta 
compañÍa de 

SeguroS

61%

travex
SecurIty 

(perÚ)

75%

maNdatoS
SecurIty

99.77%

travel
SecurIty

83%

BeNeFIcIoS
SecurIty

99.90%

ServIcIoS
SecurIty

99.99998%

OWNERSHIP ANd ORgANIzATIONAL STRUCTURE  

Banco Security is controlled by Grupo Security, which owned 99.9727% of its shares, as of December 31, 2016
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PERSONNEL ANd COMPENSATION

As of December 31, 2016, Banco Security and its subsidiaries had a total of 1,230 employees, down 2.2% from December 2015, and 

57.3% of which were women. Total compensation paid by the Bank to its executives during the year was Ch$5,518.4 million, and 

termination benefits totaled Ch$112.0 million.   

The following table details employee distribution by company:

COMPANY EXECUTIvES PROFESSIONALS WORKERS TOTAL

ADMINISTRADORA GENERAL DE FONDOS SECuRITY S.A. 3 27 20 50

vALORES SECuRITY CORREDORES DE BOLSA S.A. 8 41 17 66

BANCO SECuRITY 33 794 287 1,114

TOTAL 44 862 324 1,230

The Bank and its subsidiaries have a significant incentive program, as do all companies within Grupo Security. The program is based on 

achieving targets for return on capital and reserves, and meeting annual budgets. Each company directly incurs the expenses associated 

with its incentive plan.

MANAgEMENT POLICIES

PP&E ANd TECHNOLOgY INvESTMENT POLICY

Banco Security has a policy for investing in property, plant and equipment (PP&E) and technology that defines the project evaluation 

process. Project approval depends on the value of the investment:

 Investments from uF 3,000 up to uF 10,000 must be approved by a committee of managers.

 Investments from uF 10,000 up to uF 30,000 must be approved by an executive committee together with the Chief Executive Officer.

 Investments exceeding uF 30,000 must be approved by the Board.

Investments are aligned with our business strategy and have been focused mainly on physical and technological infrastructure. Initiatives 

have been designed to strengthen our ability to provide our customers with comprehensive, first-class service, and to use resources more 

efficiently.

FINANCINg POLICY

Banco Security has defined the general guidelines for managing the matching of maturities and currencies, liquidity and concentration 

by creditor. These are all aimed at limiting the risks inherent to the banking business, above and beyond the requirements established by 

current regulations.
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dIvIdENd POLICY

Banco Security does not have an established a dividend policy. The amount to be distributed each year depends on the capital required to 

support growth, aimed at keeping the solvency index at the level desired by the Board and senior management.

The following table details the dividends paid by the Bank to its shareholders from 2000 onwards, and their corresponding percentage of 

net income:

In addition, the Bank carried the following international risk rating provided by Standard & Poor’s.  As of December 31, 2016, our risk rating 

was as follows:

RISK RATINg

Banco Security’s liabilities carried the following local risk ratings at the end of 2016:

dATE COMPANY PAYINg dIvIdENd AMOUNT (MCH$) % OF PROFIT FOR PRIOR YEAR

Feb-2000 Banco Security  4,254.4 50.0%

Feb-2001 Banco Security  7,344.0 76.2%

Feb-2002 Banco Security  8,749.7 90.0%

Feb-2003 Banco Security  9,061.7 90.0%

Feb-2004 Banco Security  13,326.1 100.0%

Feb-2005 Banco Security  11,219.1 80.0%

Mar-2006 Banco Security  20,014.3 100.0%

Mar-2007 Banco Security  20,498.0 100.0%

Mar-2008 Banco Security  13,625.0 50.0%

Mar-2009 Banco Security  7,720.0 53.5%

Mar-2010 Banco Security  23,040.2 100.0%

Mar-2011 Banco Security  20,223.5 60.0%

Mar-2012 Banco Security  21,009.8 60.0%

apr-2013 Banco Security  35,227.0 100.0%

Mar-2014 Banco Security  9,839.3 30.0%

Mar-2015 Banco Security  16,770.7 30.0%

Mar-2016 Banco Security  14,227.2 30.0%

 
dEMANd ANd OTHER dEPOSITS

REPRESENTATIvE OF BORROWINgS LETTERS OF CREdIT LETTERS OF CREdIT SUBORdINATEd 
BONdS OUTLOOK

 SHORT-TERM  LONg-TERM

ICR Level 1 + AA AA AA AA - Stable

Fitch Ratings Level  1 + AA - AA - AA - A Stable

 gLOBAL SCALE LOCAL CURRENCY gLOBAL SCALE FOREIgN CURRENCY

Standard & Poor's  BBB- /Stable/A-3  BBB- /Stable/A-3
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SUBSIDIARIES05
ADMINISTRADORA GENERAL DE FONDOS SECuRITy S.A.

 BOARd OF dIRECTORS 

  CHAIRMAN 
  Francisco Silva S.

  dIRECTORS 

  Bonifacio Bilbao h.

  Carlos Budge C.

  Felipe Larraín M.

  Renato Peñafiel M.

 MANAgEMENT 

  CHIEF EXECUTIvE OFFICER 
  Juan Pablo Lira T.

  CHIEF INvESTMENT OFFICER 

  Pablo Jaque S.

 TYPE OF COMPANY                                  
 Corporation, subsidiary of Banco Security

 SECURITIES REgISTRATION    
 The company is registered under number 0112

 CORPORATE PURPOSE                            
 General fund manager.

 INCORPORATION 
 The company was formed by public instrument on May 26, 1992, and was licensed to operate by the Securities and Insurance 

Supervisor (SvS) in Ruling No. 0112 dated June 2, 1992.

 The funds managed by the company are subject to the special legal regulations contained in Decree Law No. 1,328 and its corresponding 

regulations, which are monitored by the SvS.
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The Chilean mutual fund industry expanded 7.0% during 2016, closing the year with Ch$31,194,215 million in assets under management. 

however, several contrasting trends were observed in the different types of funds: bond funds reported considerable growth, while equity 

funds fell significantly and money market funds (accounting for 44% of total assets under management) grew 7.5%, in line with the 

industry. This change of mix, which reflects a search for more conservative assets, translated into reduced fees for fund management 

companies.  

 

As of year-end 2016, AGF Security had Ch$1,854,062 million in assets under management, up 8.3% over year-end 2015. This figure 

surpasses industry growth (it is important to remember that the merger with Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. was completed 

in February 2016).

AGF Security began 2016 with 24 mutual funds, 6 investment funds and 2 closed investment funds. As of year-end 2016, as a result of 

the merger of several Penta mutual funds and the closure of some investment funds, Security ended the year managing 26 mutual funds, 

14 open investment funds and 3 closed investment funds.

The subsidiary’s profit for the year 2016 was 19.2% less than in 2015, mainly because of reduced income earned during the year as a 

result of lower average fees and higher sales and administrative expenses.

AGF SECURITY ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND MARKET SHARE
MCH$
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SUBSIDIARIES05
vALORES SECuRITy S.A. CORREDORES DE BOLSA

 BOARd OF dIRECTORS

  CHAIRMAN 
  Ramón Eluchans O.

  dIRECTORS 

  Enrique Menchaca O.

  Fernando Salinas P. 

  Nicolás ugarte B.

  hitoshi kamada

 MANAgEMENT 

  CHIEF EXECUTIvE OFFICER 
  Rodrigo Fuenzalida B.

  CHIEF OPERATINg OFFICER 

  Juan Adell S.

  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

  Andrés Pérez L.

 TYPE OF COMPANY                                
 Corporation, subsidiary of Banco Security

 SECURITIES REgISTRATION     
 The company is registered under number 0111

 CORPORATE PURPOSE                          
 To engage in various businesses, including trading equities (stock brokerage), fixed income instruments and foreign currency; portfolio 

management and financial advisory services.

 INCORPORATION 
 The company was formed by public instrument on April 10, 1987, before the Public Notary Mr. Enrique Morgan Torres.
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One of the year’s most important milestones was the successful completion of the merger of valores Security and Penta Corredores de 

Bolsa in February 2016.

During the year, value of shares traded on the Santiago and Electronic Stock Exchanges was Ch$39,223,552 million for the industry, 

representing growth of 16.0% over 2015. valores Security reported value of shares traded of Ch$2,235,026 million with growth of 56.8%. 

This performance earned it sixth place on the ranking of brokers and a market share of 5.7% (vs. 4.2% as of year-end 2015).

The subsidiary posted profit for the year 2016 of Ch$1,233 million, down 34.1% from 2015. This fall can be explained by the sale of one 

share in the Santiago Stock Exchange in 2015, generating an extraordinary gain of Ch$1,497 million.

VALORES SECURITY VALUE OF SHARES TRADED AND MARKET SHARE
BCH$
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06 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders and Directors of Banco Security:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Banco Security and its subsidiaries (“the Bank”), 

which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related 

consolidated statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements 

of cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAgEMENT’S RESPONSIbIlITy 
fOR ThE CONSOlIDATED fINANCIAl STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 

accordance with the accounting standards and instructions issued by the Superintendency of Banks and Financial 

Institutions. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant 

to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIbIlITy

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 

our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Chile. Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks 

of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the 

consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 

such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 

financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of Banco Security and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations 

and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting standards and instructions issued by the 

Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions.

EMPhASIS Of A MATTER

As indicated in Note 2ac) to the consolidated financial statements, on February 15, 2016, Banco Security acquired 

99.999992% of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. and 99.99980% of Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. Following 

these acquisitions, Banco Security contributed these companies to its subsidiaries Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa 

and Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A., respectively, in order to increase the capital of both subsidiaries, 

resulting in the merger of each company with the respective subsidiary. These entities have been consolidated in these 

financial statements as of the acquisition date. The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities consolidated in these 

financial statements has been determined on a provisional basis as indicated in Note 2ac) to the consolidated financial 

statements, which is within the framework of IFRS 3, that permits said calculation subject to possible variations during one 

year.

OThER MATTER

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into English for the convenience of readers 

outside Chile.

January 19, 2017

Santiago, Chile
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06 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOlIDATED STATEMENT 
Of fINANCIAl POSITION
AS OF
FIGuRES IN MIllIONS OF ChIlEAN PESOS - MCh$

NOTE

DECEMbER 31, 
2016 
MCh$

DECEMbER 31, 
2015 
MCh$

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 6  441,177  561,624 
Transactions pending settlement 6  32,185  41,092 
Financial instruments held for trading 7  267,099  188,758 
Receivables from repurchase agreements and securities borrowing 8  -  - 
Financial derivative instruments 9  99,887  139,322 
loans and advances to banks 10  238  713 
loans to customers 11  4,381,443  3,981,083 
Investments available for sale 12  610,695  421,023 

Investments held to maturity  -  - 

Investments in other companies 13  4,152  3,048 

Intangible assets 14  53,285  67,861 

Property, plant and equipment 15  25,059  25,601 

Current tax assets 16  1,086  2,877 

Deferred tax assets 16  35,992  31,825 

Other assets 17  138,552  119,853 

TOTAL ASSETS  6,090,850  5,584,680 

LIABILITIES

Current accounts and other demand deposits 18  570,018  583,856 

Transactions pending settlement 6  5,985  13,565 

Payables from repurchase agreements and securities lending 8  27,008  34,492 

Savings accounts and time deposits 18  3,051,820  2,717,668 

Financial derivative contracts 9  83,006  138,969 

Borrowings from financial institutions 19  158,757  228,156 

Debt issued 20  1,571,273  1,344,873 

Other financial obligations 20  20,139  22,647 
Current tax liabilities 16  208  - 
Deferred tax liabilities 16  15,146  16,538 

Provisions 21  31,636  27,300 

Other liabilities 22  94,117  48,276 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  5,629,113  5,176,340 

EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders of the bank:

Capital   252,047  242,047 
Reserves 24  24,710  23,950 

Valuation accounts 24  3,268  (3,986)
Retained earnings
          Retained earnings from prior periods  146,239  113,042 
          Profit for the year  50,604  47,424 
          less: Provision for minimum dividends  (15,181)  (14,227)

 461,687  408,250 

Non-controlling interests  50  90 

TOTAL EQUITY  461,737  408,340 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  6,090,850  5,584,680 
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CONSOlIDATED 
STATEMENT Of INCOME

FOR ThE yEARS ENDED
FIGuRES IN MIllIONS OF ChIlEAN PESOS - MCh$

NOTE

DECEMbER 31, 
2016 
MCh$

DECEMbER 31, 
2015 
MCh$

Interest and indexation income 25  329,711  316,810 

Interest and indexation expenses 25  (193,787)  (183,407)

          Net interest and indexation income  135,924  133,403 

Fee and commission income 26  63,940  57,198 

Fee and commission expenses 26  (10,537)  (8,864)

          Net fee and commission income  53,403  48,334 

Net financial operating income (loss) 27  38,383  (4,676)

Net foreign exchange transactions 28  1,456  21,355 

Other operating income 34  9,587  9,396 

          Total operating income  238,753  207,812 

Credit risk provisions 29  (27,777)  (44,118)

OPERATING INCOME, NET OF CREDIT RISK PROVISIONS  210,976  163,694 

Payroll and personnel expenses 30  (54,724)  (41,358)

Administrative expenses 31  (59,010)  (49,691)

Depreciation and amortization 32  (15,201)  (6,793)

Impairment 33  (21,100)  (1,557)

Other operating expenses 34  (4,488)  (7,223)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES  (154,523)  (106,622)

NET OPERATING INCOME  56,453  57,072 

Income attributable to investments in other companies 13  320  260 

Profit before tax  56,773  57,332 

Income tax expense 16  (6,167)  (9,903)

Profit from continuing operations  50,606  47,429 

Profit from discontinued operations  -  - 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  50,606  47,429 

Attributable to:

          Equity holders of the bank  50,604  47,424 

          Non-controlling interest  2  5 

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the bank: Ch$ Ch$

          Basic earnings per share 24  241  230 

          Diluted earnings per share 24  241  230 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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06 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOlIDATED STATEMENT 
Of OThER COMPREhENSIVE INCOME 
FOR ThE yEARS ENDED
FIGuRES IN MIllIONS OF ChIlEAN PESOS - MCh$

DECEMbER 31, 
2016 
MCh$

DECEMbER 31, 
2015 
MCh$

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  50,606  47,429 

OThER COMPREhENSIVE INCOME

Valuation of investments available for sale  9,442  (4,747)

Valuation of accounting hedges  -  - 

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Other comprehensive income (loss) before taxes  9,442  (4,747)

Income taxes related to other comprehensive income (loss)  (2,188)  1,068 

Total other comprehensive income (loss)  7,254  (3,679)

CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  57,860  43,750 

Attributable to:

 Equity holders of the bank  57,858  43,745 

Non-controlling interest  2  5 

Comprehensive earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the bank:  Ch$  Ch$ 

Basic  275  212 

Diluted  275  212 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENT 
Of ChANgES IN EQUITy 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
FIGuRES IN MIllIONS OF ChIlEAN PESOS - MCh$

ATTRIbUTAblE TO EQUITy hOlDERS Of ThE bANk

NON-
CONTROllINg 

INTEREST
MCh$

TOTAl
MCh$

PAID-IN 
CAPITAl 
MCh$

RESERVES  
MCh$

VAlUATION 
ACCOUNTS 

MCh$

RETAINED EARNINgS

TOTAl
MCh$

PRIOR yEARS  
MCh$

PROfIT fOR 
ThE yEAR

MCh$

PROVISION 
fOR 

MINIMUM 
DIVIDENDS

MCh$

Balances as of 
December 31, 2014  242,046  24,190  (307)  73,906  55,902  (16,771)  378,966  85  379,051 

Reclassification of 
profit for the year  -  -  -  55,902  (55,902)  -  -  -  - 

Dividends paid  -  -  -  (16,771)  -  (16,771)  -  (16,771)

Provision for minimum 
dividends  -  -  -  -  -  16,771  16,771  -  16,771 

Other equity 
movements  -  (240)  -  5  -  -  (235)  -  (235)

Capital increase  1  -  -  -  -  -  1  -  1 

Investments available 
for sale  -  -  (3,679)  -  -  -  (3,679)  -  (3,679)

Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  47,424  -  47,424  5  47,429 

Provision for minimum 
dividends  -  -  -  -  -  (14,227)  (14,227)  -  (14,227)

Balances as of 
December 31, 2015  242,047  23,950  (3,986)  113,042  47,424  (14,227)  408,250  90  408,340 

Reclassification of 
profit for the year  -  -  -  47,424  (47,424)  -  -  -  - 

Dividends paid  -  -  -  (14,227)  -  -  (14,227)  -  (14,227)

Provision for minimum 
dividends  -  -  -  -  -  14,227  14,227  -  14,227 

Other equity 
movements  -  760  -  -  -  -  760  (42)  718 

Capital increase  10,000  -  -  -  -  -  10,000  -  10,000 

Investments available 
for sale  -  -  7,254  -  -  -  7,254  -  7,254 

Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  50,604  -  50,604  2  50,606 

Provision for minimum 
dividends  -  -  -  -  -  (15,181)  (15,181)  -  (15,181)

Balances as of 
December 31, 2016  252,047  24,710  3,268  146,239  50,604  (15,181)  461,687  50  461,737 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE

DECEMbER 31, 
2016 
MCh$

DECEMbER 31, 
2015 
MCh$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Consolidated profit before tax  56,773  57,332 

Charges (credits) to profit that do not represent cash flows:
   Credit risk provisions  27,777  44,118 
   Depreciation and amortization  15,201  6,793 
   Impairment  21,100  1,557 
   Other provisions  640  2,402 
   Operational charge-offs  2,627  3,055 
   Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities  (5,559)  (4,454)
   Valuation of investments in trading book  (1,892)  (2,616)
   Valuation of trading derivatives  (16,528)  5,423 
   Income attributable to investments in other companies  (320)  (260)
   Gain on sales of assets received in lieu of payment  (177)  (378)
   Net fee and commission income  (53,403)  (48,334)
   Net interest and indexation income  (135,924)  (133,403)
   Other credits that do not represent cash flows  (1,977)  (20,793)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
   Decrease in loans and advances to banks  474  6,467 
   Increase in loans to customers  (365,644)  (355,316)
   (Increase) decrease in investments  (267,400)  19,881 
   (Increase) decrease in leased assets  16,953  (22,153)
   Sale of assets received in lieu of payment  132  737 
   Increase (decrease) in current accounts and other demand deposits  (13,838)  71,607 
   Decrease in sales with repurchase agreements and securities lending  (7,484)  (21,746)
   Increase in savings accounts and time deposits  318,010  193,079 
   Net change in letters of credit  (3,350)  (4,954)
   Net change in senior bonds  163,576  186,016 
   Increase in other assets and liabilities  (18,487)  (19,542)
   Recovered taxes  4,183  -   
   Interest and indexation received  287,145  325,080 
   Interest and indexation paid  (156,147)  (159,096)
   Fees and commissions received  63,940  57,198 
   Fees and commissions paid  (10,537)  (8,864)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities  (80,136)  178,836 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
   Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15  (1,461)  (3,034)
   Acquisition of intangible assets 14  (8,719)  (12,189)
Net cash flows used in investing activities  (10,180)  (15,223)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
   Decrease in domestic interbank loans  (510)  (575)
   Increase (decrease) in foreign interbank loans  (69,026)  82,312 
   Decrease in other financial liabilities  (2,184)  (1,591)
   Net change in subordinated bonds  44,491  (4,494)
   Capital increase  10,000  1 
   Dividends paid 24  (14,227)  (16,771)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities  (31,456)  58,882 

TOTAL POSITIVE (NEGATIVE) NET CASH FLOWS  (121,772)  222,495 

CASh AND CASh EQuIVAlENTS AT BEGINNING OF yEAR 6  589,151  366,661 

EFFECT OF NON-CONTROllING INTEREST  (2)  (5)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 6  467,377  589,151 

CONSOlIDATED STATEMENTS 
Of CASh flOWS 
FOR ThE yEARS ENDED
FIGuRES IN MIllIONS OF ChIlEAN PESOS - MCh$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO ThE CONSOlIDATED
fINANCIAl STATEMENTS

FIGuRES IN MIllIONS OF ChIlEAN PESOS - MCh$

1. bUSINESS DESCRIPTION

Banco Security (hereinafter the “Bank”) is a corporation regulated by the Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions 

(hereinafter the “SBIF”). The Bank is headquartered at Apoquindo 3,100, las Condes, Santiago.

The Bank’s main target markets include medium and large companies and individuals in the high-income segment. It also 

offers international banking and treasury services. In addition, through its subsidiaries Valores S.A. Corredores de Bolsa and 

Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A., the Bank offers its customers securities brokerage, asset management and 

retirement advisory services, as well as voluntary pension savings products.

Grupo Security is the controller of Banco Security, as demonstrated in the following tables:

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016

ShAREhOlDERS NO. Of ShARES % OWNERShIP INTEREST

Grupo Security 210,895,936 99.97

Minority interests 57,552 0.03

Total 210,953,488 100

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

ShAREhOlDERS NO. Of ShARES % OWNERShIP INTEREST

Grupo Security 205,936,986 99.97

Minority interests 57,940 0.03

Total 205,994,926 100.00

2. bASIS Of PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with SBIF regulations contained in the 

Compendium of Accounting Standards and specific instructions issued by that entity. In all matters not addressed in the 

compendium, the Bank applies the technical standards issued by the Chilean Institute of Accountants, which coincide with 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  Should any discrepancies arise between these accounting principles and 

the accounting criteria issued by the SBIF (Compendium of Accounting Standards), the latter shall take precedence.

A) ASSET AND lIAbIlITy VAlUATION CRITERIA.

The following valuation criteria are used for assets and liabilities recorded in these financial statements:

•	 Valuation	at	amortized	cost

 Amortized cost is the amount at which an asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, plus or minus the 

cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the 

maturity amount.
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 In the case of financial assets, amortized cost includes corrections for any impairment that may have occurred.

•	 Fair	Value	measurement

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 

parties in an arm’s length transaction.

 When an instrument’s market is not active, the Bank determines fair value using techniques to approximate a fair 

price, such as interest rate curves based on market transactions or comparison with similar instruments.

•	 Valuation	at	acquisition	cost

 Acquisition cost is defined as the cost of the transaction to acquire the asset, less any impairment losses that may 

exist.

 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using amortized cost criteria except for:

- Derivative instruments measured at fair value.

- Instruments held for trading measured at fair value.

- Investments available for sale measured at fair value.

- Some real estate within property, plant and equipment for which senior management has decided to use its appraised 

value as the deemed cost for first-time adoption in conformity with the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards.

b) fUNCTIONAl CURRENCy

In accordance with IAS 21, the items included in the financial statements of each of the Bank’s entities and its subsidiaries 

are valued using the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (functional currency).  The 

functional currency of the Bank and its subsidiaries is the Chilean peso. All figures are rounded to millions of Chilean pesos. 

All balances and transactions in currencies other than the Chilean peso are considered foreign currency.

C) USE Of ESTIMATES AND JUDgMENT

In preparing the financial statements in accordance with the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards, the Bank requires 

management to make some estimates, judgments and assumptions that impact the reported statements. Actual results in 

subsequent periods may differ from the estimates used

- These relevant estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly by the Bank’s senior management in order to 

quantify the effects on asset, liability and profit or loss accounts.

- Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future 

period that is affected.
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The most significant areas of estimates of uncertainties and judgments in applying accounting criteria or policies are:

- Valuation of financial instruments and derivatives

- Impairment losses on loans to customers and other assets

- The useful life of material and intangible assets

- Contingencies and commitments

D) CONSOlIDATION CRITERIA

•	 subsidiaries

 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Bank. Control exists when the Bank has power over the financial and 

operating policies of an entity for the purpose of profiting from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries 

are included in the consolidated financial statements as of the date on which control begins. 

 The Bank’s financial statements have been consolidated with those of its subsidiaries.  All significant balances between 

the Bank and its subsidiaries or among subsidiaries, as well as income and expenses arising from transactions with 

subsidiaries, have been eliminated upon consolidation.

•	 inVestments	in	associates

 Associates are entities over which the Bank has the ability to exercise significant influence, but not control. usually, 

this ability manifests itself through an ownership interest of 20% or more of the entity’s voting rights and it is 

accounted for using the equity method, with profit or loss being recognized on an accrual basis.

•	 inVestments	in	other	companies

 Investments in other companies are entities in which the Bank does not have significant influence. They are presented 

at acquisition value, except for the share of the Santiago Stock Exchange, which is presented at fair value. Revenue 

is recognized in profit or loss as received.

Third-party interests in the Bank’s equity are presented separately in the statement of financial position as “non-controlling 

interest” and are presented in the statement of income after profit or loss attributable to the equity holders of the Bank.

Non-controlling interest represents the equity of a subsidiary that is not directly or indirectly attributable to the controller.

The following table details the Bank’s ownership interest in its consolidated subsidiaries 

OWNERShIP 
INTEREST

2016
%

OWNERShIP 
INTEREST

2015
%

Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa (*) 99.88 99.76

Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. (**) 99.99 99.99

(*)   As indicated in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, on February 15, 2016, the purchase of the Penta companies was completed after having obtained 
authorization from the Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions. The Company purchased 99.999992% of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. for MCh$34,208 
and 99.99980% of Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. for MCh$1,828.  After the transaction, these companies were contributed to their respective 
subsidiaries, Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. and Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa, as part of the capital increase of both companies, thus 
resulting in the merger of each respective company.

(**)  As indicated in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, in an extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors of Valores Security S.A., Corredores de Bolsa, 
held on March 17, 2015, the Board agreed to approve the related party transaction, whereby Valores Security S.A., Corredores de Bolsa would acquire 100% of the 
shares of Cruz del Sur Corredora de Bolsa S.A. (“CdS Corredora”), from Capital S.A. and Inversiones Seguros Security limitada.



pAGE

68

06 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E) OPERATINg SEgMENTS

The Bank’s operating segments are components that engage in business activities from which they may earn revenue and 
incur expenses. Each segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Bank’s highest decision-making authority for 
operating decisions, to decide about resource allocation for the segment and evaluate its performance; separate financial 
reporting is available.

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements details the Bank’s main operating segments: Commercial Banking, Retail 
Banking, Treasury, Subsidiaries and Other.

f) INTEREST AND INDExATION INCOME AND ExPENSES

Interest and indexation income and expenses are presented on an accrual basis until year- end, using the effective interest 
method, which is a discount rate that exactly matches the estimated cash flows to be received or paid over the expected 
life of the transaction.

however, for impaired loans, accrual is suspended as defined by the SBIF in Chapter B-2 of the Compendium of Accounting 
Standards, using the following criteria:

lOANS SUbJECT TO SUSPENSION: SUSPENDED:

INDIVIDuAl ASSESSMENT:
loans classified in C5 and C6

For simply being in the impaired portfolio.

INDIVIDuAl ASSESSMENT:
loans classified in C3 and C4

For having been in the impaired portfolio for three months.

GROuP ASSESSMENT:
loans with less than 80% collateral

When the loan or one of its installments is six months past due.

g) fEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND ExPENSES

Fee and commission income and expenses that are part of the effective interest rate of a financial asset or liability are 
recognized in profit or loss over the life of the transactions from which they arise.

Fee and commission income and expenses generated by providing a given service are recognized in profit or loss as the 
services are provided. Those involving financial assets and liabilities are recognized when collected.

h) TRANSlATION Of fOREIgN CURRENCy TO fUNCTIONAl CURRENCy

The Bank’s functional currency is the Chilean peso. Transactions in foreign currency carried out by the Bank are translated to 
Chilean pesos at the exchange rate on the transaction date. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, monetary items in foreign 
currency are translated using the year-end exchange rates of Ch$669.80 and Ch$708.70 per uS$1, respectively, which 
does not differ significantly from the exchange rates of Ch$669.47 and Ch$710.16 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
applied by the subsidiaries regulated by the SVS.

The net foreign exchange gains of MCh$1,456 and MCh$21,355 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, shown in the consolidated statement of income, include both the result of foreign exchange transactions 
and the effects of exchange rate variations on foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries.
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I) TRANSlATION

Assets and liabilities expressed in unidades de fomento (uF-Chilean inflation index-linked unit of account) are presented 

using the rates in effect as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, of Ch$ 26,347.98 and Ch$ 25,629.09, respectively.

J) fINANCIAl INVESTMENTS

Financial investments are classified and valued as follows:

j.1)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HELD FOR TRADING: 

 Financial instruments held for trading are securities that are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term 

fluctuations in price or dealer’s margin, or securities included in a portfolio in which there is a pattern of short-term 

profit-making.

 Financial instruments held for trading are recorded at fair value based on market prices at year-end. Gains or losses 

that have resulted from adjustments in fair value, as well as gains or losses from trading activities and accrued 

interest and indexation, are included in “financial instruments held for trading” within “net financial operating 

income” in the statement of income, as specified in detail in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

 All purchases or sales of financial instruments held for trading that must be delivered within a period of time 

established by regulations or market conventions are recognized on the trading date, which is the date on which the 

purchase or sale of the asset is committed to. Any other purchase or sale is treated as a derivative (forward) until 

settlement occurs.

j.2)   INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

 Investment securities are classified into two categories: held to maturity and available for sale. Investments held to 

maturity are those instruments that the Bank has the ability and intent to hold to maturity. All other investment 

securities are considered available for sale.  As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the Bank does 

not have any investments held to maturity.

 Investment securities are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.

 Investments available for sale are subsequently recorded at fair value based on market prices or valuations obtained 

using models. unrealized gains or losses arising from changes in their fair value are recognized with a charge or credit 

to equity accounts. When these investments are disposed of or impaired, the amount of the fair value adjustments 

accumulated in equity is transferred to profit or loss and reported in “sale of investments available for sale” in 

“net financial operating income” in the statement of income, as specified in detail in Note 27 to the consolidated 

financial statements.

 Investments held to maturity are recorded at cost plus accrued interest and indexation, less impairment provisions 

recorded when the amount recorded is greater than the estimated recoverable amount. As of December 31, 2016 

and 2015, the Bank did not have any investments held to maturity.
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 Interest and indexation on held-to-maturity and available-for-sale instruments are included within “interest and 

indexation income”, as specified in detail in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

 Investment securities used as accounting hedges are adjusted under hedge accounting rules.

 All purchases or sales of investment securities that must be delivered within a period of time established by 

regulations or market conventions are recognized on the trading date, which is the date on which the purchase or 

sale of the asset is committed to. Any other purchase or sale is treated as a derivative (forward) until settlement 

occurs.

k) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Derivative instruments, which include foreign currency and uF forwards, interest rate futures, currency and interest rate 

swaps and options, and other financial derivative instruments, are recorded initially in the statement of financial position 

at cost (including transactions costs) and subsequently measured at fair value. Fair value is obtained from market quotes, 

discounted cash flow models and option valuation models, as appropriate. Derivative instruments are reported as an asset 

when their fair value is positive and as a liability when negative, under “financial derivative instruments”.

Certain embedded derivatives in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their risk and 

characteristics are not closely related to those of the main contract and the latter is not recorded at fair value with its 

unrealized gains and losses included in profit or loss.

At inception, a derivative contract must be designated by the Bank as a derivative instrument for trading or hedging 

purposes.

Changes in fair value of derivative instruments held for trading purposes are included under “trading derivatives” in “net 

financial operating income”, in the consolidated statement of income.

If a derivative instrument is classified as a hedging instrument, it can be: (1) a hedge of the fair value of existing assets or 

liabilities or firm commitments, or (2) a hedge of cash flows related to existing assets or liabilities or forecasted transactions. 

A hedge relationship for hedge accounting purposes must comply with all of the following conditions: (a) at its inception, 

the hedge relationship has been formally documented; (b) it is expected that the hedge will be highly effective; (c) the 

effectiveness of the hedge can be measured reasonably; and (d) the hedge is highly effective with respect to the hedged risk 

continuously throughout the entire hedge relationship.

Certain derivative transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting are treated and reported as derivatives for trading 

purposes, even though they provide an effective hedge for managing risk positions.

When a derivative instrument hedges the risk of changes in the fair value of an existing asset or liability, the asset or liability 

is recorded at its fair value with respect to the specific hedged risk. Gains or losses from fair value adjustments, of both the 

hedged item and the derivative instrument, are recognized in profit or loss for the year.
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Should the hedged item in a fair value hedge be a firm commitment, changes in the fair value of the commitment with 

respect to the hedged risk are recorded as an asset or liability against profit for the year. Gains or losses from fair value 

adjustments of the derivative instrument are recognized in profit or loss for the year. When an asset or liability is acquired 

as a result of the commitment, the initial recognition of the asset or liability acquired is adjusted to incorporate the 

accumulated effect of the valuation at fair value of the firm commitment, which was previously recorded in the statement 

of financial position.

When a derivative hedges the risk of changes in the cash flows of existing assets or liabilities or forecasted transactions, the 

effective portion of changes in the fair value related to the hedged risk is recorded in equity.

Any ineffective portion is directly recorded in profit or loss. The accumulated amounts recorded in equity are transferred to 

profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

When an interest rate fair value hedge is performed on a portfolio basis and the hedged item is an amount instead 

of individualized assets or liabilities, gains or losses from fair value adjustments, for both the hedged portfolio and the 

derivative instrument, are recorded in profit or loss for the year, but the fair value adjustment of the hedged portfolio is 

reported in “financial derivative instruments”, either in assets or liabilities, according to the position of the hedged portfolio 

at that moment in time.

When a cash flow hedge is used to hedge exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributed to a particular risk related 

to an asset or liability involved in a transaction that is predicted to be highly likely, the effective portion of changes in the 

fair value with respect to the hedged risk is recognized in equity, while the ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss 

for the year.

l) OPERATIONS WITh REPURChASE AgREEMENTS AND SECURITIES bORROWINg/lENDINg

The Bank engages in operations with repurchase and resale agreements as a funding tool. The Bank’s investments that are 

sold with a repurchase obligation and that serve as a guarantee for the loan are included within “financial instruments held 

for trading” and the obligation is recorded within liabilities under “payables from repurchase agreements and securities 

lending”. When financial instruments are purchased with a resale obligation, they are included within assets under 

“receivables from repurchase agreements and securities borrowing”.

Repurchase and resale agreements are valued at amortized cost based on the transaction’s IRR.

M) DERECOgNITION Of fINANCIAl ASSETS AND lIAbIlITIES

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows of the financial asset have 

expired or when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset are transferred during a transaction 

in which all risks and rewards are transferred.

The Bank derecognizes a financial liability only when the obligation specified in the corresponding contract has been 

extinguished (i.e. paid or settled). 
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N) IMPAIRMENT

N.1)   FINANCIAL ASSETS: 

 As of each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of 

financial assets may be impaired. A financial asset is impaired and a loss will arise if objective evidence of impairment 

exists.

 Financial assets carried at amortized cost show evidence of impairment when the present value of the estimated 

future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate, is less than the asset’s carrying amount.

 An impairment loss for available-for-sale financial assets is calculated using its fair value.

 Financial assets that are individually significant are assessed individually to determine whether objective evidence 

of impairment exists. Financial assets that are not individually significant and have characteristics similar to other 

assets are assessed as a group.

 All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss can only be reversed if it can be related 

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

N.2) NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS: 

 As of each reporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of its non-financial assets to determine if objective 

evidence of impairment exists. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An 

impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimations used to determine the recoverable amount. 

O) ASSETS RECEIVED IN lIEU Of PAyMENT

Assets received in lieu of payment are classified within “other assets” at the lesser of their foreclosure cost and their fair 

value less regulatory write-offs required and are presented net of provisions.

The SBIF requires regulatory write-offs if the asset is not sold within one year of foreclosure.

P) lEASE AgREEMENTS

lease receivables, included in “loans to customers”, are periodic payments from lease agreements that meet certain 

requirements to qualify as finance leases and they are presented at nominal value net of unaccrued interest at year-end..

Q) PROPERTy, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost minus accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Depreciation is recognized in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the respective asset.

For certain real estate properties, the Bank recorded their fair values, based on independent appraisals, as their costs upon 

first-time adoption of IFRS.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

TyPE Of ASSET USEfUl lIfE (yEARS)

Buildings 60 years

Plant and equipment 5 years

Supplies and accessories 2 years

R) INTANgIblE ASSETS

R.1)  SOFTWARE: 

 Expenses for internally developed software are recognized as an asset when the Bank is able to demonstrate its 

intent and ability to complete development and use it internally to generate future economic benefits and can 

reliably measure the costs of completing development. Capitalized costs of internally developed software include all 

costs directly attributable to developing the software and they are amortized over their useful lives.

 Computer software purchased by the Bank is recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

 Any subsequent expenses in software assets are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefit for 

the specific asset. All other expenses are recorded in profit or loss as incurred.

 useful life has been determined based on the period of time over which economic benefits are expected to be 

obtained. The amortization period and method are reviewed annually, and any change is treated as a change in an 

estimate.

R.2)  GOODWILL: 

 Goodwill generated upon consolidation represents the difference between the acquisition cost and Banco Security’s 

share of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity as of the 

acquisition date. 

 Any goodwill generated is valued at acquisition cost and is tested as of each reporting date for any impairment 

that reduces its recoverable amount to below its carrying amount. If appropriate, this difference is recorded in the 

consolidated statement of income under “administrative expenses”, in accordance with IFRS 3. Goodwill recorded 

as of December 31, 2016, is detailed in Note 14.b) of the consolidated financial statements.

S) PROVISIONS fOR ASSETS AT RISk

Provisions required to cover risk of loan losses have been recorded in accordance with standards and specific instructions 

from the SBIF. Effective loans are presented net of such provisions, while contingent loan provisions are presented in 

liabilities (Note 21).
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The Bank uses models or methods based on individual and group analyses of debtors to establish provisions for loan losses.  

These models and methods are in accordance with SBIF standards and instructions.

T) lOANS TO CUSTOMERS, PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OffS

loans to customers, both originally granted by the Bank and acquired, are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 

defined charges that are not quoted in an active market and that the Bank has no intention of selling immediately or in 

the short term. They are valued initially at fair value plus incremental transaction costs and subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method.

IMPAIRED PORTFOLIO: 

The impaired portfolio includes loans for which concrete evidence exists that the borrowers will not meet some of their 

obligations in the agreed upon payment terms, regardless of the possibility of recovering amounts owed from collateral, 

through court collections or by negotiating different terms.

Within this context, the Bank will keep these loans in the impaired portfolio until the payment capacity or behavior has 

returned to normal. however, the Bank may continue to write off any individual loans.

T.1) PROVISIONS ON LOANS ASSESSED INDIVIDUALLY

 An individual debtor assessment is used when the Bank needs to understand and analyze a customer, whether an 

individual or legal entity, in detail because of its size, complexity or exposure level. It requires a risk rating for each 

debtor.

 For provisioning purposes, the Bank categorizes debtors and their loans and contingent loans into the appropriate 

category after assigning them to either the normal, substandard or default portfolio, which are defined as follows:

• NORMAl AND SuBSTANDARD PORTFOlIO

PORTfOlIO TyPE DEbTOR CATEgORy

PRObAbIlITy Of 
DEfAUlT

 (%)

lOSS gIVEN
DEfAUlT

(%)
ExPECTED lOSS

 (%)

Normal Portfolio A1 0.04 90.00 0.03600

A2 0.10 82.50 0.08250

A3 0.25 87.50 0.21875

A4 2.00 87.50 1.75000

A5 4.75 90.00 4.27500

A6 10.00 90.00 9.00000

Substandard Portfolio B1 15.00 92.50 13.87500

B2 22.00 92.50 20.35000

B3 33.00 97.50 32.17500

B4 45.00 97.50 43.87500

 Nevertheless, the Bank must maintain a minimum provision of 0.50% on loans and contingent loans in the normal 
portfolio.
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• DEFAulT PORTFOlIO

PORTfOlIO TyPE SCAlE Of RISk RANgE Of ExPECTED lOSS
PROVISION 

%)

Default Portfolio C1 up to 3% 2

C2 More than 3% up to 20% 10

C3 More than 20% up to 30% 25

C4 More than 30 % up to 50% 40

C5 More than 50% up to 80% 65

C6 More than 80% 90

T.2)  PROVISIONS ON LOANS ASSESSED IN A GROUP

 Group assessments are used to analyze a large number of transactions with small individual amounts. For these 

purposes, the Bank uses models based on the characteristics of debtors and their loans, as well as models based on 

the behavior of a group of loans. In group assessments, provisions for the consumer portfolio will also be recorded 

according to expected loss based on the models used by the Bank. Provisions are made for the commercial and 

mortgage portfolios using incurred loss methodologies.

 Beginning January 1, 2016, the Bank uses the standard provisioning method for residential mortgages established 

by the Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions in Circular No 3,573.

 The impact of this standard (MCh$969) was recorded in credit risk provisions in the income statement. See Note 

29 “Credit Risk Provisions”.

T.3)  ADDITIONAL LOAN PROVISIONS.

 According to SBIF instructions, the Bank may establish additional provisions on its individually assessed loan 

portfolio based on the expected impairment of that portfolio. This provision is calculated based on the Bank’s past 

experience and potential adverse macroeconomic scenarios or circumstances that may affect a particular sector, 

industry, debtor group or project.

 As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank had not recorded any additional provisions.

T.4)  WRITE-OFFS

 loans are written off when recovery efforts have been exhausted in accordance with timetables issued by the SBIF, 

as follows:

TyPE Of lOAN TERM

Consumer loans with or without collateral 6 months

Other transactions without collateral 24 months

Commercial loans with collateral 36 months

Residential mortgage loans 48 months

Consumer leases 6 months

Other non-real estate lease transactions 12 months

Real estate leases (commercial and residential) 36 months
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RECOVERY OF WRITTEN-OFF LOANS:  

Subsequent payments on written-off loans are recorded directly in profit or loss under “recovery of written-off loans” in 

“credit risk provisions”.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, recoveries of written-off loans totaled MCh$3,981 and MCh$4,491, respectively, and 

are presented within provisions recorded during the year under “credit risk provisions” in the consolidated statement of 

income, as detailed in Note 29 to the financial statements.

U) CASh AND CASh EQUIVAlENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances of cash, bank deposits, net transactions pending settlement and operations 

with repurchase agreements, as stipulated in the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards. These items are subject to 

insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

The Bank prepares its cash flow statement using the indirect method. This method begins with profit for the year and 

incorporates non-monetary transactions, such as income and expenses that gave rise to cash flows, all grouped according 

to the following concepts:

-  CASH FLOWS 

 are inflows and outflows of highly-liquid, short-term investments with insignificant risk, grouped under cash and 

cash equivalents.

-  OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 transactions related to the Bank’s normal operations and its main source of revenue.

-  INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 these cash flows represent disbursements that have been made that will produce income and cash flows over the 

long term.

-  FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 these cash flows represent the activities and cash needs to cover commitments to those contributing funding or 

capital to the entity.

V) TIME DEPOSITS, DEbT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED

Deposits used as funding by the Bank, whatever the instrument or term, are valued at amortized cost. Other debt 

instruments issued are valued as of the placement date, including transaction costs, and subsequently valued at amortized 

cost using the effective interest method.

W) CURRENT AND DEfERRED TAxES

The Bank determines its income tax expense in accordance with the Income Tax law and for this purpose establishes a 

provision against profit or loss. Deferred taxes are recognized for the temporary differences between the carrying and tax 

basis of assets and liabilities. The effect is recorded in the statement of income when the differences stem from equity.
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x) EMPlOyEE bENEfITS

X.1)  EMPLOYEE VACATION

 The annual cost of employee vacations is recorded on an accrual basis.

X.2)  SHORT-TERM BENEFITS

 The Bank has a yearly bonus plan for its employees that may be given based on their performance and ability to 

meet targets. They are provisioned based on the estimated amount to be distributed.

X.3)  SEVERANCE INDEMNITIES

 The Bank has not agreed to any unconditional severance indemnities for its employees and, as a result, has not made 

any provisions for this concept. Any such expenses are recorded in profit or loss as incurred.

y) MINIMUM DIVIDENDS

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank recorded a liability (provision) for minimum or mandatory dividends.  This 

provision is based on article 79 of the Corporations law and is also reflected in the Bank’s dividend policy. This policy 

stipulates that at least 30% of profit for the year shall be distributed unless the shareholders representing all issued shares 

unanimously agree otherwise.

z) EARNINgS PER ShARE

The Bank records basic earnings per share of its common shares, which is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to 

common shareholders by the weighted average number of outstanding common shares during the respective year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Bank by the average weighted number 

of outstanding shares adjusted for stock options, warrants and convertible debt. Since the Bank does not have this type of 

option, basic earnings per share are the same as diluted earnings per share.

AA)  lEASES 

The Bank has lease agreements classified as operating leases, for which an expense is recognized as of the date of payment.

When the Bank assumes substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, they are classified as finance leases.

Ab)  PROVISIONS AND CONTINgENT lIAbIlITIES

A provision is recognized only if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a legal or implicit obligation that can be estimated, 

or an outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation is likely and the amount of these resources can be reliably 

measured.

A contingent asset or liability is any right or obligation arisen from past events whose existence will be confirmed, only if 

one or more uncertain future events, not under the Bank’s control, occur. 
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AC)  bUSINESS COMbINATIONS

Banco Security has purchased interests in companies that qualify as a business combination and, therefore, must apply 
standards for business combinations.

On February 15, 2016, Banco Security acquired a total of 24,478,816 shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A., equivalent 
to 99.999992% of its share capital for a total of MCh$34,208 and 999,998 shares of Penta Administradora General de 
Fondos S.A., equivalent to 99.99980% of its share capital for a total of MCh$1,828. On the same date, Valores Security S.A. 
Corredores de Bolsa acquired a total of 2 shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A., equivalent to 0.000008% of its share 
capital, and Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. purchased 2 shares of Penta Administradora General de Fondos 
S.A., equivalent to 0.0002% of its share capital.

On the same date, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa and Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. carried 
out capital increases, and Banco Security subscribed and paid these increases by contributing its respective shares of Penta 
Corredores de Bolsa S.A. and Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A.

At this point, the subsidiaries of Banco Security, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa and Administradora General de 
Fondos Security S.A., possessed 100% of the shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. and Penta Administradora General de 
Fondos S.A., respectively, and, therefore, these companies merged.

ITEM MCh$

Amount paid for shares of Empresas Penta 36,036

Fair value of purchased assets 31,674

Goodwill calculated   4,362

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities in these financial statements has been determined provisionally, in 

accordance with IFRS 3, which allows adjustments to the provisional amounts within a period of one year.

3. ACCOUNTINg ChANgES

During the period from January 1 to December 31, 2016, there were no changes in accounting policy that affect their 

comparison with the same period in the prior year.

4. MATERIAl EVENTS

bANCO SECURITy

On February 15, 2016, the purchase of the Penta companies was completed after having obtained authorization from 

the Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions. The Company purchased 99.999992% of Penta Corredores de 

Bolsa S.A. for MCh$34,208 and 99.99980% of Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. for MCh$1,828.  After the 

transaction, these companies were contributed to their respective subsidiaries, Administradora General de Fondos Security 

S.A. and Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa, as part of the capital increase of both companies, thus resulting in the 

merger of each respective company.

On December 10, 2015, the SBIF authorized the acquisition and merger of the companies Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. 

and Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A., in accordance with the terms set by the regulator.
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On September 11, 2015, Banco Security and Banco Penta reported that they had signed an agreement to purchase the 

companies Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. and Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A., and that the merger would 

take place between December 31, 2015, and February 28, 2016.

ADMINISTRADORA gENERAl DE fONDOS SECURITy S.A.

On December 30, 2016, in accordance with articles 9 and 10-2 of law No. 18,045 on the Securities Market, and article 

18 of law No. 20,712, the following is communicated regarding completion of the liquidation of the Security Emergente 

Protegido Investment Fund.

On December 28, 2016, at an extraordinary meeting of the unitholders of the Security Capital Preferente Investment 

Fund, the following agreements were reached: A mandatory capital reduction was approved for a total of Ch$440,000,000, 

payable in cash to all unitholders, prorated based on the fund units they hold, in one or more successive payments no later 

than January 27, 2017; one component of the fund manager’s proposal to amend the internal regulations was rejected. 

This proposed amendment would have established the possibility for the capital reductions to be made in up to two annual 

payments of up to 50% of the Fund’s subscribed and paid-in units. In its place, the unitholders agreed to amend section J 

of the Fund’s internal regulations, establishing a policy for the fund to make mandatory capital reductions on a monthly 

basis for up to 50% of the Fund’s initially subscribed and paid-in units, under the terms indicated; they also approved the 

amended text of the Fund’s internal regulations, which must be deposited by the Fund manager within 15 business days 

after the date of the meeting.

On December 19, 2016, in accordance with articles 9 and 10-2 of law No. 18,045 on the Securities Market, and article 18 

of law No. 20,712, the Company communicated the dissolution of the Security Emergente Protegido Investment Fund and 

that the fund manager has been appointed to carry out the process of liquidating the fund.

On December 2, 2016, at an extraordinary meeting of the unitholders of the Security Pagaré Automotrices I Investment 

Fund, the following agreements were adopted: unitholders were briefed on the asset liquidation process, expense payments 

and capital distributions; the unitholders will be refunded the value of their units for a final amount of Ch$32,402,413, 

which will be distributed based on each investor’s interest in the Fund; the Fund’s final account at the end of its liquidation 

was approved; the Fund’s liquidation was completed on December 28, 2016, and unitholders will be refunded the balance 

of their investment in the Fund; a fund manager was designated to inform the SVS and the Chilean Internal Revenue Service 

of the fund’s close of business, once the funds have been distributed.

On November 21, 2016, in accordance with articles 9 and 10-2 of law No. 18,045 on the Securities Market, and article 18 

of law No. 20,712, the Company communicated the dissolution of the Security Pagaré Automotrices I Investment Fund and 

that the fund manager has been appointed to carry out the process of liquidating the fund.

On October 27, 2016, in accordance with articles 9 and 10-2 of law No. 18,045 on the Securities Market, and article 18 of 

law No. 20,712, the Company communicated the payment of interim dividends by the Security Oaktree Opportunities – 

Debt II Investment Fund for a total of uSD$1,163,899.97 with a charge to net profit for 2016.

On September 9, 2016, as part of the process to liquidate the Security Pagarés Automotrices I Investment Fund, the entire 

portfolio of automotive loans held by the Fund was transferred to Tanner Servicios Financieros S.A., as agreed by public 

instrument on July 29, 2016, drawn up and executed by Santiago notary public Carmen Sosa Muñoz.
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On March 2, 2016, the Company reported that, in a meeting of the Board of Directors of Administradora General de Fondos 

Security S.A. on February 29, 2016, the Board agreed to call an annual shareholders’ meeting for March 18, 2016, at 9 a.m. 

in the Company’s offices located at Av. Apoquindo 3150, floor 7, las Condes, Santiago. The following matters were to be 

addressed at the annual shareholders’ meeting:

•	 Approval	 of	 the	 annual	 report,	 balance	 sheet	 and	financial	 statements	 for	 the	 year	 ended	December	 31,	 2015,	

including the independent auditors’ report for that year;

•	 Profit	distribution	and	dividend	payments;

•	 Board	fees	for	2016;

•	 Board	expenses	in	2015;

•	 Appointment	of	the	Company’s	independent	external	auditors;

•	 Information	on	related	party	transactions	in	conformity	with	the	Corporations	Law.

•	 Designation	of	the	newspaper	for	legal	publications;

•	 In	general,	all	other	matters	that	should	be	addressed	at	an	annual	shareholders’	meeting	according	to	law.

At the aforementioned Board meeting, the Board agreed to propose to shareholders at the annual meeting a dividend of 

Ch$124,992.1064 per share charged to profit for the year 2015.

On February 15, 2016, the Company completed the merger and take over by Administradora General de Fondos Security 

S.A. of Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A., as follows:

A) Banco Security purchased and acquired 999,998 shares of Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. from Banco 

Penta, equivalent to a 99.99980% interest in that company, for Ch$1,828,330,276;

b) Administradora General de Fondos Security, in turn, purchased and acquired 2 shares of Penta Administradora General 

de Fondos S.A. from Messrs. Carlos Alberto Délano Abbott and Carlos Eugenio lavín García huidobro, equivalent to 

the remaining 0.0002% interest in that company, for Ch$3,656. As a result, Banco Security and Administradora 

General de Fondos Security S.A. together purchased and acquired 100% of the shares of Penta Administradora 

General de Fondo S.A. for Ch$1,828,333,932, equivalent to equity of Ch$1,305,542,551, which is backed by highly-

liquid instruments valued at market value and negative goodwill of Ch$522,791,381.

C) Immediately after completing the aforementioned acquisitions and in the same act, Banco Security proceeded to 

contribute to Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. all 999,998 shares of Penta Administradora General 

de Fondos S.A. as payment towards the capital increase of Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. that was 

agreed at the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on January 5, 2016, and approved via SVS Exempt Resolution No. 

251 dated February 5, 2016; and

D) Both the contribution and the valuation of the contributed shares, as stipulated above, were duly and unanimously 

approved by all issued shares of Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. at the extraordinary shareholders’ 

meeting.

Pursuant to the above, and having obtained the relevant authorization from the Superintendency of Securities and Insurance 

on February 15, 2016, in accordance with article 107 of law No. 18,046, and with Administradora General de Fondos 

Security S.A. having expressly waived the term indicated in article 103, number 2 of law No. 18,046, on that same date the 

Company proceeded to register 100% of the shares of Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. in the shareholders 

register of Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A., and, therefore, Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A. was 

automatically and legally dissolved under the terms of article 103 of law 18,046, and Administradora General de Fondos 
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Security S.A. became the legal successor of the dissolved company for all intents and purposes, assuming all of its rights and 

obligations and acquiring all of its assets and liabilities.

On January 15, 2016, in accordance with articles 9 and 10-2 of law 18,045 and General Character Standard No. 30, the 

Company reported as an essential event that, in an ordinary Board meeting on the same date, Mr. Felipe larraín Melo 

resigned as director and Mr. Gonzalo Baraona Bezanilla was appointed to replace him.

On January 5, 2016, at an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting called by the shareholders as established in article 60 of law 

18,046 on Corporations, the following was unanimously agreed:

A) To update and amend the Company’s statutory capital without issuing new shares, in order to capitalize and 

recognize the price-level restatement of paid-in capital as of December 31, 2010, all based on the Company’s 

statement of financial position as of that date, which was approved at the annual shareholders’ meeting on April 5, 

2011. As a result, the Company’s capital as of that date totals Ch$1,525,292,745, divided into 10,000 registered, 

common, no-par-value shares, all fully subscribed and paid in.

b) To increase the Company’s capital as of that date from Ch$1,525,292,745, divided into 10,000 registered, single-

series, common, no-par-value shares, to Ch$3,825,292,745, divided into 10,560 registered, single-series, common, 

no-par-value shares, by issuing 560 new registered, common, no-par-value shares of the same existing series through 

a rights issue, which shall be issued, subscribed and paid in within a period of three years from that date, either in 

cash or in kind.

C) In order to execute, implement and comply with the agreements reached at the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting, 

the shareholders agreed to specifically authorize the Board to carry out each and every one of the formalities, 

procedures and acts necessary to formalize the capital increase and other agreements adopted at the meeting. 

The Board was specifically authorized to adopt agreements, once the amended by-laws had been approved by the 

SVS, in order to: (i) proceed with the issuance and placement of 560 new, registered, single-series, common, no-

par-value shares through a rights issue, all charged to the agreed-upon capital increase; (ii) comply with the legal 

preferential subscription right for the Company’s shares; (iii) offer the Company’s shareholders or, in the event 

of total or partial waiver of these preferential subscription rights, offer third parties, the new shares at a price of 

Ch$4,107,142.857142860 per share, which may be paid in cash or in kind; and (iv) adopt all agreements required 

or deemed necessary to carry out and complete the capital increase under the terms proposed above and proceed 

with the issuance, placement, subscription and payment of the shares issued as part of the capital increase agreed 

by the shareholders.

D) At the meeting, the shareholders agreed to grant the following powers and authority: 

• To authorize the CEO, Mr. Juan Pablo lira Tocornal, and the director Carlos Budge Carvallo, to act individually 

and indistinctly to request SVS approval of the amended by-laws as agreed at the shareholders’ meeting and to 

agree upon, subscribe, implement and execute, on behalf of the Company and the shareholders, all amendments, 

rectifications or supplements that may be relevant or necessary in response to any comment or observation made 

by the SVS, and all public or private instruments in which the respective amendments are made or extended for such 

purpose; and
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• To authorize the bearer of the certificate issued by the SVS with the respective abstract to request any publications, 

registrations, subregistrations and annotations necessary..

Pursuant to these agreements, to substitute permanent article five and the third transitory article in the corporate by-laws. 

In an ordinary Board meeting on November 13, 2015, the Board approved amendments to its “Policy on Customary 

Transactions Within its line of Business with Related Parties (“Customary Transactions Policy”), as required by article 147 

letter b) of law No. 18.046 on Corporations.

On September 3, 2015, pursuant to article 18 of law 20,712 on Management of Third-Party Funds and Individual Portfolios, 

and articles 9 and 10 of law 18,045 on the Securities Market, the company reported the takeover merger of the funds 

indicated herein, as approved by the Board on May 15, 2015.

AbSORbED fUND SUCCESSOR fUND

M.F. Security Asiático. M.F. Security Asia Emergente.

M.F. Security Previsión. M.F. Security Corporativo.

M.F. Security Emergente. M.F. Security Emerging Markets.

M.F. Security Nominal. M.F. Security First.

M.F. Security Protección uF. M.F. Security Gold.

M.F. Security latinoamericano.
M.F. Security Index Fund latham Small Cap.

M.F. Security Brasil.

M.F. Security Estados unidos M.F. Security Index Fund uS.

M.F. Security Diversificación M.F. Security Income

M.F. Security Bonos latinoamericanos. M.F. Security Deuda Corporativa latinoamericana.

M.F. Security Confianza Dólar. M.F. Security Deuda Corporativa latinoamericana I.G.

M.F. Security Confianza. M.F. Security Mid Term

M.F. Security Index Fund Chile Mid & Small Cap. M.F. Security Index Fund Chile.

M.F. Security Fundación. M.F. Security Selectivo.

On August 24, 2015, pursuant to article 18 of law 20,712 on Management of Third-Party Funds and Individual Portfolios, 

and articles 9 and 10 of law 18,045 on the Securities Market, the company reported the merger of the Security liquidez 

Mutual Fund, which was taken over by the successor fund, as approved by the Board in an ordinary meeting on May 15, 

2015.

 

An annual general shareholders’ meeting was called for April 29, 2015, at 9:30 a.m. in order to address and vote on the 

following matters:  To approve the annual report and balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2014, distribution of 

profits for the year, board fees, appointment of the company’s independent auditors, designation of the newspaper to be 

used for official publications and other routine business to be decided by shareholders.

On March 6, 2015, the company filed the new amended text of the Internal Regulations for the Security Oaktree 

Opportunities Investment Fund, now called the Security Oaktree Opportunities – Debt Investment Fund (the “Fund”), 

agreed in an extraordinary meeting of fund unitholders on March 2, 2015, held in order to adapt the Fund to the provisions 

of law 20,712 on Management of Third-Party Funds and Individual Portfolios (the “law”) and other related regulations that 

have been issued, and to make other modifications, because the fund has been classified as a non-redeemable investment 

fund.
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VAlORES SECURITy S.A. CORREDORES DE bOlSA 

On March 16, 2016, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa renewed a professional liability insurance policy for uF 

204,091 through Compañía de Seguros Continental to guarantee correct professional performance, in accordance with law 

20,712 on managing third-party funds and individual portfolios. This policy is in effect from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

At the fourteenth extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on March 15, 2016, the shareholders agreed to pay a dividend of 

Ch$54,708.515017 per share, payable the following day, to the shareholders in the respective shareholder registry when 

the meeting was called to order.

 

At the twenty-ninth annual shareholders’ meeting on March 15, 2016, the shareholders agreed to pay a dividend of 

Ch$3,699.221364 per share, payable the following day, to the shareholders registered in the respective Shareholder Registry 

when the meeting was called to order.

On February 15, 2016, the Company completed the merger and take over by Valores Security of Penta Corredores de Bolsa 

S.A., as follows:

A) Banco Security purchased and acquired 24,478,816 shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. from Banco Penta, 

equivalent to a 99.999992% interest in that company, for Ch$34,208,152,255;

b) Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa purchased and acquired 2 shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. from 

Messrs. Carlos Alberto Délano Abbott and Carlos Eugenio lavín García-huidobro, equivalent to the remaining 

0.000008 % interest in that company, for Ch$2,794.

C) As a result, Banco Security and Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa together purchased and acquired 100% of 

the shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. for Ch$34,208,155,049 equivalent to equity of Ch$29,503,032,616, 

which was backed by highly-liquid instruments valued at market value and negative goodwill of Ch$4,705,122,433.

 

Immediately following the aforementioned acquisitions and on February 15, 2016, an extraordinary meeting of the 

Company’s shareholders was held, at which time the shareholders unanimously agreed, among other matters, to:

A) Increase the Company’s capital to Ch$36,393,566,514, divided into a total of 505,750 registered, common, single-

series, no-par-value shares, by issuing 116,940 new shares through a rights issue;

b) Approve the subscription of all new shares by Banco Security and the payment in kind for those shares and those 

issued as part of the capital increase that was agreed at the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on January 20, 

2016, by contributing all 24,478,816 shares of Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. held by Banco Security;

C) Value the shares contributed at Ch$34,208,152,255, in accordance with article 15 of law No. 18,046; and

D)  Pursuant to these agreements, to substitute permanent article five and the transitory article in the corporate by-

laws.
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Pursuant to the above and having expressly waived the term indicated in article 103, number 2 of law No. 18,046, on 

that same date Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa proceeded to register 100% of the shares of Penta Corredores 

de Bolsa S.A. in the shareholders register of Valores Security S.A., and, therefore, Penta Corredores de Bolsa S.A. was 

automatically and legally dissolved under the terms of article 103 of law 18,046, and Valores Security S.A. became its 

legal successor for all intents and purposes, assuming all of its rights and obligations and acquiring all of its assets and 

liabilities.

At the twelfth annual shareholders’ meeting held on January 20, 2016, the shareholders agreed, among other matters, to 

increase the Company’s capital from MCh$2,185,414, divided into 258,942 fully subscribed and paid-in, registered, single-

series, common, no-par-value shares, to MCh$20,185,414, divided into 388,810 registered, single-series, common, no-par-

value shares by issuing 128,868 new shares through a rights issue, which shall be issued, subscribed and paid in within a 

period of three years from January 20, 2016, either in cash or in kind.

On December 24, 2015, Mr. Gonzalo Baraona Bezanilla submitted his resignation as Director of Valores Security S.A. 

Corredores de Bolsa. 

On May 6, 2015, the company sold one share of the Santiago Stock Exchange that enabled it to participate directly in 

brokerage activities. It maintained the share purchased through the merger with Cruz del Sur Corredores de Bolsa

An annual general shareholders’ meeting was called for April 29, 2015, at 9:30 a.m., in order to address and vote on the 

following matters:  To approve the annual report and balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2014, distribution of 

profits for the year, Board fees, appointment of the company’s independent auditors, designation of the newspaper to be 

used for official publications and other routine business to be decided by the shareholders.

In light of this approval, on March 20, 2015, Capital S.A. and Inversiones Seguros Security limitada, as sellers, and Valores 

Security S.A. C.de B., as buyer, signed a public share purchase agreement for the shares of CdS Corredora, detailed as 

follows: (a) Capital S.A. sold the Company 9,183,515 shares of CdS Corredora, at a total price of Ch$3,242,972,647; and (b) 

Inversiones Seguros Security limitada sold the Company 1 share of CdS Corredora, at a total price of Ch$353.

As a result, and since 100% of the shares of CdS Corredora have been registered in the Shareholders Register of that 

company in the name of Valores Security S.A., and since the latter has expressly waived the term set forth in article 103, 

number 2 of law 18,046, CdS Corredora has been automatically dissolved under the terms of Article 103 of law 18,046, 

making Valores Security S.A. C. de B. the legal successor of CdS Corredora for all intents and purposes, whereby it acquires 

all of its rights, obligations, assets and liabilities.

In an extraordinary Board meeting held on March 17, 2015, the Board agreed, among other matters, to approve the related 

party transaction, whereby Valores Security S.A., Corredores de Bolsa would acquire 100% of the shares of Cruz del Sur 

Corredora de Bolsa S.A. (“CdS Corredora”) from Capital S.A. and Inversiones Seguros Security limitada.

5. OPERATINg SEgMENTS

The Bank’s senior management makes decisions based on the following segments or business areas, defined as follows:
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 COMMERCIAL BANKING: 

 Portfolio of customers within the target segment of medium and large companies with sales in excess of Ch$1.5 

billion. The main products and services offered to this segment include commercial loans in local currency, foreign 

currency, leases, foreign trade, current accounts and asset management services.

 RETAIL BANKING: 

 Portfolio of customers within the target segment of high-income individuals (socioeconomic category ABC1). The 

main products and services offered to this segment are current accounts, lines of credit, consumer and mortgage 

loans and asset management services, among others.

 TREASURY:  

 The business of distributing currency and financial products to customers, brokering financial instruments and 

managing the Bank’s own positions, balance sheet, mismatches and liquidity. The main products and services offered 

to customers include currency trading, exchange rate and inflation insurance and other derivative products.

 SUBSIDIARIES: 

 The business of managing funds, brokering equities and managing the Bank’s own positions. These activities are 

carried out through the Bank’s subsidiaries Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A. and Valores Security S.A. 

Corredora de Bolsa.

 OTHER:  

 These are non-recurring and other income and expenses that cannot be allocated to any of the above segments.

The following table illustrates assets, liabilities and profit/loss by segment as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Most of the revenue from the Bank’s segments comes from interest. Operational decision- making, segment performance 

and decisions regarding allocation of resources are based on net interest income. As a result, segment revenue takes interest 

margins into consideration.

A) ASSETS AND lIAbIlITIES by SEgMENT

COMMERCIAl bANkINg RETAIl bANkINg TREASURy OThER TOTAl bANk SUbSIDIARIES TOTAl CONSOlIDATED

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

ASSETS

    Gross loans  3,076,647  2,780,323  1,385,421  1,275,267  26  505  -    1  4,462,094  4,056,096  -    -    4,462,094  4,056,096 

    Credit risk provisions  (56,285)  (53,955)  (24,366)  (20,116)  -    -    -    (229)  (80,651)  (74,300)  -    -    (80,651)  (74,300)

    Net loans  3,020,362  2,726,368  1,361,055  1,255,151  26  505  -    (228)  4,381,443  3,981,796  -    -    4,381,443  3,981,796 

    Financial transactions  -    -    -    -   813,298 536,785  -    -    813,298  536,785  64,496  72,996  877,794  609,781 

    Other assets  -    -    -    -    97,635 135,761 614,435  786,925  712,070  922,686 119,543  70,417  831,613  993,103 

Total assets  3,020,362  2,726,368  1,361,055  1,255,151 910,959 673,051 614,435  786,697  5,906,811  5,441,267 184,039 143,413  6,090,850  5,584,680 

lIAbIlITIES

    liabilities  2,778,281  2,521,799  1,273,802  1,181,188 860,078 620,614 614,385  786,606  5,526,546  5,110,207 102,567  66,133  5,629,113  5,176,340 

    Equity  242,081  204,569  87,253  73,963  50,881  52,437  -    1  380,215  330,970  81,472  77,280  461,687  408,250 

    Non-controlling interest  -    -    -    -    -    50  90  50  90  -    -    50  90 

Total liabilities  3,020,362  2,726,368  1,361,055  1,255,151 910,959 673,051 614,435  786,697  5,906,811  5,441,267 184,039 143,413  6,090,850  5,584,680 
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b) RESUlTS by OPERATINg SEgMENT

COMMERCIAl bANkINg RETAIl bANkINg TREASURy OThER TOTAl bANk SUbSIDIARIES TOTAl CONSOlIDATED

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Operating incOme

Net interest margin (1)  73,693  64,980  57,926  51,273  8,048  21,297  (2,184)  (2,191)  137,483  135,359  (1,559) (1,956)  135,924  133,403 

Net commissions  16,623  15,292  20,360  15,843  (523)  (719)  (1,295)  1,528  35,165  31,944  18,238  16,390  53,403  48,334 

Net foreign exchange and other 
income (2)  9,470  9,977  1,792  879  25,686  9,308  (26,384)  (11,967)  10,564  8,197  12,989  10,766  23,553  18,963 

losses from risk and assets received 
in lieu of payment (3)  (7,708) (33,321)  (19,181) (14,316)  64  (30)  (667)  1,481  (27,492) (46,186)  -    400  (27,492)  (45,786)

Total operating income, net of 
provisions  92,078  56,928  60,897  53,679  33,275  29,856 (30,530)  (11,149)  155,720  129,314  29,668  25,600  185,388  154,914 

Operating expenses (4)  (39,033)  (31,651)  (57,285) (45,502)  (15,318) (10,926)  2,807  3,487 (108,829) (84,592)  (20,106) (13,250) (128,935)  (97,842)

Net operating income  53,045  25,277  3,612  8,177  17,957  18,930 (27,723)  (7,662)  46,891  44,722  9,562  12,350  56,453  57,072 

Income attributable to investments 
in other companies  -    -    -    -    -    -    18  31  18  31  302  229  320  260 

Profit before tax  53,045  25,277  3,612  8,177  17,957  18,930 (27,705)  (7,631)  46,909  44,753  9,864  12,579  56,773  57,332 

Income taxes  (9,885)  (4,738)  (673) (1,533)  (3,346)  (3,548)  9,425  2,034  (4,479)  (7,785)  (1,688)  (2,118)  (6,167)  (9,903)

Consolidated profit for the year  43,160  20,539  2,939  6,644  14,611  15,382 (18,280)  (5,597)  42,430  36,968  8,176  10,461  50,606  47,429 

Non-controlling interest  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (2)  (5)  (2)  (5)

Profit attributable to equity holders 
of the bank  43,160  20,539  2,939  6,644  14,611  15,382 (18,280)  (5,597)  42,430  36,968  8,174  10,456  50,604  47,424 

(1) Corresponds to net interest and indexation income.
(2) Includes net financial operating income, net foreign exchange transactions, other income and expenses and other contingency provisions.
(3) Includes credit risk provisions, net income from assets received in lieu of payment, impairment of investment securities and intangible assets and net country risk, 

special and additional provisions.
(4) Corresponds to payroll and personnel expenses, administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization.

6. CASh AND CASh EQUIVAlENTS

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

cash and due frOm banks

    Cash  9,054  9,822 

    Deposits in the Chilean Central Bank  253,388  327,765 

    Deposits in domestic banks  15,388  7,191 

    Foreign deposits  163,347  216,846 

Subtotal - cash and due from banks  441,177  561,624 

Transactions pending settlement, net  26,200  27,527 

Repurchase agreements  -    -   

Total cash and cash equivalents  467,377  589,151 

Funds in cash and deposits in the Chilean Central Bank are in response to monthly average matching regulations that the 

Bank must meet.
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AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

assets

    Outstanding notes from other banks  22,260  30,884 

    Funds receivable  9,925  10,208 

Subtotal - assets  32,185  41,092 

LiabiLities

    Funds payable  (5,985)  (13,565)

Subtotal - liabilities  (5,985)  (13,565)

Transactions pending settlement, net  26,200  27,527 

7. fINANCIAl INSTRUMENTS hElD fOR TRADINg

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank and its subsidiaries record the following balances in financial instruments 

held for trading:

UP TO ONE yEAR
fROM ONE TO 
ThREE yEARS

fROM ThREE TO SIx 
yEARS

MORE ThAN SIx 
yEARS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,
2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

chiLean gOvernment and centraL bank instruments 

    Chilean Central Bank instruments  9,522  2,187  34,914  2,337  24,155  9,164  1,567  7,142  70,158  20,830 

    Chilean Treasury instruments  5,154  -    13,024  169  12,475  81,682  28,472  3,954  59,125  85,805 

    Other government instruments  -    -    863  -    57  256  -    52  920  308 

Subtotal  14,676  2,187  48,801  2,506  36,687  91,102  30,039  11,148  130,203  106,943 

Other financiaL instruments

    Notes for deposits in domestic banks  85,807  50,977  11,519  3,648  -    -    -    -    97,326  54,625 

    Mortgage bonds in domestic banks  79  1  199  43  127  145  1,990  1,045  2,395  1,234 

    Bonds from domestic banks  11,753  3,262  3,740  7,466  12,898  10,718  2,553  2,607  30,944  24,053 

    Other instruments issued in Chile  2,009  149  3,245  -    -    -    -    -    5,254  149 

    Mutual funds  977  1,754  -    -    -    -    -    -    977  1,754 

Subtotal  100,625  56,143  18,703  11,157  13,025  10,863  4,543  3,652  136,896  81,815 

Total financial instruments held for trading  115,301  58,330  67,504  13,663  49,712  101,965  34,582  14,800  267,099  188,758 

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank has issued its own mortgage bonds for MCh$1,580 and MCh$1,662, 

respectively, which are offset by the mortgage bonds issued by the Bank in liabilities.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the instruments “BlAPO-F” and “BlAPO-G” remain in the portfolio of financial 

instruments held for trading. They total MCh$4 and implied a charge to the consolidated statement of income of MCh$4.

Transactions pending settlement consist of transactions awaiting settlement to increase or decrease funds in the Chilean 

Central Bank or foreign banks, normally within 12 to 24 business hours, and are as follows:
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8. OPERATIONS WITh REPURChASE AgREEMENTS AND SECURITIES 
bORROWINg/lENDINg

A) RIghTS WITh PROMISE Of SAlE

The Bank purchases financial instruments under agreements to sell them at a future date. As of December 31, 2016 and 

2015, rights with resell commitments, classified by type of debtor and maturity, are as follows:

fROM ONE DAy
 TO ThREE MONThS

fROM ThREE MONThS 
TO ONE yEAR MORE ThAN ONE yEAR TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Domestic banks  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other entities  -   -  -    -    -    -    -   -

Total  -   -  -    -    -    -    -   -

b) OblIgATIONS WITh PURChASE COMMITMENTS

The Bank sells financial instruments under agreements to repurchase them at a future date plus preset interest. As of 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, obligations with repurchase commitments, classified by type of debtor and maturity, are as 

follows:

fROM ONE DAy
 TO ThREE MONThS

fROM ThREE MONThS 
TO ONE yEAR MORE ThAN ONE yEAR TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

domestic banks:
Chilean Central Bank  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other banks  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other entities  25,776  540  1,232  232  -    33,720  27,008  34,492 

Total  25,776  540  1,232  232  -    33,720  27,008  34,492 

The instruments that guarantee the obligation for these repurchase agreements are included in the portfolio of financial 

instruments held for trading in Note 7.
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9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND ACCOUNTINg hEDgES

A) The following table summarizes the Bank’s currency trading, futures trading and other transactions with derivative 

instruments as of each year-end:

CASh flOW 
(Cf) OR fAIR 
VAlUE (fV) 

hEDgE

NOTIONAl AMOUNT Of CONTRACT MATURINg IN fAIR VAlUE

lESS ThAN ThREE 
MONThS

fROM ThREE MONThS 
TO ONE yEAR

fROM ThREE MONThS 
TO ONE yEAR ASSETS  lIAbIlITIES

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

trading derivatives

Currency forwards (VR)  48,274  6,123,315  96,108  3,083,342  27,136  643,734  28,103  67,648  (30,579)  (77,332)

Interest rate swaps (VR)  234,721  680,441  1,106,246  543,749  2,350,711  1,347,621  32,794  28,167  (28,560)  (25,473)

Currency swaps (VR)  8,468  13,710  68,379  44,317  379,735  396,464  38,990  43,507  (23,269)  (35,807)

Interest rate put options (VR)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (9)  (11)

Total assets (liabilities) for 
trading derivatives  291,463  6,817,466  1,270,733  3,671,408  2,757,582  2,387,819  99,887  139,322  (82,417)  (138,623)

hedge accOunting derivatives

Currency forwards (F)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest rate swaps (F)  -    -    -    -    18,938  19,222  -    -    (589)  (346)

Currency swaps (F)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total assets (liabilities) for 
hedge accounting derivatives  -    -    -    -    18,938  19,222  -    -    (589)  (346)

Total assets (liabilities) for derivative 
instruments  291,463  6,817,466  1,270,733  3,671,408  2,776,520  2,407,041  99,887  139,322  (83,006)  (138,969)

b) hEDgE ACCOUNTINg

 As of December 31, 2016, the Bank has an accounting hedge with a negative fair value of MCh$546 recorded in 
interest and indexation expense along with a gain of MCh$25. The account interest and indexation income also 
includes an accounting hedge with a negative fair value of MCh$244 and a gain of MCh$587, as a result of an 
adjustment to the hedged asset.  As of December 31, 2015, the Bank has an accounting hedge with a negative fair 
value of MCh$432 recorded in interest and indexation expense and a gain of MCh$47, as a result of an adjustment 

to the hedged asset. 

10. lOANS AND ADVANCES TO bANkS

A) Credit risk for loans and advances to banks as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is assessed individually for each 

transaction. This account is as follows:

ASSETS bEfORE PROVISIONS PROVISIONS RECORDED

NET ASSETS

NORMAl AND 
SUbSTANDARD 

PORTfOlIO
DEfAUlT 

PORTfOlIO TOTAl

NORMAl AND 
SUbSTANDARD 

PORTfOlIO
DEfAUlT 

PORTfOlIO TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Domestic banks  238  411  -    -    238  411  -    -    -    -    -    -    238  411 

Foreign banks  -    302  -    -    -    302  -    -  -    -    -    -  -    302 

Total loans and 
advances to banks  238  713  -    -    238  713  -    -  -    -    -    -  238  713 
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b) Provisions for loans and advances to banks are as follows:

MOVEMENT: MCh$

baLance as Of January 1, 2015  (15)

Write-offs of impaired portfolio  -   

Provisions recorded  (7)

Provisions released  22 

Balance as of December 31, 2015  -   

baLance as Of January 1, 2016  -   

Write-offs of impaired portfolio  -   

Provisions recorded (Note 29)  (2)

Provisions released (Note 29)  2 

Balance as of December 31, 2016  -   

11. lOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET

A) loans to customers

ASSETS bEfORE PROVISIONS PROVISIONS RECORDED

NET ASSETS

NORMAl AND 
SUbSTANDARD 

PORTfOlIO
DEfAUlT 

PORTfOlIO TOTAl
INDIVIDUAl 
PROVISIONS

gROUP 
PROVISIONS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

cOmmerciaL LOans:
Commercial loans  2,830,725  2,467,411 127,276 104,383  2,958,001  2,571,794  50,840  47,022  3,790  2,752  54,630  49,774  2,903,371  2,522,020 
Foreign trade loans  182,396  217,403  6,101  6,701  188,497  224,104  5,800  7,629  7  37  5,807  7,666  182,690  216,438 
Current account overdrafts  38,240  45,547  2,312  2,068  40,552  47,615  2,363  2,067  170  179  2,533  2,246  38,019  45,369 
Factored receivables  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Student loans (*)  5,151  4,987  30  61  5,181  5,048  -    -    141  56  141  56  5,040  4,992 
lease transactions  291,473  270,302  15,433  17,052  306,906  287,354  1,960  2,302  54  49  2,014  2,351  304,892  285,003 
Other loans and receivables  6,030  5,985  927  453  6,957  6,438  765  459  127  28  892  487  6,065  5,951 
Subtotal  3,354,015  3,011,635 152,079 130,718  3,506,094  3,142,353  61,728  59,479  4,289  3,101  66,017  62,580  3,440,077  3,079,773 

MORTGAGE lOANS:
loans funded with mortgage bonds  4,743  5,923  151  73  4,894  5,996  -    -    4  8  4  8  4,890  5,988 
loans funded with own resources  112,292  86,741  1,036  1,111  113,328  87,852  -    -    129  60  129  60  113,199  87,792 
Other mortgage loans  447,407  453,524  5,425  7,391  452,832  460,915  -    -    1,247  905  1,247  905  451,585  460,010 
lease transactions  5  8  -    -    5  8  -    -    -    4  -    4  5  4 
Other loans and receivables  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Subtotal  564,447  546,196  6,612  8,575  571,059  554,771  -    -    1,380  977  1,380  977  569,679  553,794 

cOnsumer LOans:
Consumer installment loans  219,293  215,595  5,525  4,589  224,818  220,184  -    -    7,566  6,338  7,566  6,338  217,252  213,846 
Current account overdrafts  66,671  60,159  2,202  2,037  68,873  62,196  -    -    3,133  2,597  3,133  2,597  65,740  59,599 
Credit card debtors  89,240  75,047  1,419  825  90,659  75,872  -    -    2,555  1,808  2,555  1,808  88,104  74,064 
Consumer lease transactions  -    3  -    -    -    3  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    3 
Other loans and receivables  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Subtotal  375,204  350,804  9,146  7,451  384,350  358,255  -    -    13,254  10,743  13,254  10,743  371,096  347,512 

TOTAl  4,293,666  3,908,635 167,837 146,744  4,461,503  4,055,379  61,728  59,479  18,923  14,821  80,651  74,300  4,380,852  3,981,079 

accOunting hedges:
Commercial loans  591  4 
Subtotal  591  4 

TOTAl lOANS TO CuSTOMERS  4,381,443  3,981,083 

(*)   In accordance with Bank Circular No. 3,583 of May 25, 2015, higher education loans regulated by law No. 20,027 must be presented as commercial loans. For the 
periods 2016 and 2015, these loans totaled MCh$5,181 and MCh$5,048, respectively.
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b) PROVISION MOVEMENTS
 Movements in provisions in 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

INDIVIDUAl 
PROVISIONS

MCh$

gROUP 
PROVISIONS

MCh$

TOTAl
MCh$

BAlANCE AS OF JANuARy 1, 2015  46,515  12,529  59,044 
Write-offs of impaired portfolio:
    Commercial loans  (18,641)  -    (18,641)
    Mortgage loans  -    (116)  (116)
    Consumer loans  -    (12,462)  (12,462)
Total write-offs  (18,641)  (12,578)  (31,219)
Provisions recorded  78,336  35,533  113,869 
Provisions released  (46,731)  (20,663)  (67,394)
Balance as of December 31, 2015  59,479  14,821  74,300 

BAlANCE AS OF JANuARy 1, 2016  59,479  14,821  74,300 
Write-offs of impaired portfolio:
    Commercial loans  (11,187)  -    (11,187)
    Mortgage loans  -    (226)  (226)
    Consumer loans  -    (14,709)  (14,709)
Total write-offs  (11,187)  (14,935)  (26,122)
Provisions recorded (Note 29)  55,716  45,013  100,729 
Provisions released (Note 29)  (42,280)  (25,976)  (68,256)
Balance as of December 31, 2016  61,728  18,923  80,651 

In addition to these provisions for loan losses, the Bank also establishes country risk provisions to hedge foreign operations, 
as well as additional provisions agreed upon by the Board of Directors, which are presented in liabilities in “provisions” (Note 
21).

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, loans to customers present no impairment.

C) gROSS lOANS by INDUSTRy
 The following table details loans by industry, expressed as an amount and as a percentage of total loans before 

provisions:

DOMESTIC lOANS fOREIgN lOANS TOTAl

2016
%

2015
%

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,
2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

cOmmerciaL LOans
    Manufacturing  151,436  175,935  5,528  5,712  156,964  181,647 3.52 4.48
    Mining  46,375  49,822  -    -    46,375  49,822 1.04 1.23
    utilities  164,550  134,889  -    -    164,550  134,889 3.69 3.33
    Agriculture and livestock  124,217  147,731  -    -    124,217  147,731 2.78 3.64
    Forestry  17,402  20,214  -    -    17,402  20,214 0.39 0.50
    Fishing  73,852  64,821  -    -    73,852  64,821 1.66 1.60
    Transportation  163,979  122,702  -    -    163,979  122,702 3.68 3.03
    Telecom  45,639  25,939  -    -    45,639  25,939 1.02 0.64
    Construction  277,002  262,722  -    -    277,002  262,722 6.21 6.48
    Wholesale and retail trade  1,031,987  930,852  210  -    1,032,197  930,852 23.14 22.95
    Financial services and insurance  788,560  643,325  -    -    788,560  643,325 17.67 15.86
    Real estate  7,446  6,099  -    -    7,446  6,099 0.17 0.15
    Corporate services  60,462  109,901  -    -    60,462  109,901 1.36 2.71
    Social services  405,232  339,108  -    -    405,232  339,108 9.08 8.36
    Other  142,217  102,581  -    -    142,217  102,581 3.19 2.53
Subtotal  3,500,356  3,136,641  5,738  5,712  3,506,094  3,142,353  78.59  77.49 
Mortgage loans  571,059  554,771  -    -    571,059  554,771  12.80 13.68
Consumer loans  384,350  358,255  -    -    384,350  358,255  8.61 8.83
Total  4,455,765  4,049,667  5,738  5,712  4,461,503  4,055,379  100.00  100.00 
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12. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank and its subsidiaries record the following balances within investment securities 

using the fair value method:

INVESTMENTS AVAIlAblE fOR SAlE

UP TO ONE yEAR
fROM ONE TO 
ThREE yEARS

fROM ThREE TO SIx 
yEARS

MORE ThAN SIx 
yEARS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$

chilean government and central bank 
instruments 
    Chilean Central Bank instruments  281,379  81,876  12,506  34,834  -    -    -    -    293,885 116,710 
    Chilean Treasury instruments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Subtotal  281,379  81,876  12,506  34,834  -    -    -    -    293,885 116,710 

Other financial instruments
    Notes for deposits in domestic banks  14,027  9,742  4,209  1,050  -    -    -    -    18,236  10,792 
    Mortgage bonds in domestic banks  38  33  405  455  1,501  801  18,632  21,611  20,576  22,900 
    Bonds from domestic companies  33,032  6,447  25,710  19,182  35,200 34,183  25,365  26,652  119,307  86,464 
    Other instruments issued abroad  2,807  11,980  18,790  24,182  83,497 75,709  53,597  72,286  158,691 184,157 
Subtotal  49,904  28,202  49,114  44,869  120,198 110,693  97,594  120,549  316,810 304,313 

Total investments available for sale  331,283  110,078  61,620  79,703  120,198 110,693  97,594  120,549  610,695 421,023 

Operations with repurchase agreements with customers and the Chilean Central Bank within the portfolio of investments 
available for sale as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 amount to MCh$1,005 and MCh$539, respectively.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the portfolio of investments available for sale includes an unrealized loss of MCh$3,268 
and MCh$(3,986), respectively, which is presented in equity net of deferred taxes (Note 24).  

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank does not have any investments held to maturity.

13. INVESTMENTS IN OThER COMPANIES

Investments in other companies correspond to shares and rights in banking support companies valued at cost. Details of the 
value of each investment and the income received (dividends or profit distributions) are as follows:

OWNERShIP 
INTEREST

INVESTMENT VAlUE

INCOME AS Of 
DECEMbER 31,

bAlANCE AS Of 
JANUARy 1, bUy/SAlE

bAlANCE AS Of 
DECEMbER 31,

2016
%

2015
%

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Imer Otc Sa  6.67  6.67  864  864  -    -    864  864  -    -   

Santiago Stock Exchange (*)  2.08  2.08  1,887  305  108  1,582  1,995  1,887  292  199 

Electronic Stock Exchange  2.44  2.44  61  61  -    -    61  61  -    -   

Combanc S.A.  3.96  3.96  131  102  40  29  171  131  12  20 

Depósitos Central de Valores S.A.  3.60  3.60  58  58  -    -    58  58  5  10 

Other investments in other companies  47  47  956  -    1,003  47  11  31 

Total investments in other companies  3,048  1,437  1,104  1,611  4,152  3,048  320  260 

(*)   In 2015, the subsidiary Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa sold one share of the Santiago Stock Exchange recorded at cost.  The same subsidiary merged with 
Cruz del Sur Corredores de Bolsa S.A. (CdS Corredora) and acquired its share of the Santiago Stock Exchange valued at fair value.

The Bank has not recorded any impairment related to these assets.
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14. INTANgIblE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, intangible assets are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Software or computer programs  40,246  59,184 

Goodwill  13,039  8,677 

Total intangible assets  53,285  67,861 

The above concepts are as follows:

A) SOfTWARE OR COMPUTER PROgRAMS

A.1) The intangibles of the Bank and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are internally developed programs 

that are either in production or under development:

TyPE Of INTANgIblE ASSET:

USEfUl lIfE (yEARS)
REMAININg lIfE 

(yEARS) gROSS ASSETS
ACCUMUlATED 
AMORTIzATION NET ASSETS

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016 2015 2016 2015
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$

Acquired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Developed internally  6,15  9,00  14,00  6,84  64,607  76,988 (24,361)  (17,804)  40,246  59,184 

Total  64,607  76,988 (24,361) (17,804)  40,246  59,184 

A.2) The intangibles of the Bank and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are internally developed programs 

that are either in production or under development:

MOVEMENTS IN INTANgIblE ASSETS

INTANgIblE ASSETS

ACCUMUlATED 
AMORTIzATION

MCh$
TOTAl
MCh$

ACQUIRED
MCh$

DEVElOPED 
INTERNAlly

MCh$

baLance as Of January 1, 2015  -    68,245  (16,688)  51,557 

Additions  -    12,189  -    12,189 

Transfer to intangible assets in operation  -    (1,889)  3,835  1,946 

Amortization for the year  -    -    (4,951)  (4,951)

Impairment for the year  -    (1,557)  -    (1,557)

Balance as of December 31, 2015  -    76,988  (17,804)  59,184 

baLance as Of January 1, 2016  -    76,988  (17,804)  59,184 

Additions  -    8,719  -    8,719 

Transfer to intangible assets in operation  -    -    -    -   

Amortization for the year  -    -    (13,198)  (13,198)

Impairment for the year  -    (21,100)  6,641  (14,459)

Balance as of December 31, 2016  -    64,607  (24,361)  40,246 

In 2016 and 2015, the Bank recorded charges of MCh$21,100 and MCh$1,557 (Note 33) for impairment, respectively.
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b) gOODWIll

b.1) Goodwill as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016
MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015
MCh$

Goodwill 13,039 8,677 

Total 13,039 8,677 

b.2) Movements in goodwill in the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

“MOVEMENTS IN gOODWIll 12.31.2016 
MCh$

NET OPENINg 
bAlANCE ADDITIONS

IMPAIRMENT lOSSES 
RECOgNIzED IN EQUITy

IMPAIRMENT lOSSES 
RECOgNIzED IN PROfIT 

(lOSS)
NET ClOSINg 

bAlANCE

Goodwill Administradora General 
de Fondos Security S.A. 8,677 532 -       -        9,209 

Goodwill Valores Security S.A. 
Corredores de Bolsa -       3,830 -       -        3,830 

Total 8,677 4,362 -       -        13,039 

As explained in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, on February 15, 2016, Banco Security acquired Penta 
Corredores de Bolsa S.A. and Penta Administradora General de Fondos S.A., giving rise to goodwill of MCh$3,830 and 
MCh$532, respectively, as detailed in Note 2 ac) of the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities consolidated in these financial statements has been determined 
provisionally, in accordance with IFRS 3, which allows adjustments to the provisional amounts within a period of one year.

15. PROPERTy, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT

A) PROPERTy, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT

MOVEMENTS IN PROPERTy, PlANT AND EQUIPMENT

bUIlDINgS AND lAND EQUIPMENT 
OThER PROPERTy, PlANT AND 

EQUIPMENT 

NET 
ASSETS

gROSS 
ASSETS

DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT
gROSS 
ASSETS

DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT
gROSS 
ASSETS

DEPRECIATION IMPAIRMENT

ACCUMUlATED ACCUMUlATED ACCUMUlATED

MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$

baLance as Of January 
1, 2015  18,906  (2,586)  -    6,995  (5,765)  -    13,260  (6,564)  -    24,246 

Additions  730  -    -    512  -    -    1,792  -    -    3,034 

Disposals / write-offs  -    -    -    -    67  -    -    96  -    163 

Depreciation for the year  -    (267)  -    -    (588)  -    -    (987)  -    (1,842)

Impairment for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as of December 31, 
2015  19,636  (2,853)  -    7,507  (6,286)  -    15,052  (7,455)  -    25,601 

baLance as Of January 
1, 2016  19,636  (2,853)  -    7,507  (6,286)  -    15,052  (7,455)  -    25,601 

Additions  213  -    -    342  -    -    906  -    -    1,461 

Disposals / write-offs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Depreciation for the year  -    (348)  -    -    (443)  -    -    (1,212)  -    (2,003)

Impairment for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as of December 31, 
2016  19,849  (3,201)  -    7,849  (6,729)  -    15,958  (8,667)  -    25,059 
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b) fUTURE OPERATINg lEASE PAyMENTS

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, which must be disbursed for operating lease agreements 

and cannot be unilaterally rescinded without compensating the other party, are as follows:

fUTURE lEASE CASh flOWS

lESS ThAN ONE yEAR fROM ONE TO fIVE yEARS MORE ThAN 5 yEARS TOTAl

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Operating lease agreements 291 146 10,246 11,589 10,227 11,257 20,764 22,992

C) lEASE ExPENSES

Expenses for operating leases for the agreements described in letter b) for 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Operating lease expenses 3,158  3,215 

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank does not have any finance leases.

16. CURRENT AND DEfERRED TAxES

A) CURRENT TAxES

Current tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Current income taxes  (14,178)  (13,505)

Tax on disallowed expenses (35%)  -   

less:

    Monthly provisional tax payments  13,796  15,630 

    Credits for training expenses  114  113 

    Other  60  47 

Total  (208)  2,285 

Recoverable taxes for the year  (208)  -   

Income taxes payable  -    -   

Current tax liability  (208)  -   

Recoverable taxes for the year  -    2,285 

Recoverable taxes from prior years  1,086  592 

Current tax asset  1,086  2,877 
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b) INCOME TAx ExPENSE

The Bank’s tax expense recorded for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

incOme tax expense:

Current year taxes  14,178  13,505 

Single tax for the year  49  12 

Tax expense adjustment (prior period)  151  840 

Subtotal  14,378  14,357 

credit (charge) fOr deferred taxes:

Origin and reversal of temporary differences  (6,128)  (3,833)

Effect of change in tax rate  (2,083)  (621)

Net charge to profit for income taxes  6,167  9,903 

C) DEfERRED TAxES

The table below details deferred taxes arising from the following temporary differences:

C.1) EFFECT OF DEFERRED TAXES ON EQUITY:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Financial assets available for sale  (1,031)  1,157 

Tax goodwill  1,671  1,827 

Other  (277)  31 

Total  363  3,015 
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C.2) EFFECT OF DEFERRED TAXES:

C.3) TOTAL DEFERRED TAXES:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

deferred tax assets:

    Global portfolio provisions 19,460 15,844 

    Goodwill portfolio provisions 458 473 

    Vacation and other provisions 937  927 

    Fair value investments 285  369 

    Contingency provisions 3  3 

    Global provisions on recovered assets 28  355 

    Projects and development 7,238 6,231 

    Suspended interest 963 562 

    Other 5,226 5,203 

Total deferred tax assets through profit and loss  34,598  29,967 

     Effect on equity (debtor balance)  1,394  1,858 

Total deferred tax assets  35,992  31,825 

deferred tax LiabiLities:

    lease agreements 662  (1,259)

    Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (6,201) (6,296)

Effective rate (184) (175)

Deferred revenue and expenses -        (1,944)

Projects and development (7,346)  (7,163)

    Other (1,046) (858)

Total deferred tax liabilities through profit and loss  (14,115)  (17,695)

     Effect on equity (creditor balance) (1,031)  1,157 

Total deferred tax liabilities  (15,146)  (16,538)

Total asset through profit and loss  20,483  12,272 

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Effect of deferred taxes on equity 363 3,015 

Effect of deferred taxes on profit (loss) 20,483 12,272 

Total asset, net 20,846 15,287 

C.4) RECONCILIATION OF TAX RATES:

The following table reconciles the income tax rate to the effective rate applied to determine the Bank’s income tax expense 

as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 2016 AS Of DECEMbER 31, 2015

TAx
RATE

AMOUNT
MCh$

TAx
RATE

AMOUNT
MCh$

Profit before taxes 24.0%  13,626 22.5%  12,900 

Permanent differences -9.8%  (5,576) -5.6%  (3,228)

Additions or deductions

   Single tax (disallowed expenses) 0.1%  49 0.0%  12 

   Prior period adjustments 0.3%  151 1.4%  789 

   Effect of change in tax rate -3.7%  (2,083) -1.1%  (621)

   Other 0.0%  - 0.1%  51 

Effective rate and income tax expense 10.9%  6,167 17.3%  9,903 
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Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences and other events that generate differences between the carrying 

amount for financial reporting purposes and tax bases of assets and liabilities are recorded in accordance with IAS 12 

Income Taxes..

jOINT STANDARD: SBIF CIRCULAR NO. 3,478 AND CHILEAN INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CIRCULAR NO. 47

The tax treatment of provisions, write-offs, renegotiations and remissions of loans granted by the Bank (excluding 

subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

D.1) LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AS OF DECEMBER 31:

lOANS TO CUSTOMERS:

ASSETS AT CARRyINg 
AMOUNT

ASSETS AT TAx VAlUE

TOTAl
SECURED PAST-DUE 

PORTfOlIO
UNSECURED PAST-

DUE PORTfOlIO

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Commercial loans 3,199,789 2,855,030    3,203,532  2,852,400  9,006  5,413  7,741  8,846 

Consumer loans 384,350  358,252   384,350  363,300  59  56  1,896  1,182 

Residential mortgage loans 571,055  554,763  571,055  554,763  449  489  8  -   

loans and advances to banks  238  712  238  712  -    -    -    -   

Total 4,155,432 3,768,757 4,159,175 3,771,175  9,514 5,958  9,645 10,028

D.2) PROVISIONS FOR PAST-DUE PORTFOLIO:

D.3) WRITE-OFFS, CANCELLATIONS AND RECOVERIES:

PROVISIONS fOR PAST-DUE lOANS

bAlANCE AS Of 
JANUARy 1,

WRITE-OffS 
AgAINST 

PROVISIONS
PROVISIONS 
RECORDED

PROVISIONS 
RElEASED

bAlANCE AS Of 
DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Commercial loans  8,846  15,592  (7,507) (13,556)  6,402  6,810  -    -    7,741  8,846 

Consumer loans  1,182  837  (6,379)  (5,658)  7,093  6,003  -    -    1,896  1,182 

Residential mortgage loans  -    -    -    -    8  -    -    -    8  -   

loans and advances to banks  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  10,028  16,429 (13,886) (19,214) 13,503 12,813  -    -    9,645 10,028 

DIRECT WRITE-OffS AND RECOVERIES

AS Of DECEMbER 31,

APPlICATION Of ARTIClE 31 NO. 4 SECTIONS 
ONE AND ThREE

AS Of DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Direct write-offs Art. 31, No. 4, section two  11,718  11,647  -    -   

Cancellations that resulted in releasing provisions  -    -    -    -   

Recovery or renegotiation of written-off loans  3,737  4,281  -    -   
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17. OThER ASSETS

A) As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, other assets are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Leased assets  19,332  36,285 

Assets received or awarded in lieu of payment: 

    Assets received in lieu of payment  95  1,052 

    Assets awarded in court-ordered public auction  1,232  392 

    Provisions for assets received in lieu of payment  (220)  (145)

Subtotal - Assets received or awarded in lieu of payment  1,107  1,299 

Other assets 

    Cash deposits as collateral  11,257  21,113 

    VAT tax credit  2,383  1,275 

    Prepaid expenses  1,162  1,070 

    Recovered leased assets for sale  675  1,388 

    Brokerage receivables  70,960  36,173 

    Treasury receivables  18,954  11,099 

    Other  12,722  10,151 

Subtotal - Other assets  118,113  82,269 

Total other assets  138,552  119,853 

leased assets include assets available for finance leases.

The Bank does not have any property, plant and equipment available for sale that should be presented in this account.

b) The following table details movements in provisions for assets received in lieu of payment during the years ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, recorded in accordance with SBIF standards:

MOVEMENT: MCh$

baLance as Of January 1, 2015  (44)

Recorded:     Provision  (201)

    Impairment  -   

Released::     Provision  100 

    Impairment  -   

Balance as of December 31, 2015  (145)

baLance as Of January 1, 2016  (145)

Recorded:     Provision  (295)

    Impairment  -   

Released::     Provision  220 

    Impairment  -   

Balance as of December 31, 2016  (220)
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18. DEPOSITS

Obligations for deposits held by the Bank are classified as demand or time deposits; details are as follows.

A) CURRENT ACCOUNTS AND OThER DEMAND DEPOSITS

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, current accounts and other demand deposits are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

current accOunts:

    Current accounts of domestic banks  5,534  11 

    Current accounts of other legal entities  310,160  337,230 

    Current accounts of individuals  152,293  139,217 

Subtotal  467,987  476,458 

Other demand depOsits and accOunts

    Cashier's checks  35,736  34,100 

    Demand deposits  2,180  2,493 

Subtotal  37,916  36,593 

Other demand baLances payabLe:

    Deposits for court allocations  84  5 

    Performance bonds payable on demand  7,355  7,095 

    Collections made but not yet received  8,316  11,477 

    Export returns to settle  53  18 

    Pending payment orders  3,216  2,707 

    Payments on behalf of loans to be settled  4,816  2,982 

    Frozen assets (art 156 of General Banking law)  999  931 

    lapsed time deposits  2,354  2,567 

    Other demand balances  36,922  43,023 

Subtotal  64,115  70,805 

Total  570,018  583,856 

b) SAVINgS ACCOUNTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

Savings accounts and time deposits as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, are classified by maturity; details are as follows:

UP TO ONE yEAR
fROM ONE TO ThREE 

yEARS
fROM ThREE TO SIx 

yEARS MORE ThAN SIx yEARS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

time depOsits 

    Domestic banks  204,115  198,227  5,006  -    -    -    -    -    209,121  198,227 

    Other legal entities  2,592,533  2,358,317  97,502  19,638  -    -    -    -    2,690,035  2,377,955 

    Individuals  152,426  141,251  46  52  192  183  -    -    152,664  141,486 

Subtotal  2,949,074  2,697,795  102,554  19,690  192  183  -    -    3,051,820  2,717,668 



pAGE

101

19. bORROWINgS fROM fINANCIAl INSTITUTIONS

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, interbank loans are as follows:

UP TO ONE yEAR
fROM ONE TO 
ThREE yEARS

fROM ThREE TO SIx 
yEARS

MORE ThAN SIx 
yEARS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

dOmestic banks:

Current account overdrafts  5  515  -    -    -    -    -    -    5  515 

Subtotal  5  515  -    -    -    -    -    -    5  515 

fOreign banks:

Financing for Chilean exports  100,656  123,383  -    -    -    -    -    -    100,656  123,383 

Financing for Chilean imports  10,728  68,287  16,779  -    -    -    -    -    27,507  68,287 

Obligations for transactions between 
third-party countries  -    -    16,745  17,718  13,413  -    -    -    30,158  17,718 

loans and other obligations  431  18,253  -    -    -    -    -    -    431  18,253 

Subtotal  111,815  209,923  33,524  17,718  13,413  -    -    -    158,752  227,641 

Chilean Central Bank:  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  111,820  210,438  33,524  17,718  13,413  -    -    -    158,757  228,156 

20. DEbT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OThER fINANCIAl lIAbIlITIES

Debt instruments issued and other financial liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, are detailed by maturity in the 

following table:

A) DEbT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED

UP TO ONE yEAR
fROM ONE TO 
ThREE yEARS

fROM ThREE TO SIx 
yEARS

MORE ThAN SIx 
yEARS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

Letters Of credit:

letters of credit for residential 
purposes  244  1,017  494  1,548  576  1,718  2,371  626  3,685  4,909 

letters of credit for general purposes  417  2,546  844  4,561  2,888  5,579  16,787  11,211  20,936  23,897 

Subtotal  661  3,563  1,338  6,109  3,464  7,297  19,158  11,837  24,621  28,806 

bOnds:

Senior bonds  106,638 102,168  296,651  219,564  415,247  291,241  482,996  505,268  1,301,532  1,118,241 

Subordinated bonds  11,979  8,608  16,877  21,211  22,388  21,455  193,876  146,552  245,120  197,826 

Subtotal  118,617  110,776  313,528  240,775  437,635  312,696  676,872  651,820  1,546,652  1,316,067 

Total  119,278  114,339  314,866  246,884  441,099  319,993  696,030  663,657  1,571,273  1,344,873 
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b) OThER fINANCIAl lIAbIlITIES

UP TO ONE yEAR
fROM ONE TO 
ThREE yEARS

fROM ThREE TO SIx 
yEARS

MORE ThAN SIx 
yEARS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

pubLic-sectOr ObLigatiOns:

CORFO financing  402  501  2,538  1,260  6,888  10,741  3,828  3,985  13,656  16,487 

Subtotal  402  501  2,538  1,260  6,888  10,741  3,828  3,985  13,656  16,487 

Other chiLean ObLigatiOns:

Payables to credit card operators  6,483  6,160  -    -    -    -    -    -    6,483  6,160 

Obligations in favor of Chilean exporters  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Subtotal  6,483  6,160  -    -    -    -    -    -    6,483  6,160 

Total  6,885  6,661  2,538  1,260  6,888  10,741  3,828  3,985  20,139  22,647 

21. PROVISIONS

A) As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank and its subsidiaries recorded the following provisions:

AS Of DECEMbER 31 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31 
2015

 MCh$

prOvisiOns fOr payrOLL and empLOyee benefits 

Provision for other employee benefits  149  -   

Vacation provisions  2,634  2,660 

Subtotal - Provisions for payroll and employee benefits  2,783  2,660 

minimum dividend prOvisiOn  15,181  14,227 

cOntingent credit risk prOvisiOns 

Guarantees and pledges  74  140 

Issued foreign letters of credit  25  14 

Performance and bid bonds  2,263  2,526 

unrestricted lines of credit  3,226  3,623 

Subtotal - Contingent loan risk  5,588  6,303 

cOntingency prOvisiOns 

Country risk provisions  93  189 

Minimum provision adjustment  -    16 

Other contingency provisions  7,991  3,905 

Subtotal - Contingency provisions  8,084  4,110 

Total other provisions  31,636  27,300 

In the opinion of the Bank’s management, the provisions recorded cover all potential losses that may arise from not 

recovering assets, based on the information examined by the Bank and its subsidiaries.
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b) In 2016 and 2015, provision movements are as follows:

PAyROll AND 
EMPlOyEE bENEfITS 

MCh$

MINIMUM 
DIVIDENDS

MCh$

CONTINgENT lOAN 
RISk

MCh$
CONTINgENCIES

MCh$
TOTAl
MCh$

BAlANCE AS OF JANuARy 1, 2015  2,809  16,771  4,170  9,070  32,820 

Provisions recorded  736  12,576  10,038  1,101  24,451 

Provisions released  (885)  (15,120)  (7,905)  (6,061)  (29,971)

Balance as of December 31, 2015  2,660  14,227  6,303  4,110  27,300 

BAlANCE AS OF JANuARy 1, 2016  2,660  14,227  6,303  4,110  27,300 

Provisions recorded  906  13,059  8,867  9,796  32,628 

Provisions released  (783)  (12,105)  (9,582)  (5,822)  (28,292)

Balance as of December 31, 2016  2,783  15,181  5,588  8,084  31,636 

22. OThER lIAbIlITIES

Other liabilities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Accounts and notes payable  45,952  20,252 

Dividends payable  31  20 

unearned revenue  511  2,149 

Short sales  4  -   

Payables to customers for brokerage services  33,343  18,191 

Payables to brokers for brokerage services  10,862  4,854 

Other liabilities  3,414  2,810 

Total  94,117  48,276 

23. CONTINgENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A) lAWSUITS AND lEgAl PROCEEDINgS

LEGAL CONTINGENCIES WITHIN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

As of the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, no legal actions have been filed against the Bank 

and its subsidiaries involving its normal operations. Management and its legal counsel do not believe that the Bank and its 

subsidiaries are exposed to any potential significant losses not disclosed in these financial statements.
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b) CONTINgENT lOANS

The following note contains the amounts for which the Bank is contractually obliged to provide loans and the amount of 
credit risk provisions recorded:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Performance and bid bonds 215,371 229,696

Immediately available credit lines 835,941 797,626

letters of credit 13,251 15,031

Guarantees and surety bonds 5,347 6,199

Provisions  (5,588)  (6,303)

Total  1,064,322  1,042,249 

C) lIAbIlITIES

The Bank and its subsidiaries are liable to the following as a result of their normal course of business:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Securities and bonds provided as guarantee 4,483,875 3,782,803

Instruments in custody 1,569,110 1,154,175

loans approved but not disbursed 476,501 474,216

Signed lease agreements 43,498 61,363

Notes in collections 51,237 43,565

Total 6,624,221 5,516,122 

D) gUARANTEES fURNIShED

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank does not have any assets furnished as guarantee.

As of December 31, 2016, Valores Security S.A. Corredora de Bolsa, in compliance with articles 30 and 31 of law No. 18,045 

(Securities Market law), has established a guarantee of uF 20,000 maturing April 22, 2018, through MAPFRE Garantías y 

Crédito S.A., designating the Santiago Stock Exchange as the depositary and custody institution.  

With respect to the circular issued by the Santiago Stock Exchange requiring all brokers to have comprehensive insurance 

coverage beginning February 1, 1998, Valores Security S.A. Corredora de Bolsa has a comprehensive banking insurance 

policy with Compañía de Seguros Generales Penta Security, for uF 300,000, maturing July 31, 2017, which provides all of 

the coverage required by that circular.

In order to guarantee forward transactions, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa has deposited stocks in custody of the 

Santiago Stock Exchange totaling MCh$24,850 and MCh$12,729 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

 

In order to guarantee transactions in the settlement clearing system, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa has deposited 

financial instruments as guarantees with CClV Countraparte Central totaling MCh$2,956 and MCh$1,424 as of December 

31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2016, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa did not have any instruments in custody to guarantee 

proprietary short sales and securities loans.  As of December 31, 2015, the subsidiary had recorded MCh$1,201 for this 

concept.

In compliance with SVS Circular 1898, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de Bolsa has contracted an insurance policy for 

uF10,000 expiring on January 7, 2017, through Compañía de Seguros de Crédito Continental S.A., in favor of holders of 

voluntary retirement savings plans.

In compliance with General Standard 363 of April 30, 2014, which refers to a guarantee for correct professional performance 

in accordance with law 20,712 on managing third-party funds and individual portfolios, Valores Security S.A. Corredores de 

Bolsa has taken out insurance for uF 204,091 through Compañía de Seguros Continental, expiring on March 31, 

24. EQUITy

A) The Bank’s authorized capital is comprised of 215,000,000 single-series shares, of which 210,953,488 are fully 

subscribed and paid in.

 On March 15, 2016, 4,958,562 shares of Banco Security were subscribed and paid in at a price of Ch$2,016.714096 

per share.

 

 Movements of issued and paid in shares are as follows:

COMMON ShARES PREfERENTIAl ShARES

2016 2015 2016 2015

Opening balance 205,994,926 205,993,449 - -

Payment of subscribed shares   4,958,562   1,477 - -

Balance 210,953,488 205,994,926 - -

 A la fecha de cierre de los estados financieros la distribución de la propiedad del Banco era la siguiente:

ShAREhOlDERS

2016 2015

NO. Of ShARES
OWNERShIP INTEREST

(%) NO. Of ShARES
OWNERShIP INTEREST

(%)

Grupo Security 210,895,936 99.97 205,936,986 99.97

Other 57,552 0.03 57,940 0.03

Total 210,953,488 100.00 205,994,926 100.00

b) As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, earnings per share are as follows:

 ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK:

DECEMbER

2016 2015

Profit for the year                                 MCh$ 50,604 MCh$ 47,424

Average outstanding shares  210,127,061 205,994,926

earnings per share:

Basic                                           Ch$ 241 Ch$ 230

Diluted                                          Ch$ 241 Ch$ 230
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C) Reserve accounts within the statement of changes in equity are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Opening balance  23,950  24,190 

Other equity movements (*)  760  (240)

Closing balance  24,710  23,950 

(*) Opening balance of other equity movements

Movement subsidiary Administradora General de Fondos Security S.A.  (156)  (117)

Movement subsidiary Valores Security S.A. Corredora de Bolsa  916  (123)

Total  760  (240)

D) Valuation accounts within the statement of changes in equity are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

instruments avaiLabLe fOr saLe:

    Valuation  4,299  (5,143)

    Deferred taxes  (1,031)  1,157 

    Subtotal  3,268  (3,986)

ACCOuNTING hEDGES:

    Valuation  -    -   

    Deferred taxes  -    -   

    Subtotal  -    -   

Total  3,268  (3,986)

E) For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the following dividend was declared and paid:

DESCRIPTION

DISTRIbUTAblE 
PROfIT
MCh$

DIVIDENDS
MCh$ RESERVESMCh$

DIVIDENDS
PER ShARE

Ch$

2015 Fiscal year
Shareholders’ meeting No. 34 47,424 14,227 37,197 67.44

2014 Fiscal year
Shareholders’ meeting No. 33 55,902 16,771 39,131 81.41

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank recorded a provision for minimum dividends in accordance with law No. 

18,046 on Corporations and chapter B4 of the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards, amounting to MCh$15,181 and 

MCh$14,227, respectively.

f) Basic and regulatory capital:  In accordance with the General Banking law, a financial institution must have minimum 

basic capital of not less than 3% of total assets, and regulatory capital of not less than 8% of its risk-weighted 

assets.  As of December 31, 2016, Banco Security has basic capital of 7.10% (6.63% in December 2015) and 13.22% 

(12.10% in December 2015), respectively.
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25. INTEREST AND INDExATION

Interest and indexation accrued and received for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

A) INTEREST AND INDExATION INCOME

INTEREST INDExATION TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

repurchase agreements  63  97  -    -    63  97 

loans and advances to banks  1,010  456  -    -    1,010  456 

cOmmerciaL LOans:

   Commercial loans  151,866  125,870  27,839  36,638  179,705  162,508 

   Foreign trade loans  6,617  7,304  22  -    6,639  7,304 

   Current account loans  7,058  7,064  -    -    7,058  7,064 

   Student loans  305  -    138  -    443  -   

   Commercial lease agreements  17,227  15,380  5,966  12,403  23,193  27,783 

   Prepayment commissions on commercial loans  -    -    1,540  -    1,540  -   

Total income from commercial loans  183,073  155,618  35,505  49,041  218,578  204,659 

mOrtgage LOans:

   loans funded with mortgage bonds  232  295  151  261  383  556 

   Commissions on loans funded with mortgage bonds  40  42  -    -    40  42 

   loans funded with own resources  3,775  2,475  2,819  2,688  6,594  5,163 

   Other mortgage loans  17,360  18,095  12,575  18,301  29,935  36,396 

Total income from mortgage loans  21,407  20,907  15,545  21,250  36,952  42,157 

cOnsumer LOans:

   Consumer installment loans  22,142  21,686  -    190  22,142  21,876 

   Current account loans  12,399  14,877  -    -    12,399  14,877 

   Credit card loans  9,832  8,054  -    -    9,832  8,054 

   Prepayment commissions on consumer loans  -    -    5  -    5  -   

Total income from consumer loans  44,373  44,617  5  190  44,378  44,807 

investment securities:

   Investments available for sale  21,583  17,351  1,949  2,919  23,532  20,270 

Total income from investment securities  21,583  17,351  1,949  2,919  23,532  20,270 

Other interest or indexation income:  4,644  4,170  211  241  4,855  4,411 

Gain (loss) from accounting hedges (*)  343  (47)  -    -    343  (47)

Total interest and indexation income  276,496  243,169  53,215  73,641  329,711  316,810 

Suspended interest and indexation on loans included in the impaired portfolio totaled MCh$471 and MCh$957, as of 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(*)   loss on accounting hedges explained in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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b) INTEREST AND INDExATION ExPENSES

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, interest and indexation expenses are as follows:

INTEREST INDExATION OThER TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

depOsits

    Demand deposits  (396)  (480)  (145)  (73)  -    -    (541)  (553)

    Time deposits  (90,960)  (75,022)  (8,496)  (10,805)  -    -    (99,456)  (85,827)

Total expenses for deposits  (91,356)  (75,502)  (8,641)  (10,878)  -    -    (99,997)  (86,380)

Repurchase agreements  (1,226)  (1,516)  -    -    -    -    (1,226)  (1,516)

Borrowings from financial institutions  (1,742)  (1,078)  -    -    -    -    (1,742)  (1,078)

debt instruments issued 

    Interest on letters of credit  (1,048)  (1,269)  (721)  (1,241)  -    -    (1,769)  (2,510)

    Interest on senior bonds  (40,153)  (33,928)  (32,101)  (39,866)  -    -    (72,254)  (73,794)

    Interest on subordinated bonds  (9,357)  (8,717)  (6,004)  (7,725)  -    -    (15,361)  (16,442)

Total expenses for debt issued  (50,558)  (43,914)  (38,826)  (48,832)  -    -    (89,384)  (92,746)

Other interest or indexation expenses  (505)  (588)  (412)  (667)  -    -    (917)  (1,255)

loss from accounting hedges (*)  (521)  (432)  -    -    -    -    (521)  (432)

Total interest and indexation expenses  (145,908)  (122,598)  (47,879)  (60,377)  -    -    (193,787)  (183,407)

(*)   loss on accounting hedges explained in Note 9 to the financial statements.

26. fEES AND COMMISSIONS

Fee and commission income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, which are presented in the 

consolidated statement of income, consist of the following concepts:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

fee and cOmmissiOn incOme

    lines of credit and overdrafts  2,008  1,962 

    Guarantees and letters of credit  4,935  5,320 

    Card services  7,378  6,870 

    Account management  3,025  2,762 

    Collections and payments  13,109  10,666 

    Securities brokerage and management  4,812  2,841 

    Mutual funds and other investments  20,389  20,204 

    Financial advisory services  -    54 

    Other fees and commissions earned  8,284  6,519 

Total fee and commission income  63,940  57,198 

fee and cOmmissiOn expenses

    Securities transactions fees and commissions  (1,111)  (490)

    Sales service fees and commissions  (6,706)  (6,546)

    Other fees and commissions  (2,720)  (1,828)

Total fee and commission expenses  (10,537)  (8,864)

Total net fee and commission income  53,403  48,334 
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27. NET fINANCIAl OPERATINg INCOME

Net financial operating income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

financiaL instruments heLd fOr trading 

    Interest and indexation  7,535  9,580 

    Fair value adjustment  1,892  2,616 

    Gain on sale  3,887  7,724 

    loss on sale  (892)  (7,260)

    Gain on mutual fund investments  2,563  1,945 

Subtotal  14,985  14,605 

trading derivatives 

    Gain on derivative instruments  297,438  348,917 

    loss on derivative instruments  (279,507)  (366,853)

Subtotal  17,931  (17,936)

saLe Of investments avaiLabLe fOr saLe 

    Fair value adjustments transferred to profit (loss)  859  (1,479)

    Gain on sale  2,647  1,587 

    loss on sale  (299)  (3,709)

Subtotal  3,207  (3,601)

Sale of loan portfolio  451  (181)

net gain (LOss) frOm Other transactiOns 

    Purchases of letters of credit issued by the bank  (2)  (3)

    Other income  4,484  4,961 

    Other expenses  (2,673)  (2,521)

Subtotal  1,809  2,437 

Total net financial operating income (loss)  38,383  (4,676)

28. NET fOREIgN ExChANgE TRANSACTIONS

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, net foreign exchange transactions for the Bank and its subsidiaries are 

as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

net fOreign exchange transactiOns:

    Net gain on currency positions  1,219  20,466 

    Other currency gains  231  838 

Subtotal  1,450  21,304 

net gain fOr exchange rate adJustments

    Indexation of loans to customers  6  51 

    Indexation of other liabilities  -    -   

Subtotal  6  51 

Total  1,456  21,355 
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29. CREDIT RISk PROVISIONS

Movements in credit risk provisions for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

lOANS AND 
ADVANCES TO 

bANkS

lOANS TO CUSTOMERS

CONTINgENT 
lOANS TOTAl

COMMERCIAl 
lOANS

MORTgAgE 
lOANS

CONSUMER
lOANS

DECEMbER DECEMbER DECEMbER DECEMbER DECEMbER DECEMbER

2016 
MCh$

2015 
MCh$

2016 
MCh$

2015 
MCh$

2016 
MCh$

2015 
MCh$

2016 
MCh$

2015 
MCh$

2016 
MCh$

2015 
MCh$

2016
 MCh$

2015 
MCh$

prOvisiOns recOrded:

     Individual provisions  (2)  (7) (55,716) (78,336)  -    -    -    -    (4,428)  (5,314)  (60,146) (83,657)

     Group provisions (*) (***)  -    -    (4,775)  (3,177)  (3,252)  (1,881) (36,986) (30,475)  (4,439)  (4,724)  (49,452) (40,257)

     Minimum provision adjustment  -    -    -    (14)  -    -    -    -    (2)  -    (16)

Total provisions recorded  (2)  (7)  (60,491)  (81,527)  (3,252)  (1,881)  (36,986)  (30,475)  (8,867) (10,040)  (109,598) (123,930)

prOvisiOns reLeased:

     Individual provisions  2  22  42,280  46,731  -    -    -    -    4,705  3,645  46,987  50,398 

     Group provisions (**) (***)  -    -    3,535  3,003  2,619  1,508  19,822  16,152  4,877  4,260  30,853  24,923 

     Minimum provision adjustment  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total provisions released  2  22  45,815  49,734  2,619  1,508  19,822  16,152  9,582  7,905  77,840  75,321 

Recovery of written-off assets  -    -    1,816  1,149  -    93  2,165  3,249  -    -    3,981  4,491 

Profit for the period  -    15 (12,860) (30,644)  (633)  (280) (14,999) (11,074)  715  (2,135)  (27,777)  (44,118)

In management’s opinion, the credit risk provisions recorded for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, cover the 

potential losses that may arise from not recovering these assets.

(*)   Group provisions are equal to the sum of MCh$4,775, MCh$3,252 and MCh$36,986.
(**)   Group provisions are equal to the sum of MCh$3,535, MCh$2,619 and MCh$19,822.
(***)   The impact of SBIF Circular No. 3,573 of MCh$969 is recorded within Residential mortgage loans.
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30. PAyROll AND PERSONNEl ExPENSES

Payroll and personnel expenses consist of expenses accrued during the year for remunerations and compensation of 

employees and other expenses derived from the employee-employer relationship.

A) Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, for these concepts are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Payroll  (30,864)  (27,718)

Bonuses  (15,720)  (7,462)

Severance indemnities  (2,852)  (1,894)

Training expenses  (480)  (469)

Other benefits  (4,808)  (3,815)

Total  (54,724)  (41,358)

b) Other personnel expenses recorded during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

NO. Of EMPlOyEES RECEIVINg bENEfIT

REASON fOR 
bENEfIT

TOTAl

2016 2015
2016

 MCh$
2015

 MCh$

bOnuses 

    Productivity bonus  1,094  1,214 Voluntary  11,586  4,665 

    legal bonuses and employer contributions  1,428  1,368 Contractual  2,566  2,178 

    Other bonuses  1,262  1,236 Contractual  1,568  619 

Total bonuses  15,720  7,462 

Other benefits

    health insurance  1,396  1,337 Contractual  1,261  1,118 

    life insurance  332  341 Contractual  106  60 

    Meal allowance  1,420  1,363 Contractual  1,544  1,218 

    Annual events  636  26 Voluntary  83  75 

    Childcare  152  137 Birth of child  288  172 

    Other benefits  1,420  1,345 Voluntary  1,526  1,172 

Total other benefits  4,808  3,815 
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31. ADMINISTRATIVE ExPENSES

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, details are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

generaL administrative expenses

    Maintenance and repair of property, plant and equipment  (3,919)  (3,301)

    Office leases  (2,975)  (2,910)

    Equipment leases  (837)  (614)

    Insurance premiums  (426)  (262)

    Office supplies  (464)  (524)

    IT and communications expenses  (1,794)  (1,752)

    lighting, heating and other utilities  (2,925)  (559)

    Security services and armored transport  (179)  (190)

    Travel and entertainment expenses  (557)  (600)

    Court and notary expenses  (988)  (820)

    Fees for technical reports  (13,891)  (12,648)

    Fees for financial statement audit  (350)  (332)

    Securities rating fees  (43)  (39)

    SBIF fines  (55)  (20)

    Other regulatory fines  (186)  (42)

    Banking expenses  (363)  (99)

    Advisory expenses  (5,014)  (2,977)

    Building fees  (459)  (818)

    Postage and mail  (170)  (30)

    Other general administrative expenses  (11,184)  (9,370)

Subtotal  (46,779)  (37,907)

OutsOurced services:

    Data processing  (848)  (742)

    Other  (1,951)  (3,661)

Subtotal  (2,799)  (4,403)

Board of directors’ fees  (1,123)  (917)

Advertising  (5,836)  (3,855)

taxes, prOperty taxes and cOntributiOns:

    Property taxes  (181)  (337)

    Municipal business permits  (690)  (740)

    Other taxes  (49)  (107)

    Contribution to SBIF  (1,553)  (1,425)

Subtotal  (2,473)  (2,609)

Total  (59,010)  (49,691)
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32. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIzATION

A) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIzATION

Depreciation and amortization by type of asset charged to profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 

are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  (2,003)  (1,842)

Amortization of intangible assets  (13,198)  (4,951)

Total depreciation, amortization and impairment  (15,201)  (6,793)

33. IMPAIRMENT

•	 Investments	AvAIlAble	for	sAle

The Bank and its subsidiaries regularly test for objective evidence of impairment of their financial investments not carried 

at fair value through profit and loss.

The assets are impaired if there is objective evidence that shows that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition 

of the asset and the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset.

Objective evidence includes financial difficulty of the counterparty, breach of contractual clauses, granting of concessions 

or advantages that would not have been granted if the counterparty had not shown evidence of impairment, a measurable 

reduction in the asset’s estimated future cash flows and, in the case of financial investments, the disappearance of an active 

or liquid market. 

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, no impairment losses were recorded for investments available for sale.

•	 IntAngIble	Assets

Impairment testing indicated some intangible assets with expected losses. As a result, the Bank’s management recorded 

impairment of MCh$21,100 and MCh$1,557 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, as mentioned 

in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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34. OThER OPERATINg INCOME AND ExPENSES

A) OThER OPERATINg INCOME

Details of other operating income recorded in the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

DECEMbER 31, DE 
2015

 MCh$

Income from assets received in lieu of payment  21  13 

Release of contingency provisions  345  546 

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  666  883 

Rental payments received  181  71 

Recovery of written-off assets received in lieu of payment  84  -   

Recovery of expenses  1,933  2,726 

Other income  6,357  5,157 

Total other operating income  9,587  9,396 

b) OThER OPERATINg ExPENSES

Details of other operating expenses recorded in the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Provisions and expenses for assets received in lieu of payment  (392)  (1,932)

Contingency provisions (*)  (248)  (470)

Operating write-offs  (2,627)  (3,055)

Other expenses  (1,221)  (1,766)

Total other operating expenses  (4,488)  (7,223)

35. RElATED PARTy TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are defined as persons or entities having an interest either directly or through third parties in the ownership 

of the Bank and its subsidiaries that exceeds 1% of shares or 5% of publicly-traded shares, as well as persons without an 

ownership interest that have authority and responsibility in planning, management and control of the Bank’s activities 

and those of its subsidiaries. Companies in which one of the Bank’s related parties, related either through ownership or 

management, has a share greater than or equal to 5% or in which they exercise the role of director, CEO or its equivalent, 

are also considered to be related companies.

Article 89 of the Corporations law, which also applies to banks, provides that any transaction with a related party must take 

place under arm’s length conditions similar to those prevailing in the market.

Moreover, Article 84 of the General Banking law establishes limits on loans granted to related parties and prohibits the 

granting of loans to the Bank’s directors, managers and general representatives.

(*)   In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the concept other provisions consists of  provisions and expenses for assets received in lieu of payment and contingency 
provisions.
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A) RElATED PARTy lOANS 

The following table details loans and accounts receivable, contingent loans and assets related to trading and investment 
securities, corresponding to related entities.

PRODUCERS Of gOODS 
AND SERVICES

INVESTMENT 
COMPANIES INDIVIDUAlS TOTAl

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

LOans and receivabLes

    Commercial loans  25,225  33,424  71  84  1,986  2,521  27,282  36,029 

    Mortgage loans  -    -    -    -    7,277  7,165  7,277  7,165 

    Consumer loans  -    -    -    -    1,763  1,486  1,763  1,486 

Gross loans and receivables  25,225  33,424  71  84  11,026  11,172  36,322  44,680 

    Credit risk provisions  (196)  (59)  -    -    (65)  (54)  (261)  (113)

Net loans and receivables  25,029  33,365  71  84  10,961  11,118  36,061  44,567 

cOntingent LOans

    Total contingent loans  6,971  144,419  64  66  3,049  2,691  10,084  147,176 

    Contingent loan provisions  (19)  (67)  -    -    (7)  (8)  (26)  (75)

Net contingent loans  6,952  144,352  64  66  3,042  2,683  10,058  147,101 

investments

    held for trading  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

    Available for sale  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total investments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  31,981  177,717  135  150  14,003  13,801  46,119  191,668 

b) OThER ASSETS AND lIAbIlITIES WITh RElATED PARTIES

C) gAIN (lOSS) ON TRANSACTIONS WITh RElATED PARTIES

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

assets

    Financial derivative instruments  25,163  2,302 

Total other assets with related parties  25,163  2,302 

LiabiLities

    Financial derivative instruments  27,526  1,155 

    Demand deposits  23,858  23,218 

    Savings accounts and time deposits  405,334  442,496 

Total other liabilities with related parties  456,718  466,869 

gAIN (lOSS)

 DECEMbER 31, DE

2016
 MCh$

2015
 MCh$

Net interest and indexation income  287  299 

Net fee and commission income  1,301  1,032 

Net foreign exchange transactions  682  510 

Operating expenses  (32,305)  (32,214)

Other income and expenses  153  2,857 

Total loss from related party transactions  (29,882)  (27,516)
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D) RElATED PARTy CONTRACTS

These include any contract entered into during each year that does not involve habitual transactions within the Bank’s line 

of business with general customers and is for more than uF 3,000.

These contracts are as follows:

COMPANy DESCRIPTION

CREDITS TO PROfIT ChARgES TO PROfIT

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Capital S.A. (formerly Inversiones Invest Security ltda.) Service contract  -    133  13,472  13,407 

Travel Security S.A. Office lease and air tickets  675  -    2,593  1,160 

Seguros Vida Security Previsión S.A. Insurance  7,221  5,928  2,224  2,642 

Global Security Gestión y Servicios ltda.          Service contract  -    -    6,710  6,951 

Mandatos Security ltda. Service contract  -    -    3,159  3,577 

Inmobiliaria Security S.A. Service contract  -    -    -    -   

Asesorías Security S.A. Advisory services  -    -    343  388 

Redbanc S.A. Service contract  -    -    408  432 

Cía. de Seguros Generales Penta Security S.A. Service contract  230  1,221  278  354 

Transbank S.A. Service contract  5,444  5,661  2,923  2,974 

ENEl S.A. (formerly Chilectra S.A.) Sale of electric power  -    -    195  243 

Factoring Security ltda. Advisory services and leases  260  -    -    -   

Inmobiliaria Security Once Advisory services  -    -    -    86 

E) PAyMENTS TO bOARD Of DIRECTORS AND kEy MANAgEMENT PERSONNEl

In 2016 and 2015, the following payments were made to members of the Board and key management personnel and 

charged to profit or loss.

DIRECTORS CEOS DIVISION MANAgERS AREA MANAgERS

DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31, DECEMbER 31,

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

Short-term compensation  640  498  919  961  1,317  1,753  2,752  3,442 

Severance indemnities  -    -    -    -    -    860  527  1,320 

No. of executives  7  7  3  3  7  7  21  26 
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36. fAIR VAlUE Of fINANCIAl ASSETS AND lIAbIlITIES

A. fAIR VAlUE ASSETS AND lIAbIlITIES

The following table summarizes the fair values of the Bank’s main financial assets and liabilities, including those not 

recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position. The values shown in this note do not attempt to estimate the 

value of the Bank’s income-generating assets, nor forecast their future behavior. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the 

estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments are as follows:

CARRyINg AMOUNT ESTIMATED fAIR VAlUE

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

assets

    Cash and due from banks  441,177  561,624  441,177  561,624 

    Transactions pending settlement  32,185  41,092  32,185  41,092 

    Financial instruments held for trading  267,099  188,758  267,099  188,758 

    Receivables from repurchase agreements and securities borrowing  -    -    -    -   

    Financial derivative instruments  99,887  139,322  99,887  139,322 

    loans and advances to banks  238  713  237  709 

    loans to customers  4,381,443  3,981,083  4,617,570  4,130,088 

    Investments available for sale  610,695  421,023  610,695  421,023 

    Investments held to maturity  -    -    -   

LiabiLities

    Current accounts and other demand deposits  570,018  583,856  570,018  583,856 

    Transactions pending settlement  5,985  13,565  5,985  13,565 

    Payables from repurchase agreements and securities lending  27,008  34,492  27,012  34,540 

    Savings accounts and time deposits  3,051,820  2,717,668  3,056,486  2,719,471 

    Financial derivative instruments  83,006  138,969  83,006  138,969 

    Borrowings from financial institutions  158,757  228,156  161,325  228,691 

    Debt issued  1,571,273  1,344,873  1,649,670  1,432,339 

    Other financial liabilities  20,139  22,647  21,532  25,152 

The fair value of assets not recorded at that value in the statement of financial position is derived from estimated cash 

flows the Bank expects to receive, discounted using the relevant market interest rate for each type of transaction.

The fair value of liabilities without market quotes is based on discounted cash flows using the interest rate for similar 

maturity terms.

Therefore, the largest differences between the carrying amount and the fair value occur in more long-term assets 

(commercial loans) and liabilities (debt issued) and, inversely, short-term items present a smaller or no difference between 

these values (e.g. transactions pending settlement and cash).
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b. DETERMINATION Of fAIR VAlUE

The Bank uses the following criteria to calculate and classify the market value of financial instruments

•	 leVel	1:

 Observable prices in active markets for the specific type of instrument or transaction to be measured.

•	 leVel	2:	

 Valuation techniques based on observable factors. This category includes instruments valued using: Quoted prices 

for similar instruments, either in active or less active markets. Other valuation techniques, when all significant inputs 

are directly or indirectly observable based on market data.

•	 leVel	3:	

 Valuation techniques that use significant unobservable factors. This category includes all instruments where the 

valuation technique includes factors that are not based on observable data and the unobservable factors can have 

a significant effect on the valuation of the instrument. This category contains instruments that are valued based on 

quoted prices for similar instruments that require adjustments or significant unobservable assumptions to reflect 

the differences between them.

The valuation techniques employed are based on estimates of market factors using mathematical and statistical models 

widely used in financial literature, which are tested using backtesting.

All these techniques are based on policies reviewed by the corresponding committees and Boards at least once per year, 

or more frequently if the need arises.

 

level 3 includes price estimates for swaps with a yield curve based on the TAB rate (Chilean pesos and unidad de Fomento), 

since a yield curve is not observable in the market as a result of its illiquidity.

The same level includes options embedded in variable-rate mortgage loans that have a rate ceiling. Although they are part 

of a loan agreement that is accounted for on an accrual basis, the value of the option is estimated and recorded separately 

from the host contract in the trading book as per regulatory requirements, despite the fact that it is not a standalone 

financial instrument for which market prices exist.

Sensitivity to factors that determine the price of level 3 instruments is low.  For example, the sensitivity to a parallel 

movement of 1 basis point in the structure of TAB rates is estimated to be MCh$2.8 as of December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2016, the Bank has applied valuation techniques to determine the fair value of the financial instruments 

“BlAPO-F” and “BlAPO-G”.  For the la Polar bonds, that valuation (prepared by RiskAmerica) considers the rate from the 

date the debt was renegotiated, which gives a price close to zero given their maturity. If traded (complying with the 

minimum trade restriction of uF 500), the transaction price is included as the official price.
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The following table details the classification of financial instruments by level within the fair value hierarchy as of December 

31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

lEVEl 1 lEVEl 2 lEVEl 3 TOTAl

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

fINANCIAl ASSETS

financiaL instruments heLd fOr trading:

ChIlEAN GOVERNMENT AND CENTRAl BANk INSTRuMENTS 

    Chilean Central Bank instruments  42,670  1,535  27,488  19,295  -    -    70,158  20,830 

    Chilean Treasury instruments  41,609  595  17,516  85,210  -    -    59,125  85,805 

    Other government instruments  -    -    920  308  -    -    920  308 

Subtotal  84,279  2,130  45,924  104,813  -    -    130,203  106,943 

Other financiaL instruments

    Notes for deposits in domestic banks  2,648  5,475  94,678  49,150  -    -    97,326  54,625 

    Mortgage bonds in domestic banks  -    -    2,395  1,234  -    -    2,395  1,234 

    Bonds from domestic banks  10,507  5,824  20,437  18,229  -    -    30,944  24,053 

    Other instruments issued in Chile  1,435  15  3,819  134  -    -    5,254  149 

    Mutual funds  977  1,754  -    -    -    -    977  1,754 

Subtotal  15,567  13,068  121,329  68,747  -    -    136,896  81,815 

Total  99,846  15,198  167,253  173,560  -    -    267,099  188,758 

trading derivatives:

    Forward de monedas  14,095  28,361  14,008  39,287  -    -    28,103  67,648 

    Swap de tasa de interés  -    -    31,742  27,575  1,052  592  32,794  28,167 

    Swap de monedas  -    -    31,102  35,020  7,888  8,487  38,990  43,507 

Total assets for trading derivatives  14,095  28,361  76,852  101,882  8,940  9,079  99,887  139,322 

Total assets for financial derivatives  14,095  28,361  76,852  101,882  8,940  9,079  99,887  139,322 

investments avaiLabLe fOr saLe:

ChIlEAN GOVERNMENT AND CENTRAl BANk INSTRuMENTS 

    Chilean Central Bank instruments  199,800  -    94,085  116,710  -    -    293,885  116,710 

    Chilean Treasury instruments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Subtotal  199,800  -    94,085  116,710  -    -    293,885  116,710 

Other financiaL instruments

    Notes for deposits in domestic banks  2,327  -    15,909  10,792  -    -    18,236  10,792 

    Mortgage bonds in domestic banks  94  -    20,482  22,900  -    -    20,576  22,900 

    Bonds from domestic companies  11,117  -    108,190  86,464  -    -    119,307  86,464 

    Other instruments issued abroad  158,691  184,157  -    -    -    -    158,691  184,157 

Subtotal  172,229  184,157  144,581  120,156  -    -    316,810  304,313 

Total  372,029  184,157  238,666  236,866  -    -    610,695  421,023 

TOTAl FAIR VAluE ASSETS  485,970  227,716  482,771  512,308  8,940  9,079  977,681  749,103 

fINANCIAl lIAbIlITIES

trading derivatives:

    Currency forwards (15,309) (36,293)  (15,270) (41,039)  -    -    (30,579) (77,332)

    Interest rate swaps  -    -    (27,504) (24,593)  (1,056)  (880)  (28,560) (25,473)

    Currency swaps  -    -    (23,269) (35,807)  -    -    (23,269) (35,807)

    Interest rate put options  -    -    -    -    (9)  (11)  (9)  (11)

Total liabilities for trading derivatives (15,309) (36,293)  (66,043) (101,439)  (1,065)  (891)  (82,417) (138,623)

hedge accOunting derivatives:

    Interest rate swaps  -    -    (589)  (346)  -    -    (589)  (346)

Total liabilities for hedge accounting derivatives  -    -    (589)  (346)  -    -    (589)  (346)

Total liabilities for financial derivatives (15,309) (36,293)  (66,632) (101,785)  (1,065)  (891)  (83,006) (138,969)

TOTAl FAIR VAluE lIABIlITIES (15,309) (36,293)  (66,632) (101,785)  (1,065)  (891)  (83,006) (138,969)
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37. RISk MANAgEMENT

I. RISk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

II. RISk MANAGEMENT STRuCTuRE

III. CREDIT RISk

IV. FINANCIAl RISk

V. OPERATIONAl RISk

VI. RISk COMMITTEE

VII. CAPITAl REGulATORy REQuIREMENTS

I.  RISk MANAgEMENT ObJECTIVES

Banco Security considers risk management to be a vital component in guaranteeing business continuity, achieving necessary 

solvency and ensuring sustainable results. Its objective is to minimize losses from risk and optimize the risk-return ratio and 

growth (risk appetite) defined by senior management.

In order to achieve this, the Bank has put forth considerable effort to optimize risk management. Therefore, risk management 

is separated into three specific divisions by type of risk: Credit Risk, Financial Risk and Operational Risk. 

Through this structure, the Bank can properly and opportunely identify, measure, value and monitor all kinds of risk that 

Banco Security may incur. 

II.  RISk MANAgEMENT STRUCTURE

Risk management is carried out through three divisions that report to the Chief Executive Officer: The Risk Division (credit 

risk); the Planning and Control Division (financial risk) and the Compliance Division (operational risk), all of which operate 

independently from other business areas and serve as a counterbalance on the Bank’s various committees.

The Risk Division is structured as follows: Credit risk is conducted by the Commercial loan Approval Department, the Retail 

loan Approval Department, the loan Restructuring Department and the Risk Management Department, while the New 

Development and Management Control unit is in charge of bank-wide risk management issues and effective management 

of all risks.

The Financial Risk Department now reports to the Planning and Control Division. Financial risk was transferred to this 

division, which is also in charge of financial control and capital management, to take advantage of synergies that can be 

generated.

Finally, the Operational Risk unit is part of the Compliance Division. This structure helps create complete independence 

from possible sources of operational risk.
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The Bank’s risk division is structured as follows:

Chief exeCutive 
OffiCer

Planning 
and COntrOl 

divisiOn

COmPlianCe 
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risk 
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new develOPment 
and management 
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finanCial 
risk 

dePartment

COmmerCial 
lOan aPPrOval 

dePartment

retail lOan 
aPPrOval 

dePartment

lOan 
restruCturing 

dePartment

risk 
management 
dePartment

OPeratiOnal 
risk 
unit

Another important component of this structure is the Office of the Controller, which is responsible for regularly and 
independently evaluating whether the defined risk policies enable effective management and meet regulatory requirements. 
It is also responsible for conducting audits to verify compliance.  The conclusions of these audits are analyzed by the Audit 
Committee and included in a written report submitted to the Bank’s CEO and the area managers involved in the review. The 
reports provide conclusions from the evaluation and a work plan for resolving the observations made.
 

AREA DESCRIPTIONS:

1) CREDIT RISK:

RETAIl lOAN APPROVAl DEPARTMENT
The Retail loan Approval Department participates in the first three stages of the loan process in the retail segment. Its main 
responsibilities include making loan decisions as part of the different levels of loan committees and defining their lending 
authority levels. This department also plays a key role in establishing credit policies..

COMMERCIAl lOAN APPROVAl DEPARTMENT
This is the largest department within the Risk Division. It is further subdivided into units that are responsible for analyzing 
and making loan decisions for three separate segments: Medium-sized companies; large companies and institutional 
customers. 

Each unit participates in the first two stages of the process for its specific segment, focusing particular effort on the second 
stage of analyzing and assessing customers. Its main function is to prepare the different types of financial analyses on 
customers depending on their size, complexity and amount. These analyses are adapted to the needs of the sales areas 
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in terms of depth and response time in order to keep the Bank competitive in the market. They are also responsible for 
preparing sector reports, optimum sector portfolio analyses and country risk studies (Financial Analysis unit).

The Commercial loan Approval Manager and the Deputy Risk Manager for Medium-sized Companies also have decision-
making authority on the different committees on which they sit. They can also participate in the drafting of credit risk 
policies and processes. 

lOAN RESTRuCTuRING DEPARTMENT
This department is responsible for recovering loans with payment problems. Its skilled staff is supported by lawyers and 
collection companies in order to properly carry out its work. This department is also in charge of managing assets received 
by the Bank in lieu of payment.

It is subdivided into three areas: One in charge of retail banking collections, another for commercial banking collections and 
the third to manage assets received in lieu of payment.
 
CREDIT RISk MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
This department is in charge of managing, monitoring and controlling credit risk, as well as preparing business intelligence 
and credit risk models. 

Its main responsibility involves provisions, appraisals and monitoring lines of credit. 

The department, which is responsible for monitoring and controlling risk, is charged with reviewing proper compliance with 
policies and procedures, as well as the evolution and monitoring of the portfolio from a risk perspective, issuing warnings 
when necessary.

It also fulfills a business intelligence role where it defines risk tolerance (appetite), actively participating in defining the target 
market, generating the optimal portfolio and acting as a counterweight for intelligence areas from the sales areas. lastly, it 
is responsible for generating all reports on portfolios and trends regarding products, provisions, returns, segmentation, etc. 
It is, therefore, the Bank’s main supplier of credit risk information for the Risk Division, as well as other areas. 

The Modeling Area is in charge of building statistical models for managing credit risk, for regulatory purposes as well as 
provisioning, loan approval and collection processes. The main responsibilities of this department include:

•	 Building risk models
•	 Managing the “risk laboratory” data repository
•	 Risk management

In 2016, the Bank created the Credit Monitoring and Control unit, which reports to the Risk Management Division. This 
unit is charged with ensuring that models function properly, setting guidelines for corrections (if necessary), guaranteeing 
compliance with standards and policies and reporting to the Modeling and Risk Committee on the performance of models.

This department also collaborates with credit risk management efforts by providing information to departments regarding 
risk policies, loan approval, monitoring, intelligence and collections.

NEW DEVElOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT CONTROl uNIT
This unit is responsible for supporting all risk management departments, keeping comprehensive control of risks to the Bank 
and managing projects for the credit risk division, including regulatory initiatives. It is also charged with centralizing risk 
policies and standards, training division employees and monitoring goals.
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2) FINANCIAL RISK:

FINANCIAl RISk DEPARTMENT
Department in charge of ensuring financial risk is effectively managed, which is staffed by nine employees. Further 
information on its functions is available in section IV.

3) OPERATIONAL RISK:

OPERATIONAl RISk uNIT
unit in charge of ensuring operational risk, business continuity and information security are effectively managed, which is 
staffed by nine employees. Further information on its functions is available in section V.

III.  CREDIT RISk

A.  CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT OBjECTIVES

The Risk Division is responsible for managing credit risk through the Credit Risk Area. The objective of this area is to 
complete the six-stage loan approval process: Target market; analysis and assessment; decision; management; monitoring 
and control; and collections.

The above must be carried out in accordance with the risk tolerance (appetite) defined by senior management.

B.  CREDIT RISK STRUCTURE

The Credit Risk Area has numerous departments that participate throughout the entire loan approval process, supporting 
the Bank’s sales areas at all times and acting as an independent counterweight during the loan decision-making process.

This area is made up of:

•	 Commercial loan Approval Department
•	 Retail loan Approval Department
•	 Risk Management
•	 loan Restructuring Department

C.  CREDIT RISK PROCESS

The following chart details the six stages of the loan approval process and the departments that participate in each stage.

lOAN APPROVAl PROCESS COMMERCIAl bANkINg RETAIl bANkINg

Target Market

Commercial loan Approval Department Retail loan Approval DepartmentCredit Analysis and Assessment

loan Decision

Credit Management
Risk Management Department

Credit Monitoring and Control

Collections loan Restructuring Department
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C.1  CREDIT RISK STAGES

1. TARGET MARkET:

Although the Bank’s senior management is responsible for defining the target market, this decision is based on a proposal 

prepared jointly by the sales and risk areas after having analyzed the opportunities available in the market and the risks of 

the different segments. This proposal is contained in the Bank’s Credit Risk Policy Manual.

2. CREDIT ANAlySIS AND ASSESSMENT:

The tools used to analyze and assess a customer depend on the customer’s market. For example, a scoring system is used 

in retail banking (individuals and companies), while a case-by-case analysis prepared by a credit risk expert is utilized in 

commercial banking.

3. lOAN DECISION:

The credit risk area acts as a counterweight in the loan decision process in all committees on which it sits. It also defines 

the approval limits for commercial areas and may intervene, if risk standards are surpassed at any time.

There are mainly two types of committees, separated by the way they operate: Circulating folder or meeting. In the first 

case, which involves smaller amounts, a folder is passed from one level to the next until it reaches the required level. In 

the second case, for larger amounts, a meeting is held where an account executive presents the loan to members of the 

committee for their approval. Meeting committees are also divided by amount.

Of these loan committees, the most important is the Board Credit Committee, which includes two directors, two advisors 

to the Board, the Bank’s CEO, the Risk Division Manager and the Commercial loan Approval Manager. This committee 

analyzes the most important loans, assessing close to 70% of loans in terms of amount and 5% in terms of number of 

customers.

4. CREDIT MANAGEMENT:

This area works to ensure proper customer classification, which begins with executives, followed by reclassifications made 

mainly by the Monitoring and Control Department, committees and the loan Restructuring Department, and ends with 

the Reclassification Committee. The latter executes and carries out the classification and provisioning process, in order to 

ensure the Bank is operating correctly and to reflect the reality of its portfolio.

It also works with sales areas to keep the number of expired and/or overdrawn lines of credit within expected parameters, 

and it maintains strict control of appraisals of assets provided to guarantee loans.

5. COllECTIONS:

In this stage, the specialized loan Restructuring Department performs a variety of activities to collect on loans, including 

out-of-court and court collections.

6. MONITORING AND CONTROl:

This stage aims to maintain an overall vision of how the above-mentioned loan processes are functioning. Its involvement 

includes reviewing and auditing current credit policies, monitoring the performance of the analysis areas and committees, 

and properly managing credit.
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It relies on various sources of information to fulfill its duties, including reports provided by the Credit Risk Intelligence Area 

and information on portfolio behavior. It uses this information to strictly monitor and control the Bank’s portfolio and, as 

a result, it is the area that proposes most of the potential customer reclassifications.

D.  RISK RATING AND PROVISIONS:

Risk rating and assessments for provisioning purposes depend on customer and product type. Customers can be rated 
individually or as a group, as detailed below:

INDIVIDUAl RATINg gROUP RATINg

CUSTOMER TyPE METhODOlOgy CUSTOMER TyPE METhODOlOgy

Companies (includes individuals with 
business accounts)

Commercial matrix and business 
rules

Individuals with commercial loans Guidelines

Real estate Manual Small businesses Guidelines/Matrix

OThER
- Banks
- Restructuring of retail and 
  commercial loans
- Non-profit
- Special group leasing

Manual

holding Companies Guidelines/Matrix

Residential mortgage loans Model

Consumer loans Internal model

D.1  RATING INDIVIDUAL CUSTOMERS:

This group includes all customers (individuals or legal entities) that the Bank needs to understand and analyze in detail 

because of their size, complexity or exposure level.

As a result, Banco Security individually rates all entities with annual sales over MCh$1,000 and debt over MCh$200, as well 

as real estate projects, institutional companies, non-profit organizations and bankrupt entities, among others.

D.2  RATING GROUP LOANS:

Group assessments are used for customers that tend to behave similarly. Thus, they are assessed using methodologies and 

models to analyze operations related to the same product, based on customer type, as indicated below:

1. COMMERCIAl PRODuCTS:

 a. Individuals

 b. Restructuring of retail loans

 c. Small businesses

 d. Investment companies

2. CONSuMER PRODuCTS:

 a. Individuals

3. MORTGAGE PRODuCTS:

 a. Individuals
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D.3  DISTRIBUTION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO:

The Bank’s portfolio is distributed as follows, based on the type of risk assessment used (i.e. group or individual):

ASSESSMENT BY CUSTOMER TYPE
N° OF CUSTOMERS
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Individually rated loans are distributed by category (normal, substandard and default) using the following criteria:

DISTRIBUTION OF INDIVIDUALLY RATED
LOANS
AMOUNT OF LOANS, MCH$

’16

2,715,446

924,092

143,457

’15

NORMAL SUBSTANDARD DEFAULT

2,652,847

692,928

127,140

DISTRIBUTION OF INDIVIDUALLY RATED 
LOANS
NUMER OF INDIVIDUAL CUSTOMERS, DEC 2015-2016

’16

8,480

1,417

841

’15

NORMAL SUBSTANDARD DEFAULT

8,563

1,137

695

IV.  fINANCIAl RISk

A.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBjECTIVES

For the organization, financial activities are defined as all transactions that are closed by the Bank and its subsidiaries 
Valores Security and Administradora General de Fondos, either on their own account or on behalf of third parties.
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In general, financial transactions include operations involving foreign currency, loans, financing instruments, fixed-income 

instruments, derivatives and equities.

The strategic objectives of financial activities include:

•	 Strengthening and expanding the Bank’s position, consolidating and developing long-term relationships with 

counterparties and providing a full range of investment banking products.

•	 Improving	and	ensuring	the	stability	of	long-term	returns	and	effectively	managing	the	different	potential	risks.

Financial activities are limited to previously-approved strategic product areas and will only be carried out within the overall 

risk guidelines defined by the Bank’s Board of Directors.

In managing the portfolio of financial investments, the organization will actively manage positions based on an ongoing 

analysis of economic and financial conditions.  Therefore, positions in financial instruments will be in line with the consensus 

for the macroeconomic outlook. however, short-term trading positions can also be taken to capitalize on a one-time 

misalignment of a market variable.

In order to achieve the objectives established in the Bank’s investment strategies, a broad range of currencies and products 

can be traded, always in accordance with current applicable regulations. 

The Bank is primarily engaged in trades of non-derivative fixed-income financial instruments, interbank funding, transactions 

with repo agreements, foreign currency spot sales and purchases, currency and interest rate derivatives (forwards and 

swaps), equities and simultaneous operations.

Treasury products can be geared towards different objectives, such as profiting from short or medium-term variations in 

market factors, making returns by generating spreads with respect to the financing rate of positions, leveraging maturity 

mismatches and slopes of interest rate structures or exchange rate differentials, engaging in economic and/or accounting 

hedges and distributing treasury products through the Bank’s sales network.

Derivatives are particularly used to hedge risks, to arbitrate some market or to take certain proprietary positions. 

hedge management using derivatives can use economic or accounting hedges, depending on the strategy defined.

Strategies with derivatives with accounting hedges can be used to hedge cash flows or the fair value of any item in the 

statement of financial position or expected transaction that generates risk or volatility in profit or loss, in compliance with 

international accounting standards.  These strategies must meet all requirements included in current regulations and their 

effectiveness is reviewed at least monthly for each hedge.

Risk management and control take place through policies, procedures, methodologies and limits, which create value for 

shareholders and the market in general, guaranteeing adequate solvency levels.

These internal limits, defined by portfolio type, maturity mismatches, currency and instrument type, allow the Bank to 

control risk levels and diversify investment portfolios. 

The Bank’s policies also allow it to require guarantees under certain circumstances, mainly for derivative transactions, in 

order to mitigate credit risk.
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B.  FINANCIAL RISK STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors is responsible for approving risk management policies, limits and structures for the Bank and its 

subsidiaries.  To accomplish this, it has set up several committees to monitor compliance with defined policies and limits.  

These committees are made up of directors and executives and provide the Board with regular reports on risk exposure. 

The following committees currently analyze matters related to financial risk:

•	 Finance Committee: Controls and manages financial investments from a short and medium-term trading perspective 

and the risks associated with these portfolios.

•	 Asset	and	Liability	Committee:	Controls	and	manages	the	risk	of	mismatches	 in	assets	and	 liabilities	 in	order	to	

stabilize and protect and control the Bank’s financial margin and economic value.  It also monitors liquidity gaps, 

diversification of funding sources, highly-liquid assets and risk-adjusted capital limits (solvency).

The objective of the Bank’s financial risk management policies is to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, set 

concentration limits and put ongoing controls in place to monitor compliance.

The committees regularly revise these policies in order to incorporate changes in market conditions and the Bank’s activities.  

Once revised, the changes are submitted to the Board for its approval.

The Financial Risk Department, which reports to the Planning and Control Division, is charged with monitoring and 

controlling risks and is independent from the business areas that take and manage the risks.

This department is specifically responsible for:

•	 Centralizing efforts to control and measure the different risks affecting the Bank and its subsidiaries by applying 

uniform policies and controls.  

  

•	 Ensuring	 that	 risk	managers,	 senior	management	 and	 the	 Board	 of	Directors	 are	 kept	 informed	 of	 key	matters	

regarding market and liquidity risk.

•	 Ensuring	that	recommendations	from	regulators	and	internal	auditors	are	followed	and	appropriately	implemented.

•	 Reporting	and	monitoring	market	and	liquidity	risk	and	limit	compliance	on	a	daily	basis.

•	 Developing	and	reviewing	the	effectiveness	of	methods	and	procedures	for	measuring	risk.		

Risk is measured and controlled on a daily basis using risk reports used by senior management to make decisions.  These 

reports include VaR measurements and rate sensitivity for both the investment portfolio and the banking book as a whole, 

risk exposure by portfolio, instrument, risk factors and concentration and compliance with internal limits.  

C.  FINANCIAL RISK PROCESS

Risk measurements are based on automated systems used to monitor and control the risk to which the Bank and its 

subsidiaries are exposed on a daily basis, thus allowing for proper decision-making.
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The Treasury is in charge of taking positions and risks within the limits defined by senior management.  It is responsible for 

managing financial risks arising from positions in investment books, from structural asset/liability mismatches and from 

managing liquidity gaps and also for adequately funding operations.

The Internal Audit Department regularly assesses risk processes.  The general risk structure is continuously being evaluated 

by the SBIF, the Bank’s independent auditors, and other external entities.

D.  DEFINITION OF FINANCIAL RISKS

A)  MARkET RISk

Market risk represents the potential loss that can result from changes in market prices over a certain period of time as a 

result of movements in interest rates, foreign currencies, indexation indices and stock prices.  These losses affect the value 

of financial instruments held for trading and available for sale, both for the Bank and its subsidiaries.

MARkET RISk METhODOlOGy  

Market risk is measured using the Value at Risk (VaR) methodology, which allows the different risks and types of operations 

to be standardized, modeling the collective relationship of these factors in a single risk measurement.

VaR provides an estimate of the maximum potential loss from treasury positions of financial assets or liabilities in the event 

of an adverse, yet normal, scenario.

The methodology used to calculate VaR is a parametric technique that assumes that the price returns on investments 

follow a normal distribution using a threshold of 95% confidence, a maintenance horizon of 1 day and a historical data 

sample of 250 days adjusted using statistical techniques to assign greater weight to more recent developments, in order to 

quickly capture increases in market volatilities.

The assumptions on which the model is based have some limitations, including:

•	 A maintenance period of one day assumes that the positions can be covered or disposed of within that period.  

however, investment portfolios held for trading are comprised of highly-liquid instruments. 

•	 A	confidence	level	of	95%	does	not	reflect	the	losses	that	could	occur	in	the	remaining	5%	of	the	distribution.

•	 Value	at	risk	is	calculated	using	end-of-day	positions	and	does	not	reflect	the	exposure	that	could	arise	during	the	

trading day.

•	 The	 use	 of	 historical	 information	 to	 determine	 possible	 ranges	 of	 future	 outcomes	may	 not	 cover	 all	 possible	

scenarios, especially exceptional circumstances.

•	 Market	price	returns	of	financial	instruments	can	present	abnormal	probability	distributions.
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The limitations of the assumptions used by the VaR model are minimized using nominal limits for investment concentration 
and sensitivity to specific risk factors.

The reliability of the VaR methodology used is verified using backtesting, which is contrasted with the actual results 
obtained to determine whether they are consistent with the methodological assumptions within the given confidence 
levels.  Ongoing monitoring of these tests allows the Bank to confirm the validity of the assumptions and hypothesis used 
in the model.

Control of financial risk is complemented with specific simulation exercises and stress testing to analyze different financial 
crises that have occurred in the past and the effect they may have on current investment portfolios.

These risks are monitored on a daily basis. Risk levels incurred and compliance with limits established for each unit are 
reported to risk managers and senior management.

Banco Security and its subsidiaries measure and limit Value at Risk in their investment portfolios (trading and available for 
sale) by risk factor, interest rates, currencies, instrument type and portfolio type.

Details of the market risks of the different investment portfolios by type of risk are as follows:

VAR by TyPE Of RISk

DECEMbER 31,  
 2016
 MCh$

DECEMbER 31,  
2015

 MCh$

trading:

   Fixed income  308  139 

   Derivatives (excl. options)  141  394 

   Embedded options  1  1 

   FX  49  53 

   Equities  21  -   

   Diversification effect  (216)  (11)

Total portfolio  305  576 

avaiLabLe fOr saLe:

    Interest rate  556  394 

Total portfolio  556  394 

   Total diversification  (360)  (260)

Total VaR  716  721 

B)  STRuCTuRAl INTEREST RATE RISk

This risk stems mainly from commercial activity (commercial loans v/s deposits), caused by the effects of variations in 
interest rates and/or the slopes of interest rate curves to which assets and liabilities are indexed.  When these show 
temporary repricing or maturity gaps, they can impact the stability of results (financial margin) and solvency levels 
(economic value of equity).

To do this, the Bank establishes internal limits using sensitivity techniques for interest rate structures.  The Bank also uses 
stress testing to evaluate the sensitivity of interest rates, currency repricing, changes in stock prices, changes in underlying 
assets for options and changes in commissions that may be sensitive to interest rates.  This stress testing enables the Bank 
to measure and control the impact of sudden movements in the different risk factors that affect its solvency ratio, the 
financial margin and the economic value of equity.
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Compliance with limits established by the Bank, in accordance with the definitions established by the Chilean Central 

Bank in Chapter III.B.2 of the Compendium of Financial Standards, is also monitored on a daily basis.  The Bank also files a 

weekly report with the SBIF on the risk positions of the investment portfolio within the trading book and limit compliance. 

It also files a monthly report with the SBIF on the consolidated positions at risk (including subsidiaries) for the trading book 

and individually for the banking book, which includes sensitivity to market risk in the available-for-sale portfolio and the 

commercial book.

In accordance with the methodology defined in Chapter III.B.2 of the Compendium of Financial Standards of the Chilean 

Central Bank, market risk is as follows:

MARkET RISk TRADINg bOOk

DECEMbER 31,  
2016

 MCh$

DECEMbER 31,  
2015

 MCh$

market risk

    Interest rate risk  12,019  20,592 

    Currency risk  1,603  1,498 

    Options risk  11  7 

Total risk  13,633  22,097 

Consolidated risk-weighted assets  5,020,480  4,704,745 

Regulatory capital (RC)  663,763  569,288 

Basel limit 8.00% 8.00%

Basel with market risk 12.70% 11.43%

Basel I 13.22% 12.10%

MARkET RISk bANkINg bOOk

DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

DECEMbER 31,
 2015
 MCh$

shOrt-term

    Interest rate risk (short-term)  11,435  12,238 

    uF mismatch  4,694  3,952 

    Sensitive commissions  61  59 

Total risk  16,190  16,249 

limit 35% margin (Board)  51,500  51,428 

Clearance/(excess) (Board)  35,310  35,179 

LOng-term

    Interest rate risk  49,180  54,787 

limit 25% RC (Board)  165,138  142,322 

Clearance/(excess) (Board)  115,958  87,535 

C)  lIQuIDITy RISk  

liquidity risk represents the possibility of not fulfilling obligations when they mature as a result of the inability to liquidate 

assets or obtain funds, or not being able to dispose of them easily or offset exposure without significantly reducing prices 

due to insufficient market depth.
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The following concepts are involved with liquidity risk.

•	 Maturity risk: The risk arising from having cash inflows and outflows with different maturity dates.

•	 Collection	risk:	The	risk	of	being	unable	to	collect	any	cash	inflow	as	a	result	of	stoppage	of	payment,	default	or	delay.	

•	 Funding	risk:	The	risk	of	being	unable	to	raise	market	funds,	either	in	the	form	of	debt	or	capital,	or	only	being	able	

to do so by substantially raising the cost of funds, thus affecting the financial margin.

•	 Concentration	risk:	The	risk	from	concentrating	funding	or	revenue	sources	in	a	few	counterparties	that	may	bring	

about an abrupt change in the matching structure.

•	 Market	liquidity	risk:	This	risk	is	linked	to	certain	products	or	markets	and	arises	from	not	being	able	to	close	or	sell	

a particular position at the last quoted market price (or a similar price) due to low liquidity.

lIQuIDITy RISk METhODOlOGy

The methodologies used to control liquidity are the liquidity gap, which considers probable behavior scenarios for assets 

and liabilities, stress testing, liability concentration limits and early warning indicators.

The liquidity gap provides information regarding contractual cash inflows and outflows (i.e. those that will occur at a given 

future time according to asset and liability contracts).  For items without contractual maturities, simulations are created 

based on statistical studies to infer maturity behavior.

Based on these scenarios, assumptions for normal operating conditions are established. These omit items (mainly assets) 

that create a set of conservative liquidity management conditions from daily management. They are limited through 

minimum mismatching margins per control segment defined on a weekly and monthly basis over a horizon of one year.

This is supplemented by special procedures to face a liquidity crisis and early warning indicators that can identify any 

potential risk.

A series of ratios and funding concentration limits by creditor and maturity are also controlled. This enables the Bank to 

keep its funding sources organized and diversified.

The Bank uses the contractual maturity methodology to comply with the regulatory liquidity limits established in Chapter 

III.B.2.1 of the Chilean Central Bank’s Compendium of Financial Standards and Chapter 12-20 of the SBIF’s updated 

Compilation of Standards.

Mismatches and compliance with consolidated regulatory limits by the Bank and its subsidiaries are reported to the SBIF 

every three days.



pAGE

133

Details of regulatory liquidity gaps as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, in all currencies presented in MCh$, are as follows.

< 1 MONTh 1 - 3 MONThS 3 MONThS - 1 yEAR 1 - 3 yEARS 3 - 6 yEARS > 6 yEARS TOTAl

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Available funds  470,748  585,596  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    470,748  585,596 

Financial investments  873,081  605,397  24  6,195  1,491  4,643  4,991  -    -    -    -    -    879,587  616,235 

loans to other domestic banks  -    -    238  -    -    411  -    -    -    -    -    -    238  411 

Commercial and consumer loans  371,567  366,036  420,753  413,179 1,143,185  986,457  892,705  809,836  726,125  628,952  755,029  619,362 4,309,364 3,823,822 

lines of credit and overdrafts  213,315  55,804  409,447  62,723  569,301  202,119  -    -    -    -    -    608 1,192,063  321,254 

Residential mortgage loans  4,360  4,164  7,892  7,619  35,767  34,461  94,462  91,049  136,887  132,523  515,854  510,560  795,222  780,376 

Other assets  102,192  94,673  2  1  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    102,194  94,674 

Derivative contracts  103,593  123,496  50,809  114,291  93,081  160,958  72,616  253,940  109,237  178,755  36,211  39,512  465,547  870,952 

2,138,856 1,835,166  889,165  604,008 1,842,825 1,389,049 1,064,774 1,154,825  972,249  940,230 1,307,094 1,170,042 8,214,963 7,093,320 

Current accounts and other demand 
deposits  575,597  588,504  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    575,597  588,504 

Domestic interbank loans  5  510  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    5  510 

Savings accounts and time deposits  638,197  716,033 1,134,088  975,490 1,209,718 1,035,938  111,851  22,726  208  202  -    -   3,094,062 2,750,389 

External funding  22,315  51,649  34,480  49,249  56,459  109,820  35,069  556  14,126  17,811  -    -    162,449  229,085 

letters of credit  804  860  319  371  2,921  3,452  6,635  7,883  8,110  9,164  11,374  13,703  30,163  35,433 

Bonds  9,956  8,124  7,108  6,082  170,256  137,545  411,076  311,657  512,699  394,672  750,269  749,193 1,861,364 1,607,273 

lines of credit and overdrafts  216,316  50,659  416,171  52,859  567,067  154,570  -    -    -    -    -    568 1,199,554  258,656 

Other liabilities  144,661  110,330  4,239  865  5,122  3,373  7,080  7,263  3,853  7,125  1,535  705  166,490  129,661 

Derivative instruments  106,974  122,986  52,813  113,731  94,475  169,791  65,901  172,107  99,446  122,925  27,953  36,129  447,562  737,669 

1,714,825 1,649,655 1,649,218 1,198,647 2,106,018 1,614,489  637,612  522,192  638,442  551,899  791,131  800,298 7,537,246 6,337,180 

Net cash flow  424,031  185,511 (760,053) (594,639) (263,193) (225,440)  427,162  632,633  333,807  388,331  515,963  369,744  677,717  756,140 

Accumulated net cash flow  424,031  185,511 (336,022) (409,128) (599,215) (634,568) (172,053)  (1,935)  161,754  386,396  677,717  756,140 1,355,434 1,512,280 

Regulatory limit (461,686) (408,250) (923,372) (816,500)

Clearance / (excess) (885,717) (593,761) (587,350) (407,372)

Regulatory liquidity gap as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, in foreign currency presented in MCh$.

< 1 MONTh 1 - 3 MONThS 3 MONThS - 1 yEAR 1 - 3 yEARS 3 - 6 yEARS > 6 yEARS TOTAl

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Available funds  211,395  264,025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    211,395  264,025 

Financial Investments  164,570  182,981  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    164,570  182,981 

Commercial and consumer loans  54,761  105,073  77,268  76,940  125,380  142,451  96,416  87,879  78,472  67,811  127,903  91,738  560,200  571,892 

lines of credit and overdrafts  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other assets  15,878  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    15,878  -   

Derivative contracts  60,989  77,882  25,794  48,014  57,442  78,851  37,167  88,429  54,250  51,113  22,590  22,051  258,232  366,340 

 507,593  629,961  103,062  124,954  182,822  221,302  133,583 176,308  132,722 118,924  150,493  113,789 1,210,275 1,385,238 

Current accounts and other demand deposits  103,828  111,202  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    103,828  111,202 

Domestic interbank loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Savings accounts and time deposits  124,906  140,235  228,433  251,693  52,662  57,970  7  -    -    -    -    -    406,008  449,898 

External funding  22,315  51,649  34,480  49,249  56,459  109,820  35,069  556  14,126  17,811  -    -    162,449  229,085 

Other liabilities  18,598  5,670  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    18,598  5,670 

Derivative instruments  93,809  72,877  36,643  66,046  36,302  64,899  25,112  28,270  44,119  45,793  20,176  22,628  256,161  300,513 

 363,456  381,633  299,556  366,988  145,423  232,689  60,188  28,826  58,245  63,604  20,176  22,628  947,044 1,096,368 

Net cash flow  144,137  248,328 (196,494) (242,034)  37,399 (11,387)  73,395  147,482  74,477  55,320  130,317  91,161  263,231  288,870 

Accumulated net cash flow  144,137  248,328  (52,357)  6,294 (14,958)  (5,093)  58,437  142,389  132,914  197,709  263,231  288,870  526,462  577,741 

Regulatory limit  144,137  248,328 

Clearance / (excess)



pAGE

134

06 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To supplement these gap analyses, several ratios are monitored to control the amount of liquid assets that back net 

cash outflows over a 30-day horizon under stress scenarios, as well as ratios that allow the Bank to ensure an adequate 

relationship between stable or long-term funding and long-term funding needs.

 

hEDGE ACCOuNTING

The Bank hedges assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position using derivatives in order to minimize the effects 

on profit or loss of possible movements in their market value or estimated cash flows.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Bank formally documents the relationship between hedging instruments 

and the hedged item, as well as the hedge’s strategies and objectives and the methodologies for testing its effectiveness.  

The effectiveness of the hedge relationship is tested using prospective and retrospective evaluations. The hedge is deemed 

highly effective if the results of the tests are between 80% and 125%.

As of December 31, 2016, the Bank has five accounting hedges under the same strategy of hedging the volatility of the fair 

value of commercial loans as a result of variations in the base interest rate in uF.  This hedge seeks to modify the effective 

cost of loans from a fixed to a variable interest rate.  The hedge object is an interest rate swap for which the liability is a 

fixed rate in uF and the asset is a daily variable rate in uF (TRA).

hEDgE 

hedge type Fair value

hedged object Assets at fixed rate in uF

Derivative Interest rate swaps in uF

Purpose  Reduce fair value risk 

Maturity 25-06-2028

Retrospective effectiveness 100.0%

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

These derivatives can be embedded in another contractual agreement (or host contract) and, therefore, are accounted for at 

market price separately from the host contract when it is not recorded at fair value since the characteristics and economic 

risks of the embedded derivative are not related to the characteristics and economic risks of the host contract.

Currently, the Bank carries at fair value through profit and loss embedded derivatives arising from variable rate mortgage 

loans that incorporate a fixed rate after a certain amount of time or a rate ceiling used by customers to obtain an option 

in their favor. These will generate negative effects for the Bank when market rates are above the rate ceiling on these loans.  

This effect is determined on a daily basis using sophisticated methodologies to evaluate options, and the change in fair 

value is treated as profit or loss for the year (increases in the theoretical value of that derivative are a loss for the Bank).

 

Relevant data on these embedded derivatives are as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2016

 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 31, 
2015

 MCh$

Balance MuF mortgage portfolio  115  150 

Rate ceiling (average) 6.9% 6.9%

Option value MCh$  9  11 
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V.  OPERATIONAl RISk

A. DEFINITION

The Bank and its subsidiaries define operational risk as the risk of losses resulting from inadequate or faulty processes, staff 

and internal systems, or due to external incidents. This definition includes legal risks but excludes strategic and reputation 

risks.

Furthermore, loss (write-off) is defined as negative financial effects on the physical, financial or intangible assets of the 

Bank and its subsidiaries caused by events related to an operational risk. If this event does not generate negative financial 

effects, it will not be considered an incident.

B. MAIN OBjECTIVES AND PRINCIPLES 

The objective of operational risk management is to define a framework for managing operational risk in Banco Security and 

its subsidiaries. This includes establishing principles for identifying, assessing, controlling and mitigating such risk in order 

to reduce losses from operational risk, thus complying with corporate objectives and providing a suitable level of exposure 

to operational risk. 

The following principles govern the operational risk management efforts of Banco Security and its subsidiaries:

•	 Operational risk is defined as a category apart from traditional banking risks and requires proactive management to 

identify, assess, control and mitigate such risk.

•	 A	clear	definition	of	operational	risk	must	exist	and	it	must	be	classified	based	on	the	guidelines	established	in	the	

Basel capital agreements.

•	 A	strategy	must	be	defined	for	operational	risk	management	that	responds	to	the	relative	importance	and	volume	

of transactions at the Bank and its subsidiaries.

•	 The	Board	of	Directors	and	senior	management	serve	an	important	role	in	approving	and	supervising	compliance	

with the operational risk management policy and strategy.

•	 Specific	definitions	must	exist	for	operational	loss	and	tolerance	levels	set	by	the	Bank	and	its	subsidiaries.

•	 An	individual	with	an	independent,	specific	position	should	be	in	charge	of	the	operational	risk	function.

•	 Consistency	with	current	regulations	and	best	practices	in	its	regard.

C. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

The operational risk management strategy, carried out by the Operational Risk unit, must be consistent with the volume 

and complexity of the activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries. To accomplish this, it defines lines of action for operational 

risk management in the following areas: Products or processes, suppliers, business continuity and information security. 

These lines are implemented throughout the Bank and its subsidiaries.
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The strategy must set a tolerance level for operational risk assumed by the Bank and its subsidiaries that enables it to 

manage mitigation efforts and monitor risks with exposure greater than or equal to this set tolerance. The strategy must 

be implemented throughout the entire Bank and its subsidiaries, which means that all levels of personnel must understand 

and accept their responsibilities regarding the management of this risk.

At a minimum, the strategy should address the following areas: yearly planning, operational risk models and methodologies 

and a tool for consolidating all operational risks for the Bank and its subsidiaries.

D. OPERATIONAL RISK STRUCTURE

The Operational Risk Control unit reports to the Bank’s Compliance and Operational Risk Division, which reports directly 

to the Risk Division Manager.

In accordance with the operational risk policy approved by the Board of Directors, risk management is carried out by the 

individuals responsible for processes and those who execute them, who are the main risk managers; by the operational risk 

area, which is in charge of managing and monitoring operational risk; by the Board of Directors and the Operational Risk 

Committee, which is responsible for ensuring that the Bank’s operational risk management framework is in line with defined 

objectives and best practices, and that the necessary conditions exist (trained personnel, organizational structure, budget) 

to implement this framework.

E. OPERATIONAL RISK

In order to properly manage risk and comply with the objectives defined by the Bank in its Operational Risk Policy, a series 

of activities have been developed and are described below: 

The Operational Risk Management Framework is based on three basic pillars:

•	 CULTURE:

 Raising awareness of the importance of operational risk management across the entire organization at all levels.

•	 QUALITATIVE MANAGEMENT: 

 Managing by detecting present and potential risks in order to manage them effectively (i.e. avoiding, transferring, 

mitigating or accepting these risks).  Qualitative management is based on the following activities:

 -  Database of losses and incidents

 - Identification and self-assessment of operational risks

 - key risk indicators

 - Critical supplier reviews

 - Project reviews

 - Process reviews

 - Reviews of procedures and operating manuals

 - Others

•	 QUANTITATIVE MANAGEMENT:  

 Managing by creating awareness in the organization of the level and nature of operational loss events.  This enables 
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the Bank to allocate funds through provisions for expected losses and to efficiently allocate capital for unexpected 
losses.  Quantitative management is based on the following activities:

 - Gathering and managing data.
 - Calculating capital with regulator-defined models and, when conditions permit, using advanced models.
 - Integrating qualitative and quantitative management.

F. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Operational Risk Management Framework is applied in the following stages:

•	 establishing	the	context:	
 Setting the strategic, organizational and risk management context within which the process will take place.  The 

Bank must stipulate the criteria for assessing risks and define the analysis structure.

•	 identiFying	risks:	
 Associating risks with the numerous processes and/or procedures executed as part of the various activities carried 

out by the Bank.

•	 analyzing	risks:	
 Specifically analyzing each of the risks detected based on the context set to determine whether that risk has an 

associated control or requires an action or mitigation plan.  This situation will be established in accordance with the 
Bank’s priorities.

•	 assessing	risks
 Assessing each of the risks based on the probability of occurrence and the level of impact. . 

•	 mitigating	risks:	
 Once risks have been detected and assessed, an analysis will be performed. To accomplish this, the Bank will define 

an action plan, assign an individual in charge of executing it and set a date for its resolution.

•	 monitoring	and	reViewing:	
 Monitoring, reviewing and updating the risk survey and resolution commitments from the person in charge.

•	 communicating	and	consulting: 
 Communicating and consulting with internal and external stakeholders, as appropriate, in each stage of the risk 

management process, considering the process as a whole.   

VI.  RISk COMMITTEES

In order to correctly manage risks, Banco Security has set up several risk committees, as described briefly below:

A.  CREDIT RISK COMMITTEE:

There are three credit risk committees: the Board Credit Committee, the Executive Credit Committee and the Circulating 
Folder Credit Committee. The Bank’s retail banking and commercial banking credit risk policies clearly specify the criteria 
used to identify which committee should analyze each transaction. The sales areas have almost no lending authority on 
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their own and must almost always obtain approval from the credit risk areas or the respective committees in order to 

approve loans.

COMPOSITION OF CREDIT RISk COMMITTEE:

The Board Credit Committee is made up of three directors, one advisor to the Board, the Bank’s CEO, the Risk Division 

Manager and the Commercial loan Approval Manager. The Circulating Folder Credit Committee consists of various sales 

managers and the deputy manager from the appropriate division (Retail or Commercial Banking).

MATTERS ADDRESSED:

These committees are responsible for approving or rejecting the loan applications submitted to the appropriate committee 

based on the loan amount and conditions. 

PERIODICITy:

The Board Credit Risk Committee meets every Tuesday and Thursday (except the second Thursday of each month) while the 

Executive Credit Risk Committee meets every Wednesday. The Circulating Folder Credit Risk Committee operates mainly 

on Monday and Thursday mornings.

BOARD INVOlVEMENT:

The Board is highly involved in the credit risk process through the Board Credit Risk Committee. Two directors and the 

Chairman of the Board sit on this committee, which is the Bank’s main credit risk body and is responsible for approving the 

most important transactions.

B.  CREDIT RISK RECLASSIFICATION COMMITTEE

This committee’s objective is to review customer risk classifications in light of new developments that may downgrade or 

upgrade their risk rating provided by the rating system.

This committee meets monthly and is comprised of:

•	 Chief	Executive	Officer

•	 Risk	Division	Manager

•	 Commercial	Division	Manager	(depending	on	the	case	being	assessed)

•	 Retail	Division	Manager	(depending	on	the	case	being	assessed)

•	 Risk	Management	Manager

•	 Commercial	Division	Agents	(depending	on	the	case	being	assessed)

•	 Head	of	Credit	Risk	Control	and	Monitoring

C.  WATCH COMMITTEE

This committee is responsible for monitoring and controlling operations and customers by reviewing information on 

potential future problems (asymptomatic), non-evident variables and evident variables. It also monitors any previously 

given instructions.
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There are three types of committees:

•	 The	BOARD	WATCH	COMMITTEE	for	customers	with	overall	BS	credit	 line	over	MCH$500	(Approx.	UF	20,000).	
Meets quarterly.

•	 The	MONITORING	or	MANAGER	WATCH	COMMITTEE	for	customers	with	overall	BS	credit	line	under	MCH$500	
(Approx. uF 20,000). Meets every two months.

•	 The	RETAIL	WATCH	COMMITTEE	for	 retail	customers	with	overall	BS	credit	 line	over	MCH$20	(Approx.	UF800).	
Meets monthly.

D.  MODELING COMMITTEE

This committee meets each month to review and monitor all models used for credit risk management. It is also charged 
with approving new models and monitoring progress. It also reviews the different credit risk methodologies that the Bank 
uses or is considering using.

E.  RISK COMMITTEE

This committee’s objective is to comprehensively review risks faced throughout the Bank and those that may impact it in 
the future. Based on this review, it generates guidelines and approves action plans in order to meet the objectives outlined 
in the budget based on the defined risk appetite.

This committee also reviews credit risk policies and processes and lending authority and any proposed amendments.

It also analyzes the matters and resolutions discussed by the remaining credit risk committees.

This committee is in charge of presenting topics, committee resolutions and policies to the Board for its approval.

This committee meets monthly and its members are:

•	 One	director.
•	 Chief	Executive	Officer.
•	 Division	managers	(Commercial,	Risk,	Finance,	Operations	and	Planning).
•	 Credit	Risk	Management	Manager.
•	 Financial	Risk	Manager.
•	 Operational	Risk	Deputy	Manager.
•	 Risk	and	Project	Management	Control	Deputy	Manager.

F.  FINANCIAL RISK COMMITTEES
 
This committee’s objective is to evaluate positions and risks taken by the Bank and its subsidiaries, defining strategies to 
be adopted and validating compliance. 

Its main duties include reporting on each unit’s performance regarding profits and margins versus budget, aligning strategies 
and escalating investment and divestiture decisions.
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The Financial Risk Committee is also charged with proposing policies and methodologies for managing financial assets to 

the Board and ensuring compliance with market and liquidity risk limits set by the Board and regulators.

This committee is comprised of:

•	 Committee	chairs:	

 -  Bank’s Chief Executive Officer

  -  Bank’s Chairman

 -  Group’s Chief Executive Officer

•	 Planning	and	Management	Manager

•	 Group’s	Chief	Economist

•	 Risk	Division	Manager

•	 Financial	Risk	Manager

•	 Finance	and	Corporate	Division	Manager

•	 Trading	and	Investment	Manager

•	 Chief	Executive	Officer	Valores	Security

•	 Investment	Manager	Valores	Security

•	 Investment	Manager	AGF

G.  OPERATIONAL RISK COMMITTEES

COMPOSITION OF OPERATIONAl RISk COMMITTEE

The Operational Risk Committee is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer or a director of the Bank and its subsidiaries, 

the Operations and IT Division Manager, the Risk Control Manager, a representative from the General Counsel’s office, 

the Mutual Fund Operations Manager, the Information Security Officer, the Bank’s Risk Division Manager and the Deputy 

Manager of Operational Risk.

The Controller for Grupo Security must attend committee meetings but does not have any responsibility for risk 

management. his or her purpose is to ensure that any potential corrective measures in response to observations on audited 

areas are properly implemented

MATTERS ADDRESSED

The committee is also in charge of disseminating the operational risk policy, evaluating identified risks and defining action 

plans based the Bank’s risk profile.

PERIODICITy

The Operational Risk Committee meets periodically, ideally bimonthly or as otherwise needed.

BOARD INVOlVEMENT

The Board is informed about the implementation of the Operational Risk Policy, as well as the detection of incidents, 

potential risks and measurements of operational risks (i.e. severity and frequency of loss).
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H.  ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE 

This committee is responsible for managing and controlling (1) structural maturity and currency mismatches in the 

statement of financial position, (2) liquidity and (3) the Bank’s financial margin and stability, as well as for (4) defining and 

controlling capital management policies.

The standing members of this committee are:

•	 Two directors

•		 Chief	Executive	Officer

•		 Finance	and	Corporate	Division	Manager

•		 Risk	Division	Manager	 	

•		 Financial	Risk	Manager

•		 Planning	and	Management	Manager	 	

•		 Trading	Desk	and	Investment	Manager

•		 Distribution	Desk	Manager

•		 Asset	and	Liability	Management	Desk	Manager

•		 Corporate	Banking	Division	Manager

•		 Retail	Banking	Division	Manager

•		 Foreign	Trade	and	International	Services	Manager

 

VII.  CAPITAl REgUlATORy REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the General Banking law, the Bank must maintain a minimum ratio of Regulatory Capital to Consolidated 

Risk-Weighted Assets of 8%, net of required provisions, and a minimum ratio of Basic Capital to Total Consolidated Assets 

of 3%, net of required provisions. To accomplish this, Regulatory Capital is determined based on Capital and Reserves 

and Basic Capital with the following adjustments: a) Adding subordinate bonds limited to 50% of Basic Capital and b) 

subtracting the asset balance of goodwill or premiums paid and unconsolidated investments in companies.

Assets are weighted using risk categories, which are assigned a risk percentage based on the capital needed to back up 

each asset. There are 5 risk categories (0%, 10%, 20%, 60% and 100%). For example, cash, due from banks and financial 

instruments issued by the Chilean Central Bank have 0% risk, which means that, in accordance with current standards, no 

capital is required to back up assets. Property, plant and equipment have 100% risk, which means that a minimum capital 

equivalent to 8% of the value of these assets is needed.

All derivative instruments traded off-market are taken into account to determine risk assets using conversion factors over 

notional values, thus calculating the value of the credit risk exposure (or “credit equivalent”). For weighting purposes, “credit 

equivalent” also considers off-balance sheet contingent loans.

As of December 31, 2016, the Bank has applied valuation techniques to determine the fair value of the financial instruments 

“BlAPO-F” and “BlAPO-G”.  For the la Polar bonds, that valuation (prepared by RiskAmerica) considers the rate from the 
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date the debt was renegotiated, which gives a price close to zero given their maturity. If traded (complying with the 

minimum trade restriction of uF 500), the transaction price is included as the official price.

levels of Basic and Regulatory Capital as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

CONSOlIDATED ASSETS RISk-WEIghTED ASSETS

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

baLance sheet assets (net Of prOvisiOns)

    Cash and due from banks  441,177  561,624  -    -   

    Transactions pending settlement  32,185  41,092  9,566  5,799 

    Financial instruments held for trading  267,099  188,758  41,812  27,214 

    Receivables from repurchase agreements and securities 
borrowing  -    -    -    -   

    Financial derivative instruments  105,111  198,215  78,332  125,728 

    loans and advances to banks  238  713  48  383 

    loans to customers  4,381,443  3,981,083  4,153,569  3,759,571 

    Investments available for sale  610,695  421,023  285,760  277,359 

    Investments held to maturity  -    -    -    -   

    Investments in other companies  4,152  3,048  4,152  3,048 

    Intangible assets  53,285  67,861  40,247  59,184 

    Property, plant and equipment  25,059  25,601  25,059  25,603 

    Current tax assets  1,086  3,403  109  340 

    Deferred tax assets  35,992  31,825  3,599  3,183 

    Other assets  138,552  119,853  136,618  107,394 

Off-baLance-sheet assets

    Contingent loans  402,681  516,564  241,609  309,939 

Total risk-weighted assets  6,498,755  6,160,663  5,020,480  4,704,745 

AMOUNT AMOUNT RATIO RATIO

2016
MCh$

2015
MCh$

2016
%

2015
%

Basic capital  461,687  408,250 7.10% 6.63%

Regulatory capital  663,763  569,288 13.22% 12.10%

Regulatory capital is calculated as follows:

AS Of DECEMbER 
31, 2016
 MCh$

AS Of DECEMbER 
31, 2015
 MCh$

cOre capitaL  461,687  408,250 

    Subordinated bonds  215,065  169,625 

    Tax guarantees  -    -   

    Equity attributable to non-controlling interest  50  90 

    Goodwill subsidiaries  (13,039)  (8,677)

Regulatory capital  663,763  569,288 
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38. NEW ACCOUNTINg PRONOUNCEMENTS IN 2016

As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the following new accounting pronouncements have been issued 

by the SBIF and the IASB: 

I) SUPERINTENDENCy Of bANkS AND fINANCIAl INSTITUTIONS

The following section describes the circulars issued by the SBIF that are related to this year’s consolidated financial 

statements:

A) The following new standards and interpretations have been adopted in these financial statements.

CIRCULAR NO. 3,601 

On February 18, 2016, the SBIF issued instructions for quantifying operational risk and identifying exposure using Basel 

guidelines.  This data must be included with the supplementary information sent each month in the MC1 and MC2 files. 

This requirement will apply for the first time for reports as of March 31, 2016.

CIRCULAR NO. 3,602 

On March 8, 2016, the SBIF modified the code for the item “Recovery of expenses for the period” in order to correct the 

duplication of two new codes recently added to Chapter C-3, section V, No. 1 involving results related to operational risk 

exposure and other individual supplementary information.

CIRCULAR NO. 3,604 

On March 29, 2016, the SBIF modified the percentage of credit equivalent for unrestricted lines of credit to 35% of the 

available amount for credit risk provisioning standards when the debtor has no loan defaults. This modification took effect 

in May 2016.

BANK CIRCULAR 3,583 

May 25, 2015, “Monthly Position Statements for SBIF.” The accounting information sent monthly to the SBIF includes 

higher education loans regulated by law 20,027 as one item within commercial loans and all other student loans within 

consumer loans, without differentiating them from other loans. In order to apply the same treatment to all loans granted to 

finance higher education, the SBIF issued Circular 3,583 on May 25, 2015, and modified the corresponding texts in Chapter 

C-3 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards, requiring all student loans to be reported within Commercial loans. The 

amendments in this circular come into effect for reporting as of January 1, 2016.

CIRCULAR 3,584 

June 22, 2015, the SBIF issued a circular related to Chapter B-1 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards to provide 

specific instructions on modifying the provision calculation established in Circular 3,573 as mentioned above.

CIRCULAR 3,598 

December 24, 2015, the SBIF complemented the instructions in Chapters B-1 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards 

to add provisions for the use of internal methodologies to determine credit risk provisions.
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CIRCULAR 3,573 

December 30, 2014, the SBIF issued a circular related to Chapters B-1, B-2 and E of the Compendium of Accounting 

Standards. This circular establishes the standard method for provisioning for residential mortgage loans to be applied 

beginning in 2016. It complements and specifies instructions on provisions and loans within the impaired portfolio.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year. 

b) The following new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet in effect:

CIRCULAR NO. 3,615  

On December 12, 2016, in order to enhance the transparency of financial information provided by banks, the SBIF published 

a circular requiring a review of interim financial reporting to be performed on financial statements as of June 30, and a 

review opinion to be issued by the entity’s external auditors in accordance with Chilean Generally Accepted Auditing 

Standards (NAGA No. 63, Section Au 930; or the international equivalent; SAS No. 122, Section Au-C 930).  This report and 

the respective review opinion from the external auditors must be submitted no later than August 15, 2017.

Management has evaluated and estimated these modifications, which will begin to be applied for the financial statements 

issued in June 2017.

II) INTERNATIONAl ACCOUNTINg STANDARDS bOARD

A)  The following new standards and interpretations have been adopted in these financial statements:

NEW IfRS MANDATORy EffECTIVE DATE

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
(Amendments to IFRS 11)

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization 
(Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 
(Amendments to IAS 27)

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

Disclosure Initiative 
(Amendments to IAS 1) 

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

Annual Improvements Cycle 2012-2014 
Amendments to Four IFRS.

Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITIONS OF INTERESTS IN jOINT OPERATIONS 

(AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 11

On May 6, 2014, the IASB issued Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS 11). 
These amendments clarify the accounting for acquisitions of an interest in a joint operation, when the operation constitutes 
a business.

It amends IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements to require an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity 
constitutes a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations) to:
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•	 Apply	all	of	the	business	combinations’	accounting	principles	in	IFRS	3	and	other	IFRS,	except	for	those	principles	
that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11;

•	 Disclose	the	information	required	by	IFRS	3	and	other	IFRS	for	business	combinations.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.  Early adoption is allowed but 
corresponding disclosures are required.  The amendments apply prospectively.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year. 

clariFication	oF	acceptable	methods	oF	depreciation	and	amortization	
(AMENDMENTS TO IAS 16 AND IAS 38)

On May 12, 2014, the IASB published Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments 
to IAS 16 and IAS 38).  The amendments provide additional guidance on how the depreciation or amortization of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets should be calculated.  They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2016; early adoption is allowed.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year. 

EQUITY METHOD IN SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AMENDMENTS TO IAS 27)

On August 18, 2014, the IASB published Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27).  The 
amendments restore the option to use the equity method of accounting in separate financial statements for investments 
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

The amendments allow the entity to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate 
financial statements:

•	 at	cost

•	 in	accordance	with	IFRS	9	Financial	Instruments:	(or	IAS	39	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	and	Measurement	of	
entities that have not yet adopted IFRS 9), or

•	 using	the	equity	method	as	described	in	IAS	28	Investments	in	Associates	and	Joint	Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by investment category.

In addition to the modifications to IAS 27, modifications were made to IAS 28 to avoid a possible conflict with IFRS 10 
Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Early adoption is allowed. The 
amendments must be applied retroactively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year. 
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DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE (AMENDMENTS TO IAS 1)

On December 18, 2014, the IASB added an initiative on disclosure to its work program in 2013 to supplement the work 

done in the Conceptual Framework project.  The initiative is made up of a number of smaller projects that aim to explore 

opportunities to see how presentation and disclosure principles and requirements in existing standards can be improved. 

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016; early adoption is allowed.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year. 

INVESTMENT ENTITIES: APPLYING THE CONSOLIDATION EXCEPTION 

(AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 10, IFRS 12 AND IAS 28).

On December 18, 2014, the IASB published Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments 

to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 28 Investments 

in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) to address issues that have arisen in the context of applying the consolidation 

exception for investment entities.

 

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016; early adoption is allowed.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS CYCLE 2012 - 2014

STANDARD TOPIC AMENDMENTS

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets 

held for Sale and Discontinued 

Operations

Changes in methods of 

disposal.

Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset from 

held for sale to held for distribution to owners or vice versa and cases in which held-

for-distribution accounting is discontinued. The amendments are effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, and early adoption is allowed.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 

Disclosures: (with consequential 

amendments to IFRS 1)

Servicing contracts Adds additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement 

in a transferred asset for the purpose of determining the disclosures required. 

Clarifies the applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 on offsetting disclosures to 

condensed interim financial statements. The amendments are effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, and early adoption is allowed.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits Discount rate Clarifies that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate for 

post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the benefits 

to be paid (thus, the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds should be 

assessed at currency level). The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after January 1, 2016, and early adoption is allowed.

IAS 34 Interim Financial 

Reporting

Disclosure of information 

'elsewhere in the interim 

financial report'

Clarifies the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interim report' and requires a cross-reference. 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, 

and early adoption is allowed.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.  Early adoption is allowed.

Management believes that these amendments have had no impact on the accounting policies for the year. 
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b)  The following new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet in effect:

NEW IfRS MANDATORy EffECTIVE DATE

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

IFRS 16 Leases Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

NEW INTERPRETATIONS MANDATORy EffECTIVE DATE

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

AMENDMENT TO IfRS MANDATORy EffECTIVE DATE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 

Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
Effective date deferred indefinitely.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for unrealized losses (Amendments to IAS 12) Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions 

(amendments to IFRS 2)
Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 

(amendments to IFRS 4)

Overlay approach when applying IFRS 9 for the first time.  

Temporary exemption to delay application for annual periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2018, and only available for three 

years after that date.

Transfers of Investment Property (amendments to IAS 40) Annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

Annual Improvements Cycle 2014-2016 (amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 

28)

The amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The amendment to 

IFRS 12 is for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017.

IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, which contains the accounting requirements for financial instruments 

and supersedes IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the 

following areas:

ClASSIFICATION AND MEASuREMENT

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the business model in which they are held and contractual cash flow characteristics. 

The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a measurement category known as “fair value through other comprehensive income” 

for certain debt instruments.  Financial liabilities are classified similarly to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement, but there are differences in the requirements applicable to the measurement of an entity’s own credit risk.

IMPAIRMENT: 

The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an “expected credit losses” model for measuring financial asset impairment. Therefore, 

a credit loss event does not need to occur before credit losses can be recognized.

hEDGE ACCOuNTING: 

It introduces a new model that is designed to align hedge accounting more closely with risk management activities when 

they hedge exposure to financial and non-financial risk.



pAGE

148

06 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DERECOGNITION:  

The requirements for derecognizing financial assets and liabilities are the same as the existing requirements in IAS 39 

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 is effective for all annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is allowed.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

On May 28, 2014, the IASB has published its new standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.  At the same 

time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has published its equivalent revenue standard, ASu 2014-09.

The new standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers: i) Identify 

the contract with the customer, ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract, iii) determine the transaction price, 

iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts, v) recognize revenue when (or as) the 

entity fulfills a performance obligation.

It also provides guidance on topics such as: The point at which revenue is recognized, variable considerations, costs incurred 

to fulfill or obtain a contract and several related matters.  The standard also introduces new disclosure requirements on 

revenue.

IFRS 15 must be applied in an entity’s first annual IFRS financial statements for periods beginning on or after January 1, 

2018.  Application of the standard is mandatory and early adoption is allowed.  An entity that chooses to apply IFRS 15 

earlier than January 1, 2016 must disclose this fact.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

IFRS 16 LEASES

On January 13, 2016, the IASB published a new standard, IFRS 16 leases. The new standard will bring most leases on-

balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. lessor 

accounting, however, remains largely unchanged, and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained.  IFRS 

16 supersedes IAS 17 leases and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019; 

early adoption is allowed if IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers has also been applied.  

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

SALE OR CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS BETWEEN AN INVESTOR AND ITS ASSOCIATE OR jOINT VENTURE 

(AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 10 AND IAS 28)

On September 11, 2014, the IASB published Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 

Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28). The amendments address the conflict between the requirements of IAS 28 
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Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and clarify the accounting for 

the sale or contribution of assets by an investor to its associate or joint venture, as follows:

•	 they	 require	 full	 recognition	 in	 the	 investor’s	 financial	 statements	 of	 gains	 and	 losses	 arising	 from	 the	 sale	 or	

contribution of assets that constitute a business (based on the definition in IFRS 3 Business Combinations),

•	 they	require	the	partial	recognition	of	gains	and	losses	where	the	assets	do	not	constitute	a	business,	i.e.	a	gain	or	

loss is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.

On December 17, 2015, the IASB published the final amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 

and its Associate or Joint Venture.  The amendments defer the effective date until the research project on equity accounting 

has concluded.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

recognition	oF	deFerred	tax	assets	For	unrealized	losses	

(AMENDMENTS TO IAS 12)

On January 19, 2016, the IASB published final amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes. 

The amendments clarify the following aspects:

L•	 Unrealized	losses	on	debt	instruments	measured	at	fair	value	and	measured	at	cost	for	tax	purposes	give	rise	to	a	

deductible temporary difference, regardless of whether the debt instrument’s holder expects to recover the carrying 

amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use.

•	 The	carrying	amount	of	an	asset	does	not	limit	the	estimation	of	probable	future	taxable	profits.

•	 Estimates	 for	 future	 taxable	 profits	 exclude	 tax	deductions	 resulting	 from	 the	 reversal	 of	 deductible	 temporary	

differences.

•	 An	entity	assesses	a	deferred	tax	asset	in	combination	with	other	deferred	tax	assets.	Where	tax	law	restricts	the	

utilization of tax losses, an entity would assess a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets of 

the same type.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is allowed.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE (AMENDMENTS TO IAS 7)

The amendments are part of the IASB’s disclosure initiative project and introduce additional requirements intended to 

address investors’ concerns that financial statements currently do not provide an understanding of an entity’s cash flows; 
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particularly regarding the management of financing activities. The amendments require disclosures that enable users 

of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. Although no specific format is 

required to comply with the new requirements, the amendments include illustrative examples to show how an entity can 

fulfill the objective of these amendments.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is allowed.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

CLARIFICATIONS TO IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

On April 12, 2016, the IASB published final clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.  

These clarifications focus on the following areas:

•	 Identifying	performance	obligations,

•	 Principal	versus	agent	considerations,	and

•	 Licensing.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 (same date as IFRS 15). Early 

adoption is allowed.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 

(AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 2)

On June 20, 2016, the IASB published final amendments to IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment that clarifies the classification 

and measurement of share-based payment transactions.  The amendments address several requests that the IASB and the 

IFRS Interpretations Committee received and that the IASB decided to deal with in one, combined, narrow-scope project.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  Early adoption is allowed.  The 

amendments are to be applied prospectively.  however, retrospective application is allowed if this is possible without the 

use of hindsight. If an entity applies the amendments retrospectively, it must do so for all of the amendments described 

above. 

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

APPLYING IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH IFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACTS 

(AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 4)

On September 12, 2016, the IASB published “Applying IFRS 9, Financial Instruments with IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts”.  

The amendments are intended to address concerns about the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new 

insurance contracts standard (expected as IFRS 17 within the next six months).
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As it has become obvious that the effective date of IFRS 17 can no longer be aligned with the effective date of IFRS 9 

Financial Instruments, there have been calls for the IASB to delay application of IFRS 9 for insurance activities and align the 

effective date of IFRS 9 for those activities with the effective date of the new insurance contracts standard.

The amendments provide two options for entities that issue insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4: An option 

that permits entities to reclassify, from profit or loss to other comprehensive income, some of the income or expenses 

arising from designated financial assets; this is the so-called overlay approach, and an optional temporary exemption from 

applying IFRS 9 for entities whose predominant activity is issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4; this is the so-called 

deferral approach.

An entity applies the overlay approach retrospectively to qualifying financial assets when it first applies IFRS 9. Application 

of the overlay approach requires disclosure of sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand 

how the amount reclassified in the reporting period is calculated and the effect of that reclassification on the financial 

statements.

An entity applies the deferral approach for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  Application of the deferral 

approach needs to be disclosed together with information that enables users of financial statements to understand how 

the insurer qualified for the temporary exemption and to compare insurers applying the temporary exemption with entities 

applying IFRS 9. The deferral can only be made use of for the three years following January 1, 2018. 

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

 

TRANSFERS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

(AMENDMENTS TO IAS 40)

On December 8, 2016, the IASB issued “Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)” to clarify transfers of 

property to, or from, investment property.  

The amendments to IAS Investment Property are:

•	 Paragraph	57	has	been	amended	to	state	that	an	entity	shall	transfer	a	property	to,	or	from,	investment	property	

when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use.  A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to 

meet, the definition of investment property.  A change in management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself 

does not constitute evidence of a change in use.

•	 The	list	of	evidence	in	paragraph	57(a)	–	(d)	was	designated	as	a	non-exhaustive	list	of	examples	instead	of	the	

previous exhaustive list.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  Early adoption is allowed.  

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.
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AnnuAl Improvements CyCle 2014 - 2016

On December 8, 2016, the IASB issued “Annual Improvements Cycle 2014-2016.” This pronouncement contains amendments 
to three IFRS as a result of the IASB’s annual improvements cycle:

NIIF Subject oF the AmeNdmeNt

IFRS 1

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Deleted the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3–E7 of IFRS 1, because 

they have now served their intended purpose.

IFRS 12 

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Clarified the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure 

requirements in the standard, except for those in paragraphs B10–B16, 

apply to an entity’s interests listed in paragraph 5 that are classified as held 

for sale, as held for distribution or as discontinued operations in accordance 

with IFRS 5.

IAS 28 

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

Clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss 

an investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity 

that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, is available 

for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-

investment basis, upon initial recognition

The amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The amendment 
to IFRS 12 is for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

IFrIC 22 ForeIgn CurrenCy trAnsACtIons And AdvAnCe ConsIderAtIons

On December 8, 2016, the IASB issued IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations” developed by 
the IFRS Interpretation Committee to clarify the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance 
consideration in a foreign currency.

The main contents of IFRIC 22 are:

SCOpE OF ThE InTERpRETATIOn: 
The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where:

•	 there	is	consideration	that	is	denominated	or	priced	in	a	foreign	currency,

•	 the	entity	recognizes	a	prepayment	asset	or	a	deferred	income	liability	in	respect	of	that	consideration,	in	advance	
of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

•	 the	prepayment	asset	or	deferred	income	liability	is	non-monetary.
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CONSENSuS:

The Interpretations Committee came to the following conclusion:

•	 The	date	of	the	transaction,	for	the	purpose	of	determining	the	exchange	rate,	is	the	date	of	initial	recognition	of	the	

non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

•	 If	 there	are	multiple	payments	or	 receipts	 in	advance,	 a	date	of	 transaction	 is	 established	 for	each	payment	or	

receipt.

The new interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.  Early adoption is allowed.

Management has not had the opportunity to evaluate the potential impact of adopting these amendments.

39. SUbSEQUENT EVENTS

Between January 1, 2017, and the date of issuance of these financial statements, there have been no subsequent events 

that significantly affect the presentation and/or results of the financial statements.

40. APPROVAl Of ThE fINANCIAl STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in an ordinary meeting on January 19, 2017.

MIgUEl A. MORAlES C. bONIfACIO A. bIlbAO h.
Deputy Accounting Manager Chief Executive Officer
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VAlORES SECURITy S.A. CORREDORES DE bOlSA
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

12-31-2015
MCh$

12-31-2015
MCh$

assets

Cash and cash equivalents 21,536 10,079 

Financial instruments 63,278 68,254 

Brokerage receivables 45,376 24,627 

Investments in companies 2,060 1,952 

Property, plant and equipment 156 162 

Other assets 13,512 6,951 

TOTAL ASSETS 145,918 112,025 

LiabiLities and sharehOLder’s eQuity

Financial liabilities 28,075 42,130 

Brokerage payables 46,863 23,726 

Other liabilities 33,172 10,552 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 108,110 76,408 

Capital and reserves 36,575 33,746 

Net Income for the period 1,233 1,871 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 145,918 112,025 

12-31-2015
MCh$

12-31-2015
MCh$

statement Of incOme

Income from brokerage 5,162 1,674 

Income from services 1,585 1,164 

Income from financial instruments 8,536 6,260 

Income from financing operations (1,643) (1,975)

Administration and trade expenses (13,510) (7,935)

Other income 1,575 2,894 

Income before income tax 1,705 2,082 

Income taxes (472) (211)

NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 1,233 1,871 
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SUMMARIzED fINANCIAl 
STATEMENTS Of SUbSIDIARIES

ADMINISTRADORA gENERAl DE fONDOS SECURITy S.A.
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

12-31-2015
MCh$

12-31-2015
MCh$

assets

Cash and cash equivalents. 1,639.8 2,544.6

Other financial assets, current 35,060.3 28,587.1

Other current assets 2,633.8 1,857.5

Non-Current Assets 11,482.7 11,613.1

TOTAL ASSETS 50,816.6 44,602.3

LiabiLities

Current liabilities 2,371.1 2,939.8

Non-current liabilities

Issued Capital 3,353.6 1,525.3

Other Reserves 1,109.3 1,788.4

Retained earnings 43,982.6 38,348.8

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 50,816.6 44,602.3

12-31-2015
MCh$

12-31-2015
MCh$

statement Of incOme

Operating income 22,211.3 22,522.6

Administrative expenses (15,372.1) (13,142.1)

Financial Costs (609.1) (697.0)

Other Net Income 2,316.9 1,806.7

Income before Income Taxes 8,547.0 10,490.2

Income Tax (1,607.7) (1,905.9)

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 6,939.3 8,584.3
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MAIN TELEPHONE NUMBERS: 

(56-2) 2584 4000

SECURITY CUSTOMER SERVICE: 

(56-2) 2584 4060

SECURITY PHONE: 

(600) 2584 4040 

Monday - Sunday, 24 hours a day

Web: www.security.cl

e-mail: banco@security.cl

BANKING EMERGENCIES: 

800 200717 

To call from cellular phones: (56-2) 2462 2117  

Monday to Sunday, 24 hours a day

TO REPORT A LOST OR STOLEN MASTERCARD

IN ChIlE:

Call Banking Emergencies line: 800 200717 

To call from cellular phones: (56-2) 2462 2117, 

or Transbank (56-2) 2782 1386

FROM OuTSIDE ChIlE:

In the uSA and Canada 1 800 307 7309 

or other countries 1 636 722 7111

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Suite 2407 - 9 Queen’s Road, Central hong kong

Phone: (852) 2155 3027

bRANChES IN ChIlE

HEADQUARTERS (EL GOLF)

Apoquindo 3150 – las Condes

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4000

AGUSTINAS BRANCH

Agustinas 621 – Santiago

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4321

ALCáNTARA BRANCH

Av.  Alcántara 44 – las Condes

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4465

CHICUREO BRANCH

Camino Chicureo km 1.7 – Colina

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2581 5003 

CIUDAD EMPRESARIAL BRANCH

Av. del Parque 4023 – huechuraba

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 5354

EL CORTIjO BRANCH

Av. Américo Vespucio 2760 C – Conchalí

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2581 4831

ESTORIL BRANCH

Av.  Estoril 50 – las Condes

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 7694

LA DEHESA BRANCH

Av. la Dehesa 1744 – lo Barnechea

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4673

LA REINA BRANCH

Av. Carlos Ossandón 1231 – la Reina 

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. 

Phone: (56-2) 2584 3252 

LOS COBRES BRANCH

Av. Vitacura 6577 – Vitacura

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2581 5516

MONEDA BRANCH

Moneda 877 – Santiago

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. 

Phone: (56-2) 2581 5630

LOS TRAPENSES BRANCH

José Alcalde Délano 10,398, local 3 – lo Barnechea

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2581 5568 
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ADDRESSES fOR bANCO
SECURITy AND SUbSIDIARIES

plaza	constitución	branch

Agustinas 1235 – Santiago

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4832

PROVIDENCIA BRANCH

Av. Nueva Providencia 2289 – Providencia

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4688

SANTA ELENA BRANCH

Santa Elena 2400 – San Joaquín

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 3258

SANTA MARíA DE MANQUEHUE BRANCH  

Santa María 6904 local 15 – Vitacura 

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2581 3234

VITACURA BRANCH

Av. Vitacura 3706 – Vitacura

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 4735

PRESIDENTE RIESCO BRANCH

Presidente Riesco 5335 local 101 – las Condes

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (56-2) 2584 5072

ANTOFAGASTA BRANCH

Av. San Martín 2511 – Antofagasta

Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (55) 253 6500

copiapó	branch

Atacama 686 – Copiapó

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone: (52) 235 7210

VIñA DEL MAR BRANCH

Av.  libertad 1097 – Viña del Mar

Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

Phone, Retail Banking: (32) 251 5100

Phone, Commercial Banking: (32) 251 5128

LA SERENA BRANCH

Calle huanhualí 85, local 6 – la Serena
Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
Phone: (51) 247 7400

RANCAGUA BRANCH

Carretera Eduardo Frei Montalva 340, local 6 – Rancagua
Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
Phone: (72) 274 6600
 

TALCA BRANCH

Av. Circunvalación Oriente 1055, local B-2 
Business hours: 8:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. 
Phone: (71) 234 4600 

concepción	branch

Av. Bernardo O’higgins 428 – Concepción
Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
Phone, Retail Banking: (41) 290 8003
Phone, Commercial Banking: (41) 290 8096

TEMUCO BRANCH

Manuel Bulnes 701 – Temuco
Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
Phone, Retail Banking: (45) 294 8423
Phone, Commercial Banking: (45) 294 8421

PUERTO MONTT BRANCH

Guillermo Gallardo 132 – Puerto Montt
Business hours: 9:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
Phone, Retail Banking: (65) 256 8300
Phone, Commercial Banking: (65) 256 8313

SUbSIDIARIES

VALORES SECURITY S.A., CORREDORES DE BOLSA

Apoquindo 3150 piso 7 – las Condes
Phone: (56-2) 2584 4601
Web: www.inversionessecurity.cl
e-mail: sacinversiones@security.cl

ADMINISTRADORA GENERAL 

DE FONDOS SECURITY S.A.

Apoquindo 3150 piso 7 – las Condes
Phone: (56-2) 2584 4000
Web: www.inversionessecurity.cl
e-mail: sacinversiones@security.cl
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